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about the theme

The intrinsic richness of our lands, and the boundless opportunities for revival and prosperity therein, are
common metaphors in Allama Muhammad Igbal’s poetic symphony. Amongst the most revered of Igbal’s
works, the phrase ‘Naya zamana, naye subh-o-shaam paida kar’ builds upon this notion. Through it, Igbal
emphasized the importance of embracing one’s individuality, heritage, and creativity to forge a lasting impact
in the face of evolving times.

For over five decades, Engro Fertilizers Limited has empowered farmers across Pakistan with its world-class
products and services, influencing 40% of the Country’s agri-productivity and aiming to ensure food security
for all. With a focus on innovation and digital transformation, we are striving to build on our rich legacy for a
better tomorrow. From pioneering the launch of a next generation fertilizer brand, Engro Zabardast Urea, to
the award-winning fintech innovation Engro Humsafar mobile application - the Company continues to make
progress in its digital journey.

With a vision to transform the agricultural landscape of Pakistan, Engro Fertilizers Limited remains steadfast
in its pursuit of excellence and in upholding the trust of farmers, communities and shareholders, thereby
enabling growth for productivity.



external assurance / reviews reporting framework

This report has been prepared in compliance with the following frameworks:
Assurance External firm

Review report on Compliance with Code of The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan

Sererats SO TS A.F.Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants comprising of:
Indepenglent AUd.ItorS .report g ielateltiel A.F.Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants - International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the
Eoies Datuiligpoia Statement International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the

Independent Auditor’s report on the audit of Companies Act, 2017 and

Financial Statement
Entity’s Credit Rating Pakistan Credit Rating Agency

A.FFerguson & Co. Chartered Accountants

- Reporting requirements of Companies Act, 2017, Listed Companies
Code of Corporate Governance Regulation, 2019 and Listing
Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX)

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act,
2017 differ from IFRS standards, the provision and directives issued under
the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.
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agricultural landscape, bringing change and

we are passionate about transforming the
helping the farmer grow.
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company profile

The Company was incorporated in June 2009, post demerger from parent
company Engro Corporation Limited (formerly Engro Chemicals Pakistan
Limited) effective from January 1, 2010. Today Engro Corporation holds
56.27% of shares of the Company.

EFERT is a renowned name in the Pakistani fertilizer industry, trading on the
Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) under the symbol “EFERT”. The Company
holds a nationwide production and marketing infrastructure, producing leading
fertilizer brands optimized for local cultivation needs and demand.

EFERT has earned itself a distinguished name by continually striving to uphold
its tradition and the trust of its customers.
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company information

board of directors

Mr. Ghias Khan Mr. Javed Akbar | Mr. Farooq Barkat Ali* | Mr. Asad Said Jafar

Chairman Mr. Asim Murtaza Khan | Ms. Danish Zuberi
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Mr. Ahsan Zafar Syed Mr. Ali Rathore Mr. Sunaib Barkat

banking partners

conventional banks

Allied Bank Limited

Askari Bank Limited

Bank Al Habib Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

Citi Bank N.A

Habib Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
JS Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

National Bank of Pakistan

Samba Bank Limited

Soneri Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited
Summit Bank Limited

The Bank of Punjab

United Bank Limited

shariah compliant banks

Al Baraka Islamic Bank (Pakistan) Limited
Banklslami Pakistan Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

microfinance banks
Mobilink Microfinance Bank
Telenor Microfinance Bank

auditors

A.F. Ferguson & Co Chartered Accountants
State Life Building No. 1-C, .. Chundrigar Road
Karachi-74000, Pakistan

Tel: +92(21) 32426682-6 / 32426711-5

Fax +92(21) 32415007 / 32427938
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registered office

6th Floor, The Harbor Front Building,

HC # 3, Marine Drive, Block 4, Clifton,

Karachi-75600, Pakistan

Tel: +92 (21) 35297501-10, PABX: +92 (21) 111 211 211
Fax: +92 (21) 35810669

Website: www.engrofertilizers.com

WWW.engro.com

plant sites

Daharki

Daharki, District Ghotki
Sindh

PABX: +92723 641001 - 10
Fax: 492723 641028 - 9

Zarkhez

EZ-1 P-I-ll Eastern Industrial Zone Port Qasim, Karachi
PABX: 021-34740044-49

Fax: +9221 3474 0051

share registrar

M/s. FAMCO Share Registration Services (Pvt) Limited
8-F, Near Hotel Faran, Block-6, PECHS,
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan

Tel: +92 (21) 34380104-5, 34384621-3

Fax: +92 (21) 34380106

speak-out

Whistleblower Hotline for complaints or concerns in
relation to business ethics and compliance

Engro Fertilizers Limited

Ph: +92 (21) 35296012

Email: speakout.fertilizers@engro.com

P.O.Box: 3851, Clifton, Karachi

* Mr. Farooq Barkat Ali was appointed on the board on
January 26, 2024

engro fertilizers limited

annual report 2023

enriching Pakistan | 08



group structure

‘@ Corporation

Engro
Foundation

(Trust)

Engro
Fertilizers
Ltd.
56.27%

Efert
Agritrade
(Pvt.)
Limited
100%

Listed Entities

Engro
Polymer &
Chemicals
Limited
56.19%

Friesland
Campina
Engro
Pakistan Ltd.
39.93%

Engro
Energy
Limited
100%

Think Pvc
(Pvt.)
Limited
100%

Unlisted Local Subsidiaries

Trust / Foundation / Non-Profit Companies

International Unlisted Subsidiaries

Engro
Plastisizer
(Pvt)
Limited
100%

Unlisted Local JVs, Associates & Investments

International Unlisted Associates & Investments

Note: The above companies include all the active business
entities under Engro Corporation.
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Engro
Peroxide
(Pvt.)
Limited
100%

Engro
Eximp
Agriproducts
(Pvt.) Limited
100%

Engro
Vopak
Terminal
Limited
50%

Engro
Connnect
(Pvt.) Limited
100%

Engro
Enfrashare
(Pvt.)
Limited
100%

Engro
Powergen
Qadirpur
Limited
68.9%

engro fertilizers limited

Engro
Powergen
Thar (Pvt.)
Limited
50.1%

annual report 2023

Sindh
Engro

Coal Mining
Company
Limited
11.9%

Elengy
Terminal
Pakistan
Ltd

56%

Engro Elengy
Terminal (Pvt.)
Limited

100%
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board of directors

Mr. Ghias Khan

Chairman & Non-Executive Director

Ghias Khan is the 4th President & CEO of Engro Corporation. He has played an instrumental role in
stewarding Engro’s future strategy, culture, and international outreach with a focus on building the
company’s digitalization capabilities and transforming it into an intelligent organization that can
compete on a global scale. In 2022, Ghias was elected President of the Overseas Investors
Chamber of Commerce & Industry (OICCI).

He spearheaded the development of Engro Enfrashare in 2018, the company’s connectivity vertical
which has enabled social and financial inclusion for Pakistanis. Engro Enfrashare has deployed over
3,300 telecom towers across Pakistan, making it one of the largest independent tower companies
in the country.

Ghias architectured the turnaround of Engro Polymer and under his leadership, the company
enhanced its PVC capacity, diversified into new chemicals, and demonstrated efficiencies such that
the market capitalization increased five-fold in six years. He paved the way for more cooperation
with our long-time strategic partner, Royal Vopak, through its entry into Engro Elengy, which
continues to operate as the most utilized terminal in the world.

During his Presidency, in line with the Company’s efforts to improve energy efficiency and
ecosystem in the country, Engro established 2x330 MW mine-mouth power plants in Tharparkar.
Engro was the first company to have demonstrated proof of concept and successfully produce up
to 660MW of consistent power to the national grid, benefitting 7 million Pakistanis.
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His leadership has helped position Engro Fertilizers as an efficient player in the market that
contributes to food security, while enabling sustainable agricultural practices. Through innovative
digitalization efforts such as the Humsafar app, Ghias has helped the company empower its
customers and enabled Pakistani farmers to grow. The app has established Engro Fertilizer as one
of the largest e-sales companies in the country.

In line with global best practice and Engro’s strategic digital imperatives, Ghias has laid the
foundation for a digital future through Engro’s OneSAP initiative, endorsed as Pakistan’s largest
digital transformation project.

Ghias has led the people transformation journey at Engro, revamping its culture and narrative,
focused on talent development, work culture and increasing diversity across the Group.

He is also leading the transition to sustainability at Engro. The Company has committed to adopt
and implement stakeholder capitalism metrics, sponsored by the World Economic Forum’s
International Business Council, becoming the first organization from Pakistan to sign this
commitment.

Engro has earned numerous awards, both locally and globally, for enabling a thriving business
environment, investing in the development of its people, upholding high standards of corporate
governance, and promoting diversity, health, safety, & environment at the workplace.

Currently, Ghias serves as Chairman on the Boards of Engro Fertilizers Limited, Engro Polymer &
Chemicals Limited, Engro Enfrashare (Pvt) Limited, and Engro Energy Limited. He also serves on the
Board of Trustees of Engro Foundation — the social investment arm of Engro Corporation.

Ghias holds a Master's degree in Business Administration from the Institute of Business
Administration, Karachi.
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board of directors

Mr. Javed Akbar

o Non-Executive Director

Javed Akbar is a Chemical Engineer and has over 40 years of experience in the fertilizer and
chemical business with Exxon, (Engro and Vopak in Pakistan) and overseas. He was part of the
buyout team in 1991 when Exxon divested its stake in Engro. Prior to his retirement in 2006, he was
Chief Executive Officer of Engro Vopak Terminal Limited, a joint venture between Engro and Royal
Vopak of Holland. After retirement, he established a consulting company that analyzes and
forecasts petroleum, petrochemical and energy industry trends while providing strategic insights.
He currently serves on the Boards of:

Engro Fertilizers Limited

Efert Agritrade (Private) Limited

Engro Vopak Terminal Limited

Engro Powergen Thar (Private) Limited
Javed Akbar Associates (Private) Limited
Reon Energy Limited

R R e =
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Mr. Farooq Barkat Ali

Non-Executive Director

Farooq Barkat Ali is the Chief Financial Officer at Engro Corporation Limited. Previously, he has
served as the Chief Financial Officer at Engro Fertilizers, and Engro Energy Limited (EEL). Farooq
has also served as Vice President - Finance at Engro Corporation and Chief Financial Officer at
Engro Powergen Qadirpur and Engro Eximp (Pvt) Limited.

As CFO at Engro Energy, Farooq looked after various aspects of the business including
Performance Management of EEL subsidiaries, Treasury & Investor Relations, and financial
oversight of all entities under the Energy vertical.

He serves on the Board of Engro Enfrashare, Elengy Terminal Pakistan Limited, Engro Connect
(Pvt.) Limited, Engro Energy Services Limited, Engro Power International Holding BV, Engro Power
Investments International BV, and Engro Power Services Holding BV.

Farooq carries around two decades of experience in various Finance and Commercial roles. He
started his career with Reckitt Benckiser in 2002 and then moved to Shell Pakistan in 2007, before
joining the Engro Group in 2013. During his career, Farooq has managed multiple projects including
the financing of mega projects, ERP implementations, and mergers & acquisitions.

Farooq is a Chartered Accountant by profession from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

Pakistan (ICAP) and has also been previously associated with Pricewaterhouse Coopers (PwC) in
Karachi.
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board of directors

Mr. Asad Said Jafar

Independent Director

Asad Said Jafar, has held the position of Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of
Directors at Signify Pakistan Limited (formerly Philips Pakistan Limited) since 2009. Prior to this, he
was Director Supply Chain, for Philips Lighting ASEAN from 2006 to 2008. Asad has extensive
manufacturing, supply chain, business excellence and general management experience and has
held various leadership roles at Philips including overseas expatriate postings to Indonesia,
Thailand and Singapore from 2001 to 2008. Asad joined Philips in 1998 as Supply Chain Manager
at Philips Pakistan Limited. He has driven the transformation and revitalization of the Philips
business in Pakistan to become a focused lighting technology company offering a complete range
of conventional and LED lighting solutions including its connected lighting systems and
data-enabled services, design services and turnkey solutions. He has also steered the transition of
the company from Philips to Signify in Pakistan. Before Philips, Asad worked at ICI Pakistan Limited
from 1988 to 1996, joining them as a Management Trainee and then moving in to various roles in
projects, plant maintenance, design and engineering planning before leaving the company to
pursue an MBA degree.

Asad served as the President of Overseas Investors Chamber of Commerce and Industry (OICCI) in
2014 and as its Vice President in 2013. He is currently serving on the Board of Directors of Engro
Fertilizers Limited and Unilever Pakistan Foods Limited. Previously he has served on the Board of
Directors of Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) and Engro Polymer & Chemicals
Limited and has been a member of the Institute of Business Administration (IBA) Corporate Leaders
Advisory Board (ICLAB). He has also served as a member of International Advisory Board at NED
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University of Engineering and Technology. He has participated regularly in Karachi School of
Business & Leadership’s CEO mentorship program. Asad holds an Electrical Engineering (BE)
degree from the NED University of Engineering & Technology and a master’s degree in business
administration (MBA) from the Imperial College Business School, London, UK where he studied as
a Chevening scholar.

Asad has completed several management development programs including the ‘Leading a
Business’ program at Ashridge Business School, UK. He attended the ‘Philips Simplicity Brand
1000’programme at the Chicago Graduate School of Business (London campus) as well as the
‘Business Marketing Strategy’ program at Kellogg School of Management, Northwestern
University, USA. He is often invited to address business professionals and student audiences at
corporate and academic events. He is a member of PICG’s faculty for the flagship Director Training
Program.
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board of directors

Mr. Asim Murtaza Khan

AR Independent Director

Asim Murtaza Khan is a veteran of the petroleum industry. He was recently appointed as the CEO
of Sindh Petroleum Limited by the Sindh Government. Prior to that he has worked as pro bono CEO
of the Petroleum Institute of Pakistan for nearly seven years. Earlier, he has worked for Pakistan
Petroleum Limited for nearly 33 years and superannuated as the MD/CEO. He was amongst the
founder Directors of PPL’s overseas subsidiary companies, PPL Europe E&P Ltd. and PPL Asia E&P
B.V. for venturing international E&P. At PPL, he also led the mining joint venture with the Government
of Balochistan. He holds a Bachelor’s in Mechanical Engineering from NED University of
Engineering and Technology, Karachi and a Masters in Mechanical Engineering from the University
of Manchester Institute of Science and Technology, UK. He is an alumnus of the Kellogg School of
Management, Northwestern University, USA. Asim is a Fellow and Member Central Council of the
Institution of Engineers Pakistan, Chair of the Petroleum Engineering Advisory Board, Joint Chair of
the ORIC and the Business Incubation Centre, Member Academic Council and Member of the
Senate of NED University. He has served as the Chair on the Boards of Pakistan LNG Terminals
Limited, Petroleum Institute of Pakistan (PIP), and amongst other entities, on the Boards of Pakistan
Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) and the Community Development Board of the
Government of Sindh.
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Ms. Danish Zuberi

= : il el Independent Director

Danish Zuberi is an Advocate of the High Courts of Pakistan and has over 25 years of experience in
corporate, commercial and dispute resolution matters. Danish commenced her career in 1995 at
the premier litigation chamber, Fazle Ghani Advocates, in commercial and constitutional litigation.
Thereafter, she continued her practice at Vellani & Vellani. She then established her independent
practice, following which she accepted the position of General Counsel at Pakistan Petroleum.
She left Pakistan Petroleum Limited in 2015 as General Counsel & Company Secretary and since
2016 she is a Partner at Vellani & Vellani.
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board of directors

Mr. Ahsan Zafar Syed

Chief Executive Officer

Ahsan Zafar Syed is the Chief Executive Officer of Engro Fertilizers Limited — one of the leading
fertilizer companies in Pakistan and a subsidiary of Engro Corporation.

Ahsan is a Director on the Boards of Engro Fertilizers Limited, EFERT Agritrade Private Limited,
Engro Elengy Terminal Pakistan Limited, Engro Vopak Terminal Limited, Engro Foundation, Engro
Elengy Terminal (Pvt.) Limited, Engro Power Services Limited (NIGERIA) and Tenaga Generasi
Limited.

Ahsan holds a BE and MS in Mechanical Engineering. He has close to three decades of experience
in managing and leading multi-billion dollar, mega-scale projects such as the fertilizer expansion
project of Engro Fertilizers, managing Pakistan’s largest rice processing facility in Muridke and
establishing the CPEC-endorsed Thar power and mining projects — which have successfully
unearthed Pakistan’s largest coal reserves in Thar and produced electricity through Pakistan’s own
fuel source.

Widely respected within the corporate sector as a project guru, Ahsan is a forward-thinker who
believes that the corporate sector must prioritize deploying inclusive businesses that focus on
human and environmental well-being. At various forums and in his organization, he continues to
champion diversity, equity & inclusion; he has headed several diversity initiatives and believes that
everyone has to play a part in the team for diversity and inclusion to truly take hold at any
organization.
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management committee

Ahsan
Zafar Syed

Chief Executive Officer

Syed Shahzad " P

Nabi

SVP Manufacturing
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Ali Rathore

Chief Financial Officer

Atif
Mohammad
Ali

VP Marketing

Muhammad
Saad khan

VP People & Facilities
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Syed Ammar
Shah

VP Business
Development

Nazia Ali

Head of digital
transformation
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geographical presence
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engro fertilizers limited

S.no. Description Address
1 Head Office 6th Floor, Harbor Front Building, Marine Drive,
Block 4, Clifton, Karachi
P Daharki Plant Daharki, District Ghotki, Sindh
3 Zarkhez Plant EZ/1 /P -1 -l Eastern Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi
4 Zonal Office - North 4th Floor, 19-A, Ali Block, New Garden Town, Lahore
5 Regional Office - Faisalabad 4th Floor, Meezan Executive Tower, Liaquat Road,
Faisalabad.
6 Regional Office - Sahiwal Alayan Centre ,Police Line Road, Sahiwal
7 Zonal Office - Central 3rd Floor, Mehr Fatima Tower, Opp. High Court, Old
Bahawalpur Road, Multan
8 Zonal Office - Central Marketing Office Daharki Plant, District Ghotki
] Regional Office - DG Khan Engro Warehouse, Opp. B.l.S.E. Multan Road, D. G. Khan
10 Zonal Office - South 6th Floor, State Life Building, Thandi Sadak, Hyderabad
11 Regional Office - Nawabshah Near Bilawal Stadium, Main Kazi Ahmed Road, Nawabshah
12 Regional Office — Sukkur Plot # E 37, Pak Memon Cooperative Housing Society,

annual report 2023
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organogram & employee profile

Board of
Directors

Board Audit Board People

Internal Audit Committee Committee

Chief Executive
Officer

Shared Department
with ECORP

Fi & Information
l;rlnanqe Technology
anning Transformation

: Special
“gael;l\(’?:gg BuBs?::ss Fertilizer Agronamy General Engro
Sl Accounting Foundation

Public Affairs &
Govt. Relations

Marketing Brands &
Excellence § Communication Corporate
Technical Operational Communications
Sections Sections

. Central
Process Production Procurement

Engineering Engineering

Mechanical Maintenance #:gstaa;;,

Engineering Engineering

Central

I&E
Engineering Payables

P | enriching Pakistan engro fertilizers limited annual report 2023 enriching Pakistan I 24




product portfolio & services




product portfolio & services
We grow brands

At EFERT, we believe in delivering the highest standards of quality hence our focus goes
beyond the performance of brands to how our brands are impacting the lives of our
consumers and enriching nutrient deficient lands. Our efforts are directed at increasing crop
yields, addressing malnutrition and driving The Nation’s Food Security Agenda to meet
Sustainable Development Goal (Zero Hunger). Therefore, at EFERT we strive to combine
innovation and quality with customer needs and expectations.

The primary business segments of the company are:
Straight Fertilizers (urea, phosphatic fertilizers).
Specialty Fertilizers (Zabardast Urea, Zarkhez Grades).

Agri services including site specific fertilizer recommendations based on 4Rs principles (Right
source, Right dose, Right time and Right method of application)
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engro fertilizers limited

Fertilizers

EFERT has a portfolio of premium fertilizers that
focuses on balanced crop nutrition and improved
crop yields, including Engro Urea and DAP
(Di-Ammonium Phoasphate) which comprise of
some of the most trusted brands among
Pakistani farmers.

Engro Urea

EFERT set up the first urea production facility in Pakistan, a landmark event
in agricultural sector of the country, with a production capacity of 173,000
tons per year in 1968. With various debottlenecking and expansion steps,
production capacity increased to 975,000 tons per year. In 2011, the
Company set up the world’s largest (at that time) single train urea plant of
1.3 Mn tons capacity. Currently, EFERT is producing 2.2 Mn tons per year.

Nitrogen is the most important nutrient required by plants, in large
quantities. Engro Urea contains 46% Nitrogen. It is the most concentrated
solid Nitrogen fertilizer which is produced in prilled form. It is white in color
and is used for soil and foliar applications in all field crops, orchards and
turfs for healthy plant growth and improving crop yields. It is marketed in a
50 kg bag.
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Phosphatic Fertilizers
Engro NP plus

Engro NP Plus is an innovative formulation that contains Nitrogen and
Phosphorus in equal proportions (18:18) providing balanced growth in
terms of crop health and productivity.

Additionally, it has Boron and organic fillers. It helps in grain filling and
improves grain weight while controlling flower shedding. It is ideally suited
for soil application and broadcasting at the time of seed sowing as well as,
during early crop growth stage. It is marketed in a 50 kg bag.
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Engro DAP

Till 1994, Di-Ammonium Phosphate (DAP) was imported in Pakistan by the
fertilizer import department (FID) however, due to deregulation of imports the
private sector took over and EFERT became one of the largest importers in
the country.

Engro DAP is a compound fertilizer that has a Nitrogen to Phosphorus ratio
of 18:46. It is amongst the most widely used sources of Phosphorus in
Pakistan. It strengthens the roots of plants as well as, contributes to
flowering and fruit formation and enhances grain size and weight. EFERT has
been importing and marketing Engro DAP in the country since 1996. Engro
DAP complies with Pakistan Standards (PS) and only the best quality is
imported from renowned sources from around the world. This is the reason it
is a popular and trusted brand among farmers. It is marketed in a 50 kg bag.

Engro Zorawar

Engro Zorawar or Mono-Ammonium Phosphate (MAP) is a compound
fertilizer with high content of Phosphate (50%) and Nitrogen (10%).

It is in granular form and acidic in nature, having high solubility and efficiency
compared to other Phosphatic Fertilizers. Engro Zorawar supports seed
germination, strengthens root development and improves tillering in Wheat,
Rice and Sugarcane. In addition, it also helps in improving grain health in
cereals, gives more flowers and better fruiting in cotton, vegetables and fruit
trees. EFERT is the only company which imports MAP in the country. Due to
white color, it has less chances of adulteration. It is marketed in a 50 kg bag.

Specialty fertilizers are an extension of fertilizer's business with unique
products targeting higher crop productivity and fertilizer use efficiency.
Moreover, these fertilizers address malnutrition and contribute to Sustainable
Development Goal of Zero Hunger. They are new and innovative products
developed after research and development using state of the art technology.
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Engro Zarkhez

Majority of the soils in Pakistan are deficient in major nutrients especially in
Nitrogen, Phosphorous and Potassium.

As a result, yields and quality of fruits are low. EFERT has introduced
Engro Zarkhez which has all the three major nutrients in a balanced
proportion. The presence of all macro nutrients in one granule results in
efficient nutrient uptake. The application is convenient with a granular
nature for the farmers whether it is applied through manual application,
automatic or a planter. Engro Zarkhez is currently available in two different
variants which are Engro Zarkhez Plus and Engro Zarkhez Khaas. It is
marketed in a 50 kg bag.

Engro Zarkhez Plus

Has added organic fillers and bio stimulants which ensure prolonged
availability of nutrients resulting in higher yield and good quality of produce.

It has NPK in 8:23:18 ratio and it is used for all major crops. It is marketed in
a 50 kg bag

Engro Zarkhez Khaas

Engro Zarkhez Khaas is a unique recipe with Boron and Sulphur, enriched
with organic fillers and bio stimulants.

It has NPK in the ratio of 15:15:15 and it is used in fruit plants and orchards.
Engro Zarkhez Khaas improves fruit yield and quality, reduces flower and
fruit shedding. It is marketed in a 50 kg bag.

annual report 2023
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Engro Zingro

Zinc is a micronutrient which the crop requires in small dosages and it
complements the functions of major nutrients.

Over the years, Zinc deficiency has been well established on a variety of
crops especially, in rice. Use of Engro Zingro which, is a premium product,
results in quick response and improved crop yields due to improved Zinc
efficiency. It contains Zinc 33% and is a high purity fertilizer which, means it
is free from heavy metals. It is marketed in a 3 kg bag.

Engro Zabardast Urea

Engro Zabardast Urea launched in 2017, is yet another leap forward by
EFERT in pioneering next generation fertilizers in Pakistan.

This product is developed in collaboration with Niha Corp USA. It has a
unigue combination of Nitrogen (42%), Bioactive Zinc (1%) and a
consortium of beneficial microbes that mobilize nutrients in soil and enhance
crop resistance. Engro Zabardast Urea is beneficial for all the crops as it
increases crop yields, improves quality and enriches zinc contents in
produce. It is marketed in a 50 kg bag.

Engro MOP

In addition to potash based blended fertilizer, Potassium can also be applied
in the form of straight fertilizer out of which, one widely used potassium
fertilizer is Engro Muriate of Potash (MOP).

Engro MOP contains Potassium (60%) nutrient and is the most concentrated
form of granular potassium. It can be used in every type of soil except, saline
soils (which have high contents of chloride) and chloride sensitive crops like
Tobacco. It improves crop yields and develops resistance to diseases. It also
improves color, flavor and shelf-life of fruits and vegetables. It is marketed in
a 50 kg bag.
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Engro SOP

Engro SOP is a premium, chloride-free form of Potassium that can be applied
as a straight fertilizer.

Engro SOP is available in both Granular and Powder forms, targeting all
potash loving crops such as potato, maize, sugarcane, wheat, rice, cotton,
vegetables, fruits, orchards and tobacco. Engro SOP contains Potassium
(50%) nutrient and Sulphur (17.5%). Engro SOP not only improves quality and
crop Yyields, but also makes plants resilient to drought, frost, insects and
diseases. It is marketed in a 50 kg bag.
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Engro Ammonium Sulphate

Engro Ammonium Sulphate with Ammoniacal Nitrogen (20.6%) 21% and
Sulphur 24% is used primarily to fulfill the supplemental need of Nitrogen
and Sulphur in growing plants.

It is an acidic fertilizer which is highly soluble in water and contains plant-
preferred Sulphate form. Farmers are becoming increasingly aware of the
importance of Sulphur as a secondary nutrient as it helps in nutrient uptake
and increases resistance against diseases like fungal attacks. It is marketed
in a 50 kg bag.

Engro Zoron

Engro Zoron is a 100% water soluble fertilizer which contains 20% Boron as
an essential micronutrient.

It increases efficacy of other fertilizers, nourishes the plants, increases crop
yields, retains the shape of the produce, reduces flower and fruit shedding
as well as, improves overall quality. It can be used for soil or foliar
application. Engro Zoron is recommended for cotton, cereals (rice, maize,
oat), vegetables (onion, potato, tomato, cauliflower), fruits (apple, banana,
grapes, guava, apricot, pear, peach, plum), roses and other ornamental
plants. It is marketed in a 500-gm pack.
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Engro Potash Power

Engro Potash Power has a high composition of Potassium (44%) in addition
to Nitrogen (13%).

It is 100% water soluble and acidic in nature especially, designed for
high-efficiency drip irrigation system. It enables availability of other nutrients
to the soil and is suitable for both soil and foliar applications with high
efficiency irrigation system (Drip / Sprinkler / Pivot). Engro Potash Power
provides greater resistance against frost. It increases fruit size, fruit
appearance, organoleptic features and shelf life. Engro Potash Power is for
all crops including cotton, wheat, rice, sugarcane, sunflower, maize, flowers
and fruits at mid to late-stage application for improving health, yield, optimal
plant nutrition and overall quality. It is marketed in a 25 kg bag.

Engro Phos Power

Engro Phos Power, imported from Europe, is acidic in nature and 100%
water soluble which is specially designed for high-efficiency irrigation
system. It contains Phosphorous (44%) and Nitrogen (17 %).

It is a premium product, free from impurities which improves the availability
of calcium, magnesium and other trace elements to the plant. It can be used
for sail or foliar applications, and applied to all types of crops, orchards and
vegetables for improving health, vigor, yield and overall quality of produce. It
is marketed in a 25 kg bag.
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Engro SOP Power
SOP Power is imported, packaged, and sold directly by Engro Fertilizers Ltd.

The product contains 50% Potash and is 100% water soluble ensuring
maximum absorption of vital nutrients for Potash in all crops such as
Vegetables, Maize, Potato and Orchards.

SOP Power seamlessly integrates with drip irrigations systems, strengthens
roots, improves crop quality and reduces soil alkalinity instilling confidence in
farmers for optimal results. It is marketed in 25 kg bags.
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our history

Our story began in 1957 when Pak Stanvac — an Esso/Mobil joint venture — stumbled upon vast
deposits of natural gas in Mari while pursuing viable oil exploration in Sindh. Pak Stanvac’s focus
was exclusively on oil exploration, however, the discovery shifted the impetus to Esso, which
decided to invest in the massive industrial potential of Mari gas field. Esso proposed the
establishment of a giant urea plant in Daharki, about ten miles from the Mari gas fields, which
would use natural gas produced as its primary raw material to churn out urea fertilizer.

Talks with the Government of Pakistan bore fruit in 1964 and an agreement was signed allowing
Esso to set up a urea plant with an annual capacity of 173,000 tons. Esso brought in
state-of-the-art design, commercially tried facilities, and a highly distinguished pool of technical
expertise to ensure a smooth start-up. The total investment made was US $46M - it was the
single largest foreign investment made in Pakistan to date then. The plant started production on
December 4, 1968.

To boost sales, a full-fledged marketing organization was established which undertook
agronomic programs to educate farmers of Pakistan. As the nation’s first branded fertilizer
manufacturer, the Company helped modernize traditional farming practices and boost farm
yields, directly impacting the quality of life of the farmers, their families, and the nation at large.
Farmer educational programs increased the consumption of fertilizers in Pakistan, paving way
for the Company’s branded urea called “Engro” — an acronym for “Energy for Growth”.

In 1978, Esso became Exxon as part of an international name change. The Company was,
therefore, renamed Exxon Chemical Pakistan Limited. In 1991, Exxon decided to divest its
fertilizer business on a global basis. The employees of Exxon Chemical Pakistan Limited — in
partnership with leading international and local financial institutions — bought out Exxon’s 75%
equity. This was, and perhaps the most successful employee buy-out in Pakistan’s corporate
history to date. The company was renamed Engro Chemicals Pakistan Limited. The company
thrived with its consistent financial performance, growth of its core fertilizer business, and
diversification into other enterprises. A major plant capacity upgrade at Daharki coincided with
the employee-led buyout in 1991. Engro also relocated fertilizer manufacturing plants from the
UK and US to its Daharki plant site, done for the first time internationally. Over the years that
followed, Engro Chemicals Pakistan Limited started venturing into other sectors namely: foods,
energy, chemical storage, handling, trading, industrial automation, and petrochemicals.

Our Zarkhez Plant, situated at the Port Qasim Industrial Zone Karachi, was commissioned in the
year 2001 to produce Specialty Fertilizers for Pakistani Progressive farmers. It is not only
Pakistan's largest producer of blended NPK fertilizers but also a one of a kind plant, employing
steam granulation technology to produce specialty fertilizers. The Plant’s basic engineering
design was done by IFDC (International Fertilizer Development Center) USA, with installation
executed by CNCEC China. Its first on-spec production was achieved in June 2001. To help
cater to the overwhelming demand from the farmers for specialty fertilizers, the plant was
debottlenecked, increasing its nameplate capacity from 100KT to 145KT.
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By 2009, Engro was fast-growing and had already diversified its business portfolio in as many as
seven different industries. These continuous expansions necessitated a broad restructuring in
Engro Chemicals Pakistan Limited, which subsequently demerged to form a new Engro
subsidiary — Engro Fertilizers Limited.

After the necessary legal procedures and approvals, the Sindh High Court sanctioned the
demerger on December 9, 2009, which became effective from January 1, 2010. Subsequently,
all fertilizer business assets and liabilities have been transferred to Engro Fertilizers Limited
against the issue of shares to the parent company Engro Corporation Limited. The Company
undertook its largest urea expansion project in 2007.

The state-of-the-art plant EnVen 3.0, stands tall at 125 meters — dubbed as the tallest structure
in Pakistan. The total cost of this expansion was approximately US $1.1 billion, making Engro
one of the largest urea manufacturers in Pakistan. This has substantially reduced the cost of urea
imports to the national exchequer.

In 2013, the Company forayed into the capital markets to fund development capex on securing
additional gas supplies along with restructuring the balance sheet to optimize the capital
structure of the company. The IPO was a roaring success, oversubscribed four times in the
book-building process and three times during public issues.
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2023 at a glance

)

Highest ever annual 0.06 TRIR vs. a Zero TRIR at 22.8 million safe 5x increase in 3x increase in EFERT’s learning
urea production of target of 0.09 at Zarkhez manhours in the women in senior diversity ratio in 3 hours for the year
2.3 million metric EFERT Daharki Manufacturing Marketing Division leadership roles years reach a stellar total
tons Division for 4th across the of 22,758 for the
consecutive year organization year 2023

g

Shandaar Kissaan successfully Successfully moved over 3 Despite pricing challenges, we The Engro Humsafar app

engaged 4,722 farmers with soil million tons of product across achieved the highest ever sales crossed the milestone of

testing and nutrient advisory the country volumes with Zabardast Urea PKR 500 billion in orders

services for the betterment of reaching 400 KT urea sales and and PKR 300 billion

their crop yield NP Plus sales soaring by 38% Payments through internet
banking
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2023 at a glance

Achieved Highest
ever PAT of Rs. 26
billion vs previous
best of Rs 21 billion

Secured 3rd
position at the
Employer of Choice
— Gender Diversity
Awards held by
PBC and IFC

Awarded
prestigious RoSPA
Gold Award for the
third consecutive
year

Awarded the RoSPA
Fleet Safety ‘Gold’
Award for 2023,
marking its third
consecutive win

Soared to the 4th
position on the PSX’s
list of top 25
Companies, marking
our highest rank to
date

Awarded runner-up
position for the Best
Overall Safety
Program and Culture
Award at the EHS
Daily Advisor-US
Safety Standout
Awards 2023

\

Spearheaded more
than 300 trials for
new product
development

Achieved highest ever

Earned highest ever profitability of
revenue of Rs. 224 billion

Specialty Fertilizers Business of

Devoted Rs 578 million to

Executed highest ever 24-
corporate social responsibility

hr fertilizer discharge from

a vessel and shipment Rs. 3.7 billion Vs previous best of Rs.157
(14.04 Kt) within the billion

fertilizer industry of

Pakistan
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code of conduct

ethics & integrity

are one of the cardinal values of all Engro companies. Our history includes a
long-standing commitment to comply with all laws and to conduct our
business activities with the highest standards of ethics and integrity. It is not
only about complying with all laws but also describing the moral choices that
must be made in areas where the law is not clear. A host of policies have been
adopted by the Board of Directors of the company in this regard.

empowerment with accountability

Each Engro employee is responsible for his/ her behavior and will be held
accountable for it. All employees are bound to submit an ethics compliance
certificate. We are responsible for complying with all applicable laws and
company policies & procedures.

our commitment to engro’s stakeholders

We adhere to the highest ethical standards, foster trust, and always act in the
best interest of our shareholders, our customers, our families, our vendors/
suppliers, the communities where we operate, and each other. We want our
stakeholders to know they can depend on us.

promoting a positive work environment

To ensure a workplace where employees feel safe, respected, and appreciated.
We aim to attract, induct, develop, retain, and motivate high caliber talent who
is qualified, capable, and willing to contribute towards the achievement of
company objectives. Engro is committed to being a harassment-free
workplace and has strict laws against any form of inappropriate conduct in
order to ensure a safe workplace and the protection of the environment.
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soliciting customers, suppliers, vendors, and contractors
Employees will not solicit vendors and suppliers, or avail offers for anything of
value that could be perceived to create obligations in order to keep, increase,
or obtain Engro business. Actions that might involve a conflict of interest, or the
appearance of one, will be disclosed to senior management.

legal compliance

When making decisions to conduct business, employees must ensure they are
aware of their actions and choose not to violate the law. All Engro companies
hold information and training sessions to promote legal compliance and have
systems in place to monitor and report violations.

~

protecting the company’s assets

We must use the Company’s physical assets/ equipment carefully and
diligently and take steps to protect our Company’s proprietary and confidential
information.

managing business relationships

Employees’ dealings with customers, suppliers, contractors, competitors, or
any person or organization doing or seeking to do business with the Company
(our business interfaces) must be in the best interest of the Company, must
exclude any consideration of personal preference or advantage, and must
avoid conflicts of interest, apparent or otherwise.

annual report 2023
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At engro we never forget what
we stand for. Our core
values are:

health, safety
& environment

Cares deeply about environmental
impact and safety of people

ethics
& integrity

Has impeccable character and lives
by highest standards of integrity and
accountability

community
- \ /
our core values & society PV
Nurtures passion to serve country,
At Engro, we support our leadership culture through unique systems and community and company, with strong i [ E ;:
policies which ensure open communication, foster an environment of belief in the dignity and value of people -

employee and partner privacy, and guarantee the well-being and safety of
our employees. Our core values form the basis of everything we do at
Engro, from formal decision making to how we conduct our business to
spot awards and recognition.
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code of ethics

The policy of Engro, as stated by the Board of Directors, is one of the strict observance of
all laws applicable to its business. Strong ethical practices have been fundamental to
Engro’s philosophy and operations. Engro embodies corporate integrity; all its employees
are expected to abide by our ethical principles embedded in the ‘Statement of Ethics and
Responsible Business Conduct’.

For these purposes, EFERT has an exclusive department of “Ethics & Compliance” to
make sure all dealings and day to day activities are done most ethically. Additionally, the
department has launched “The Ethics & Compliance” newsletter to keep the employees
abreast of the latest developments at the Compliance front. The company has a robust
whistleblower system in place where employees are encouraged to report any violations
of the code of conduct or misconduct. The platform is also available externally. All
violations reported are independently handled and investigated by thr Ethics &
Compliance department.

Our Code of Conduct lists Ethics as one of our core values, therefore Engro has a
zero-tolerance policy towards any form of discrimination and harassment. Similarly,
honesty and open communication is also expected on the reporting front.

We believe it is essential for everyone associated with Engro to embrace this culture and
live by the highest standards of integrity and accountability.
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key performance highlights 2023 awards & recognitions

2023 2023
Generated 2022 2022 it 2023 1
43,312, 157,017.. WINNER U
- F e Health and Safety Awarc
Net Profit 26, 1 91 . enerated 60,555 . Environmental Health and Safety Award
After Tax . rom " -
1 6,003 . operations 31 ,634 . Engro Fertilizer Ltd - Manufacturing Division
2023 2023
. Secured Finalist position Best ESG Won Environment Health & Safety Award
\Elclonoprgig d 1 6,746mn ROE 56'35 % Campaign for the ESG Awards 2023 held and secured the Finalist position for the
aiue e 9 2372022 34 742022 by UNICEPTA. Safety Culture Award at the Business
- mn L 37 Awards UK.
2023 2023
Dividend 1 7-5 Earning 1 9-61
Distributed Sh
Per Share 2022 per are 2022
13.50 11.98
2023 2023 2023 L! {
eroa 995091, | Maret share 35. FINALIST  AWAR05
39 6222022 - UREA 292022 Health and Safety Awards
H mn % Safety Culture Excellence Award
. Py Engro Fertilizer Ltd - Manufacturing Division
Return on Assets 1 7'1 E g:gguction 2!31 3
2022 2022
11.5. 1 ,954 KT Soared to the 4th position on the PSX’s list Awarded runner-up position for the Best
of top 25 Companies, marking our highest Overall Safety Program and Culture Award
2023 2023 rank to date. at the EHS Daily Advisor-US Safety
Standout Awards 2023.
Urea Sales 2,327KT ghlosphates 365 KT andout Awaras
2022 aies 2022
1935« 333«
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Won Most Preferred Employer in the Awarded 1st place for Best Practices in Awarded prestigious RoSPA Gold Award for Awarded the RoSPA Fleet Safety ‘Gold’
Manufacturing Sector at the Best Place to Occupational Safety, Health, and the third consecutive year. Award for 2023, marking its third
Work Pakistan Awards 2023. Environment in the Chemical, consecutive win.
Petrochemical, Processing & Allied Sector
at the OSHE Awards by the Employers
Federation Pakistan.

) A N8
; :
|
Won prestigious Amir S. Chinoy award at Secured 3rd position at the Employer of 14 Wins at the Global Diversity Equity Ranked amongst the top 5 Most Inclusive
the 38th MAP Corporate Excellence Choice — Gender Diversity Awards held by Inclusion Benchmark (GDEIB) Awards by Companies for 2023 at the Global Diversity
Awards. PBC and IFC. HR Metrics Equity Inclusion Benchmark Awards for the

7th consecutive year.

49 | enriching Pakistan engro fertilizers limited annual report 2023 enriching Pakistan I 50




corporate affiliations and memberships our business model

Through consistent efforts of the management and support from our shareholders, EFERT
continues to deliver sustainable growth by focusing on improving operational excellence, delivering
product innovation, generating strong market research, and fostering relationships with the
communities it operates in.

v ®
QY) I fa F M MC : | nsc Our key stakeholders include suppliers of our primary raw materials, natural gas suppliers, banking
FER

INTERATCHAL Fertilizer Manufacturers of National Safety Coundil partners, shareholders, our workforce, customers, logistic partners and the communities

Pakistan Advisory Council surrounding our operational locations.

EFERT takes pride in the sizeable investments we have made in our manufacturing facilities over the
past few years, which have allowed us to improve our operational efficiency, thereby, increasing the

PAKISTAN :i E : E”'k. t value we derive from our inputs. This has also helped the Company play an important role in
ma E:.SEEII{IF'LIEANL 4+ -4+ B?:l "ill?lfﬂir‘: improving food security of Pakistan.

- .C_ﬂ}] Tl cil The company views product innovation as a key enabler for sustainable growth and has hence
Pt i e g e WA continued to focus on creating a diverse range of fertilizer solutions for the farmers of Pakistan. Our
Zabardast Urea portfolio has also continued to exhibit strong growth and is playing a critical role in
increasing farmer yields.

"y
1

Management Association of Pakistan

Over the years, we have also developed an extensive dealer and warehousing network. This
network plays a very important role in ensuring that our products is available all over Pakistan and

F E RTI N AG R 0 act as key partners in ensuring that we achieve our sales targets and sustainable operations.
UNIVERSITY OF == *

AGRICULTURE -"- . EFERT strongly believes in “doing well, while doing good” and as a result continues to invest heavily
FAISALABAD- PAKISTAN (ST in the development of the communities we operate in. During the year, EFERT delivered several
CSR initiatives that have been described in detail in the “Directors’ Report”.

EFERT is committed to making meaningful contributions to the country's agricultural landscape.
Simultaneously, we aim to deliver sustainable returns for our stakeholders, reflecting a core element
of our business model.
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Capitals & Key inputs Capitals & Key inputs

financial social and relationship

- Equity: PKR 48 Billion Relations with our stakeholders (customers, suppliers, investors etc) and local community:
- Long-term debt: PKR 6 Billion

- Representations and associations with external bodies

manufactured/ infrastructural capital - Dealers / Distributors: 3,000+
- Dealer shops branding to increase engagement
- Manufacturing facilities: 2 - No. of Shareholders: 31,820
- Production Capacity: 2,275,000 MT Urea; 100,000 MT NPK - Constant efforts to improve the socio-economic status of the communities we operate in
- No of selling locations: 80+ - Various local and international R&D partners
- Fleet of 190+ trucks in our Elogistics business
- Market Channels: Primary and Secondary via dealers/ distributors Refer to subsection corporate memberships and affiliations section of this report for list of memberships

human resource

No.of employees: 1214 I ——

- Hiring the top resources to generate maximum value financial:
- Positive culture to keep employees motivated
- Extensive training to ensure employee growth and optimize their performance Wealth generation and economic growth

- Strong HSE practices to ensure employee safety

- Total revenue: PKR 224 Billion

natural - Operating cashflows: PKR 61 Billion
- Salaries: PKR 7 Billion
Availability of required materials for the business operations - Dividends: PKR 23 Billion
- Natural Gas - Economic value added: PKR 17 Billion
- Minerals for Catalyst and Chemicals - Wealth generated: PKR 78 Billion
- Water - Contribution to National Exchequer: PKR 35 Billion
- Materials - Strong focus on cost optimization helping deliver sustainable returns
intellectual customers
- Strong brand and corporate image - Trust based relationships with all stakeholders
- Investment in intangibles & externally purchased proprietary rights - PKR 5,184 Million - High level of customer satisfaction
- Investment in ERP and data analysis systems - Smallholder farmer development through our Shandaar Kissan program and other engagement
- Investment in Humsafar (Sales), field force management, fleet management and Velocity (HSE) softwares
- Talented leadership events
- Highly capable workforce
- Agronomy department for market research and industry intelligence - Refer social performance section detailing efforts for our farmers’
- R&D department for new product development - Innovative product lines heloping farmers achieve higher yields

environment

- Continuous investment in manufacturing facilities to improve operational efficiency, leading to
sustainable usage of scarce raw materials

- Implementing environmentally friendly practices.

- Responsible energy consumption with increased focus on renewable energy

- Innovative cooling water system enabling reusability 615 million tons per annum
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| Outcomes catnomie, and smonmental o Susiainapie development on &l fronis fneluding socil
economic, and environmental.

community

- CSR contribution: PKR 578 Million economic: .
- Contribution to national food security through supply of fertilizers: 35% » Total reyenue: PKR 224 Billion .
- Operational excellence with highest safety standards leading to low injury/fatality rates # Operating cashflows: PKR 61 Billion
- Trust based relationships with all stakeholders » Salaries: PKR 7 Billion
e Economic value added: PKR 17 Billion
e Wealth generated: PKR 77 Billion
# Contribution to National Exchequer: PKR 35 Billion
l/] l . '"|-.= [ # Strong focus on cost optimization helping deliver sustainable returns
® - e 1% environmental:
i b— + Continuous investment in manufacturing facilities to improve operational efficiency, leading to

continous optimization of
manufacturing facilities

B
.1.Ia.n

; sustainable usage of scarce raw materials
community engagement K i i i
we work with our + |mplementing environmentally friendly practices.

employees and local

s IO + Responsible energy consumption with increased focus on renewable energy
Company to enhance # Innovative cooling water system enabling reusability 615 million tons per annum

trusted partner for
stakeholders.

social:
# CSR contribution: PKR 578 Million
# Contribution to national food security through supply of fertilizers: 35%
product use # Operational excellence with highest safety standards leading to low injury/fatality rates
we work with . . .
fermers to mprove * Trust based relationships with all stakeholders
farmers’ incomes. * Employee engagement: 86%

grpo;gr?m?t?es . distribution

thi h lit we work with our
prg)duL?ctsq \L,Jv?trlqy dealers to reach
wider distribution customers.
networks.

transportation
we transport our products
through our contractors.
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significant factors affecting the
external environment (PESTEL)

Geo-political tensions between other countries, as also witnessed through the year, may result in
supply disruptions leading to price volatility with a negative pass-through effect on EFERT’s
customers

Discourse/Impact: Strategic and timely procurement of imported fertilizer keeping in mind the
geo-political situation in order to maintain price stability.

Enhancements / Initiation of any major gas projects will positively influence the availability of
EFERT’s primary raw material.

Discourse/Impact: Continued Engagement with the government to pursue sustainable gas
availability.

Change of Government introduces economic changes, which can impact the farmers at large.
Discourse/Impact: Engage with the government to enhance farmer economics and sustainable
agriculture

Policy makeovers and regulatory changes with respect to agriculture policies and tax laws,
consequently impacting business economics.

Discourse/Impact: Work closely with the government and the farmers to provide necessary inputs
into the policy-making process.

political

Discourse/ Impact: Strategic and cost-effective procurement and production will minimize the
costs of production, reducing the price burden for Farmers

Pakistan has low farm yields which can be explored with structured locally based agri-value
chains, expanding operational capacity and output productivity.
Discourse/Impact: Assess hindrances and collaborate with farmers for holistic solutions.

FX changes adversely impact the dollar-linked prices of primary raw materials and imports.
Discourse/Impact: Strategic procurement and considerate pricing decisions could lead to
avoidance of the full impact of these fluctuations.

Rising interest rates inflate cost of borrowing for the Company, also aggravating costs for farmers
operating on credit.

Discourse/Impact: Timely and strategic drawdowns and repayment, resulting in effective
management of finance costs. Low-cost agri financing for small farmers.

Dwindling Foreign Reserves create challenges in paying suppliers for the import of Raw Materials.

Discourse/ Impact: Work closely with the government and State Bank to ensure essential supplies
are green-flagged to avoid the impact of these shortages.

Evolving tax policies may impact the company's cost structure.

Discourse: Examine the implications of recent tax changes, assess the effectiveness of
government incentives, and evaluate how tax dynamics influence the fertilizer industry's
competitiveness

Major economic fluctuations can affect fertilizer demand.

Discourse/ Impact: Explore the correlation between GDP growth and fertilizer demand, analysing
government initiatives and assessing the company's alignment with economic development
goals.

N\

economic

Not coping with technological advancements, may create operational inefficiencies and
competitive disadvantages.

Discourse/Impact: continues to establish technological benchmarks investing in the latest
advancements and developing its infrastructure capabilities. Improved plant efficiencies towards
output generation front.

The farming industry of Pakistan is behind latest practices / advancements due to a lack of
awareness and conservative practices.

Discourse/Impact: Continue to educate farmers on the latest Agri technology, balanced nutrients,
and modern farm practices to support improved yields. Awareness among farmers has positive
sustainable consequences.

Early adoption of smart apps in the Fertilizer ecosystem has digitized the way of doing business.
Discourse / Impact: Operations are now remote work friendly, creating ease of doing business and
efficient data tools available for dealers to better deliver value to farmers

Nitrogen and Phosphorous deficient soil in Pakistan results in increased demand for fertilizers.
Discourse/Impact: Increased reliance on Urea and DAP fertilizers provides an opportunity to
continue addressing enhanced and consistent demand. Continue to provide a diversified portfolio
of specialty fertilizers that can address special soil/crop needs.

Water supply is attributed as a scarce resource in Pakistan, leading to a hindrance in the farming
process, adversely affecting fertilizer consumers.

Discourse/Impact: Continually educating the farmers regarding efficient water use as well as
increased use of water efficient crops. EFERT provides Agri solutions to farmers through trained
operational staff and technologically advanced machineries ensuring more efficient sowing to
harvesting operations.

technological

An imbalance in the political or social environment can lead to social unrest in the neighbouring
areas of the operational facility.

Discourse/Impact: Efforts to contribute to sustainable development and upliftment of the target
communities, to ensure mitigation of any flashpoints which may adversely impact our assets

Increased reliance of farmers on Urea, resulting in an unbalanced consumption of nutrients,
affecting the ‘P’ and ‘K’ markets.

Discourse/Impact: Enhanced focus on increasing awareness through effective dissemination of
information. The Company has initiated various learning programs including the Shandaar Kisaan
Program selecting the top 100-200 farmers for trainings (number TBC)

An very high policy rate further aggravated by a depreciated rupee leads to an increasingly
inflationary economy, keeping buying power depressed.
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Nitrogen and Phosphorous deficient soil in Pakistan results in increased demand for fertilizers.
Discourse/Impact: Increased reliance on Urea and DAP fertilizers provides an opportunity to
continue addressing enhanced and consistent demand. Continue to provide a diversified portfolio
of specialty fertilizers that can address special soil/crop needs.

Water supply is attributed as a scarce resource in Pakistan, leading to a hindrance in the farming
process, adversely affecting fertilizer consumers.

Discourse/Impact: Continually educating the farmers regarding efficient water use as well as
increased use of water efficient crops. EFERT provides Agri solutions to farmers through trained
operational staff and technologically advanced machineries ensuring more efficient sowing to
harvesting operations.

Climate change may create further adverse weather conditions during wet seasons.
Discourse / Impact: Raise awareness at the government level for the need for early warning
systems and improvement of irrigation channels/ systems to reduce overflow into fertile land

environmental

Laws, Legislative amendments, and rulings relating to crucial cost components such as GIDC/gas
prices, freight regimes and revisions in sales, income tax regulations pertaining to unregistered
dealers and other legal regulatory frameworks, significantly impact the costs of fertilizer
manufacturers.

Discourse/Impact: Continued engagement with the Government for sustainable solutions that
benefit all related stakeholders. The Company has always supported the Government in its drive
to widen the tax net, therefore, the company has conducted various engagement sessions with
dealers across Pakistan to encourage them to register for income and sales tax to mitigate the
impact of these amendments
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SWOT analysis

-

~= strengths

Strong Brand Recognition and Farmer
Ecosystem penetration.

Only fertilizer company to have all macro
(NPK) and Micro (Zinc, Boron, Sulphur)
nutrients in their product portfolio.

Being a forward-looking fertilizer company,
we have a separate Speciality (Innovative)
Fertilizers unit with the largest speciality
fertilizers volume (~500KT).

Wide product and services portfolio, offering
farmers complete range of seed to harvest
solutions.

A dedicated Fertilizer R&D unit that at any
time is evaluating/conducting trials of at
least 10 innovative products.

Financial sustainability and strong balance
sheet position.

Diverse, well-equipped functions for data
gathering and accurate decision making.
State of the art ERP system providing
pertinent information for timely decision
making.

Access to subject matter experts and a
talent pool from different backgrounds
based on gender, diversity, and inclusion.
Quality and efficiency of Human Resource.
Renowned engineering excellence.
Competitive advantage by virtue of being
one of few Pakistan suppliers of logistics
service.

L

~= Weaknesses

Stable Urea industry limits upside potential
due to swing factors.

Reliance on depleting and inconsistent
supply of natural resource.

Non-Urea verticals are heavily price elastic
with limited market awareness and demand
size.

Farmer connect only limited to soil sampling
and nutrient-based farm advisory, while
several other agri-based startups are
offering technologically advanced services.
Dealer network remains the only major
source of fertilizer distribution.
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opportunities

Access to foreign markets allowing higher
market share and contribution to the
Country's foreign exchange reserves.
Improved capacity utilization through
enhancement of manufacturing and
production range.

Capacity to build horizontal and vertical
integrations, improving on the Company's
supply chain.

Providing access to the international market
for high value crops (fruits and vegetables),
by leveraging the current farmer base.
Leverage existing networks to facilitate new
products.

Establish JVs & partnerships to create
synergies.

Potential to minimize energy bills by
investing in renewable and efficient energy.
Identify alternate sources of raw materials.
Upside in non-Urea verticals as Farmer
awareness and best practices evolve and
improve.

Develop and offer end-to-end value chain
solutions to farmers on a large scale.

annual report 2023
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threats

Challenges in implementation of phosphatic
subsidy impacting demand.

Inconsistent gas supply and elevating costs
of production.

Devaluation resulting in increased cost of
doing business.

Urea pilferages creating supply shortages
for the farmer.

Tightening regulations on fertilizer industry in
terms of pricing, quality, and distribution.
Axle-Load implementation has influenced
Trucking availability (Demand vs Supply) in
2023 along with higher Freight rates.
Inconsistent Government policies and
pressures on fertilizer pricing.
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how we create value

EFERT takes pride in leveraging natural resources to craft value-added products and foster
community well-being. At Engro Fertilizers, our commitment to ensure seamless collaboration
between our resources and valued customers forms the foundation of a robust and sustainable
value chain. This collaboration ensures functional efficiency and facilitates continuous improvement
at every stage.

Our engagement with stakeholders is pivotal, with their feedback playing a crucial role in refining our
value chain. This iterative process not only aligns with our commitment to delivering sustainable
returns for our shareholders but also propels us toward a goal of holistic value creation. The Value
Chain at Engro Fertilizers serves as a dynamic framework, guiding our business actions and
illustrating the intricate process of value creation at each organizational level.

In our unwavering pursuit of continuous and sustainable development, we actively involve
stakeholders, recognizing the invaluable role they play. Simultaneously, our consistent collaboration
with business partners strengthens our relationships, creating a harmonious ecosystem that
benefits all parties involved. Our vision extends beyond environmental sustainability to encompass
delivering tangible value to our customers.

Through strategic positioning and optimization within the value chain, we ensure that our products
not only meet the highest standards of quality but also directly address the needs and preferences
of our customers. From innovative product development to efficient distribution channels, our value
chain is tailored to enhance the overall customer experience. We are dedicated to evolving our value
chain continually, adapting to market dynamics and emerging trends, to remain at the forefront of
delivering unparalleled value to our customers.

UPSTREAM Suppliers of natural gas and packaging material

VALUE CHAIN

e We engage with our supplies and collaborate for creating value added.
products for our value chain

Research and development partner

e We collaborate with National and International R&D partner to develop
quality products and to serve the agri-value chain.

ENGRO Manufacturing
FERTILIZERS Capital Inputs undergo processing to produce fertilizers
LIMITED

e EFERT has a designed annual capacity of 2.275 million MT.
e Achieved the highest ever production this year of 2.313 million MT.
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Transportation
Robust transportation network, both in-house and outsourced delivers
efficiently

* Robust setup of transportation channels over the country for timely
distribution.

e EFERT has also ventured into the Logistics paradigm, with 190+ trucks,
aiming to provide “Movement with Precision” and already has one of the
leading long haul fleets in the country.

Warehousing

e 80+ selling locations to better serve our customers

DOWNSTREAM Distribution
VALUE CHAIN
An articulate network of dealers for EFERT’s product range

e Wide distribution network throughout the country to improve the
availability of our brand at all purchase points.

e With over 3300+ locations, EFERT closely collaborates with dealers in
providing value to our consumers.

Consumers
Farmers benefit from the availability of fertilizer and high yields.

e EFERT captured a market share of 35% for Urea and 18% for
Phosphates during the year.
Farmer advisory services and development of smallholder farmers
Consumer analytics serve as a crucial insight hence EFERT conducts
consumer satisfaction every year.
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STAKEHOLDERS
Value is created for
our stakeholders
through profits,
growth and
sustainability

COMMUNITY
Uplifting lives and
contributing to the
community's
well-being is at the
heart of EFERT's
operations
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Effects of our Value Generating Activities

EFERT earned a profit after tax of Rs. 26 Billion.

EFERT declared a dividend per share of Rs. 20.5/share (final dividend
pending members approval in AGM)

ROE: 56.3%

ROCE: 46.9%

Earnings per share: Rs. 19.61

Dividend distributed: Rs. 17.5 per share

Wealth generated Rs. 77.5 Billion

On group engagements with our stakeholder

EFERT has always been a purpose driven organization, striving to improve
the lives of people living in low-income communities with impact
investments.

EFERT undertakes community engagement to deliver a positive impact in
Pakistan with a focus on, but not limited to, the following:

e Community investment and infrastructure development

e Education & Environment

® General & Healthcare

engro fertilizers limited
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anchored
to greatness

corporate governance



our governance framework

We are committed to implementing sound corporate governance practices that enhance the
effectiveness of our board and management while engaging with our board and management while
engaging with our shareholders on matters of corporate governance.

board structure
& governance

director

elections

director 1.
o IR

participation £,

°

key stakeholders
engagement

corporate social
responsibility

ethical compliance &
whistle blowing system
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board composition

board composition
The composition of Board of Directors is as follows:

Mr. Ghias Khan Non-Executive Director-Chairman
Mr. Ahsan Zafar Syed Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Javed Akbar Non-Executive Director

Mr. Farooq Barkat Ali* Non-Executive Director

Mr. Asad Said Jafar Independent Director

Mr. Asim Murtaza Khan Independent Director

Ms. Danish Zuberi** Independent Director

* Mr. Farooq Barkat Ali was appointed as Non-Executive Director in place of Mr. Khawaja Bilal Hussain who resigned on
September 24, 2023.

**Ms. Danish Zuberi was appointed Independent Director on November 1, 2023 in place of Dr. Shamshad Akhtar who
resigned on August 23, 2023.

There is one casual vacancy on the board as of December 31, 2023

board committees

Our governance framework is designed to ensure that the company lives up to its core values and
principles, institutionalizing EFERT’s commitment to enabling excellence in everything we do.

The Board has established the following two committees:

board people committee (BPC)

The Committee met during the year to approve, review and recommend all elements of the
Compensation, Organization and Employee Development policies relating to the senior executive’s
remuneration and to approve all matters related to the remuneration of the executives of the
company and members of the management committee.

The Chief Executive Officer attends Board People Committee meetings by invitation. The
committee met four times during the financial year 2023.

Current members:
e Mr. Asim Murtaza Khan — Chairman e Mr. Javed Akbar # Mr. Ghias Khan

Salient features of terms of reference

# To ensure corporate standards / human resource policies and fundamental beliefs are aligned
with the corporate guidelines.

* To recommend the selection, performance evaluation, compensation,
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* Recommend the salary and bonus programme to the Board.
* Review engagement survey results

board audit committee (BAC)

The Committee meets at least once every quarter and assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities, primarily in reviewing and reporting financial and non-financial information to
shareholders, systems of internal control and risk management and the audit process. It has the
power to call for information from management and to consult directly with the external auditors or
their advisors as considered appropriate.

The Chief Financial Officer regularly attends the Board Audit Committee meetings by invitation to
present the financial statements. After each meeting, the Chairman of the Committee reports to the
Board. The Committee met five times during the financial year 2023.

Current members
*Mr. Asad Said Jafar — Chairman # Mr. Javed Akbar # Mr. Asim Murtaza Khan

salient features of terms of reference

To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of external auditors

To review quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements

To review the internal control systems and internal audit function

To review the enterprise risk management system and assess the adequacy and monitoring of
the same by the management.

To monitor management’s compliance with all Company policies including complaints received
through the Speak Out — Whistle Blower policy

To monitor compliance with statutory requirements

L. 20 20 2 BB B J
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board of directors

The Board of Directors carries out its duties with a sense of objective judgment and in good faith in
the best interests of the Company and its stakeholders. There are eight (8) numbers of Directors on
the Board, comprising three (3) Independent Directors, four (4) Non-Executive Directors and one (1)
Chief Executive Officer. There is one casual vacancy on the board as of December 31, 2023

chief executive officer

The Board collectively has the responsibility for ensuring that the affairs of the Company are
governed competently and with integrity. Biographical details of all the Directors are given in the
previous section.

In compliance with best practices of corporate governance, the positions of the Chairman of the
Board of Directors and the office of the Chief Executive are held by a separate person. Mr. Ghias
Khan, Non-Executive Director, is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Ahsan Zafar Syed is the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company. In addition to being the CEO of the Company, Mr. Ahsan
Zafar Syed serves as a Director on the Boards of:
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Efert Agritrade Private Limited (CEO)
Elengy Terminal Pakistan Limited

Engro Vopak Terminal Limited

Tenaga Generasi Limited

Engro Elengy Terminal (Pvt.) Limited
Engro Foundation

Engro Power Services Limited (NIGERIA)

L 20 20 2 BB B B

role of the highest governance body in overseeing the management of impacts

The Board meets at least quarterly to assess the performance of the Company, roles and
responsibilities of the Board can be referred from the Chairman’s letter to directors, shared in the
Annual Report 2023.

The role of the highest governance body in reviewing the effectiveness of the organization's
processes and reporting the frequency of this review.

This task is performed by Board Audit Committee which meets at least once during each quarter,
please refer to BAC TORs for details.

board nomination and selection

selection of independent directors

The selection of independent directors is carried out from a list maintained by the Pakistan Institute
of Corporate Governance (PICG) under the Companies (Manner and Selection of Independent
Directors) Regulations, 2018. PICG has no other connections with the Company, except for
providing access to the database on independent directors besides Directors’ training and
evaluation of Board and/or individual Directors’ performance.

external consultancy for appointment of the Chairman
No external search consultancy has been used in the appointment of the Chairman or
Non-Executive Directors.

directors’ orientation program

The Chairman had communicated in detail the duties, roles and responsibilities, powers, term of
office and remuneration of Directors required under the Companies Act, 2017, the Articles of the
Company and the Code of Corporate Governance Regulation, 2019.

The human resource department outlines a formal orientation plan, which is followed at the time of
induction of a new Board member. The orientation is presented to bring the new Board member up
to speed with the company and its activities. Divisional heads take them through a presentation
about macro-level policies related to their respective divisions. During the year, the orientation of
Ms. Danish Zuberi was conducted by the management.
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directors’ training

The Board ensures that all its Directors have duly completed the Directors’ Training program from
SECP approved institutions. The Director’s Training Program has been completed by all Directors,
Mr. Ahsan Zafar Syed attended the director’s training during the year 2023, from SECP approved
institution.

board meetings held outside of pakistan.
No meetings were held outside Pakistan during the year.

chair of the board

Mr. Ghias Khan is the Chairman of the Board. In compliance with best practices of corporate
governance, the positions of the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the office of the Chief
Executive are held by separate people.

leading from the front: role of the chairman of the board

Every meeting of the Board is presided over by a Chairman. The chairman of a Board meeting by
virtue of his position and nature of his duties is responsible for the leadership of the board and to
ensure that the board plays an effective role in fulfilling its responsibilities and amongst other things,
he is empowered to:

* ssue a letter to Directors setting out their roles, obligations, powers and responsibilities at the
beginning of the term of each Director

* set the agenda of the meeting of the Board and ensure that reasonable time is available for
discussion of the same

* ensure that the minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors are kept in accordance with the
requirements of Sections 178 and 179 of the Companies Act, 2017

chairman’s significant commitments

Mr. Ghias Khan is the CEO of Engro Corporation Limited and serves on the boards of several other
companies. The details of his other engagements as Director and Trustee are given in his profile. He
does not have any significant commitment other than the one mentioned in his profile.

role of board in sustainability reporting
delegation of responsibilities

matters decided and delegated by the board of directors.

The Board is committed to ensuring the effective delegation of financial powers as is permissible
according to the legal framework and has approved formal policy on the delegation of financial
powers.

This policy establishes:
* Matters specifically reserved for determination by the Board of Directors; and
* Matters delegated to the management to empower it to act effectively and make key decisions
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The powers of the Board of Directors and the management of the Company have been defined in
the said policy with special reference to and in compliance with, the Companies Act, 2017, the
Code of Corporate Governance Regulations, 2019 and the Articles of Association of the Company.

In addition to approving the vision, core values, corporate strategy and the policies for conduct of
business of the Company, matters specifically reserved for the Board in relation to delegation of
financial powers are listed below:

* Investment and disinvestment of funds where the maturity period of such investments is six
months or more.

# Determination of the nature of loans and advances made by the company and fixing a monetary
limit thereof.

* Defining the level of materiality, keeping in view the specific circumstances of the company and

the recommendations of any technical or executive sub-committee of the Board that may be set

up for the purpose.

Review and approval of related party transactions.

Appointment, removal, remuneration, terms and conditions of employment of Chief Executive

Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit.

* Constitution of committees and appointment of Committee Chairs and approving their terms of
reference.

* Governance of risk and determining Company’s level of risk tolerance including annual review.

Powers vested with the Board as per Section 183 of the Companies Act, 2017 and

Significant issues to be placed for decision of the Board of Directors as per Clause 14 of the

Code of Code of Corporate Governance Regulations, 2019, as and when applicable.

L 2
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matters delegated to the management

All matters not specifically reserved for the Board and have been entrusted to the CEO of the
Company who has the primary responsibility for routine business operations of the Company. The
authorities necessary for the day-to-day management of the organization and the implementation of
corporate objectives have been delegated to management of the Company and is documented in
form of a Limits of Authority Manual (LOAM).

collective knowledge of the highest governance body

The Board is routinely informed and upskilled on relevant and pressing matters to the company,
including those related to sustainability. During 2023, the Board has briefed external consultants on
sustainability-related matters.

conflict of interest among board members

A formal code of conduct is in place that promotes an ethical culture in the company and prevents
conflict of interest in the capacity as a member of the board. Further, the Board of Directors has duly
complied with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and the
‘Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework’ of the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan. Each member of the Board accordingly understands its fiduciary responsibilities including
the following:
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# Duty not to place themselves in a position of conflict between their personal interests and those
of the company - this includes the duty to disclose any such personal interests to the Company
and the duty not to make secret and/or incidental profits at the expense of the company.

* Duty not to act on behalf of the Company in any matter in which they have an interest that
conflicts, or may conflict, with their duties.

* The Directors of the Company excuse themselves from the meetings when the matters under
discussion involve a conflict or potential conflict of interest with the activities of any undertaking
in which they may hold a real or beneficial interest.

communication of critical concern
Critical concerns are reported to the Board primarily through board meetings.

board evaluation

performance evaluation of directors

The Board has developed a formal mechanism for evaluation of the board’s own performance,
members of the board and of its committees. The assessment was carried out five times in the
current year and the results/feedback were evaluated to bring improvement in the evaluation
process. The performance evaluation focuses on:

Clarity of agenda and objectives.
Preparation for the meetings.
Quality and diversity of discussions:
Clarity of decisions and outcomes.
Quality of discussion topics; and
Overall satisfaction
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performance evaluation of CEO

Performance of the CEOQ is evaluated through a comprehensive inhouse evaluation structure, which
measures performance based on specific, measurable, achievable, realistic and time bound
objectives. Furthermore, the performance of the CEO is also gauged by analyzing core
competencies exhibited in achieving the objectives.

retention of board fee

CEO is a deemed director on EFERT’s Board and holds the position as non-executive director on
the Boards of various other companies. Fees paid by these companies are in line with their
respective policies as approved by their Boards of Directors. EFERT does not have any policy that
restricts an executive director from retaining the meeting fee earned by them against services as a
non-executive director in other companies.

evaluation of the performance of the highest governance body

The feedback provided by the Board is intended for internal management use and primarily pertains
to the conduct of the meeting and the quality of information presented to assist the Board in making
crucial decisions.
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director’s remuneration

The Board of Directors have approved a formal policy which set out the requirements and
methodology for determining the remuneration for Non-Executive Directors including Independent
Directors of the Company.

The policy entails:

* The remuneration shall be appropriate and commensurate with the level of responsibility and
expertise of the Directors.

* |t shall be aimed at attracting and retaining the Directors needed to govern the Company
successfully and to encourage value addition.

* [t shall not be at a level that could be perceived to compromise or influence in any way the
independence of the Director.

# No Director shall determine his/her own remuneration nor of a Director who may be a related
party.

* No remuneration shall be paid to Executive Directors, Chief Executive Officer and
Non-Executive Directors who are employees in other Engro entities, for attending meetings of
the Board and its committees; and

* The Board, if deems appropriate, may engage an independent consultant to determine the
appropriate level of remuneration of its Directors and recommend it to the Board for
consideration and approval.

The Company has a documented policy that generally restricts employees from holding
directorships in companies that are not subsidiaries or joint ventures of Engro Corporation Limited
(“ECL”). However, the President of Engro Corporation Limited or the Chairman of the Company may
make exceptions to this general rule in special circumstances. All expenses incurred by an
employee serving as a director of a company that is not a subsidiary or joint venture of ECL in
accordance with this policy will be for that employee’s own account. The employee may accept and
retain annual fees, meeting fees, other remuneration or reimbursed expenses specifically related to
service as a director.

For information on the remuneration of the Directors and CEO in 2023, please refer to the
consolidated financial statements.

remuneration policy - senior management

The BPC and Board approves EFERT’s Chief Executive’s salary.

For information on remuneration of Directors and CEO in 2023, please refer to the consolidated
financial statements.

annual total compensation ratio
In the interest of confidentiality and competitiveness, EFERT does not report these ratios.
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governance in relation to sustainable value creation

corporate governance

EFERT continues to improve its governance structure by institutionalizing its core ideals, standards,
and values, which has a strong legacy system spanning more than five decades. The guiding pillars
of our corporate governance are the internally developed code of conduct, policy statements of
ethics and business statement, code of corporate governance and best available practices.
Extensive information regarding the code of conduct and related matters can be found in the
Corporate Annual Report 2023.

Board structure and governance

Key stakeholder engagement
Corporate responsibility

Platforms for reporting critical concerns.
Social and environmental responsibility
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key board policies in relation to governance over sustainable value creation

EFERT’s culture is based upon fair pursuit of profits while remaining mindful of the impact of our
corporate actions on people and place of operations. Protecting our corporate reputation is critical
in order to survive in the global marketplace. To this end, the Board of Directors have adopted a host
of policies which sets the standard for conduct.

review of the company’s performance by the board and its own performance evaluation

The Board has also developed a formal mechanism for evaluation of board’s own performance,
members of board and of its committees. The assessment is carried out in every meeting and was
done five times during the current year. The Board carries out self-assessment evaluating its own
performance against a defined approved criteria which includes its governance over all financial and
non-financial matters including risk management and oversight exercised with respect to
economic, environmental, and social topics. For detailed criteria used for performance evaluation,
please refer the Corporate Governance section of the Annual Report.

group policy governing philanthropic contributions and charitable donations by engro
corporation and its affiliates.

The policy provides guidelines for philanthropic contributions and charitable donations made by
Engro group companies with a framework defined for evaluation and prior approval of all such
contributions. As part of this policy, EFERT is committed to creating sustainable prosperity that
brings long-term social and economic benefits for all the stakeholders. EFERT’s strategy is based
on the principle of Inclusive Business and Strategic Community Investment. EFERT looks to
connect the underprivileged, youth and women in its value chains for sustainable impact. Where
inclusive opportunities are limited or not relevant, EFERT looks to invest in strategic community
initiatives.
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risk management process

All activities undertaken by a business entity carry an element of risk which are managed through
the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM). It is the policy of the Company to view ERM as integral to
the creation, protection, and enhancement of shareholder’s value by managing the uncertainties
that could influence the achievement of corporate goals and objectives. To achieve this, an
appropriate framework is adopted by the management and approved by the Board. Detail on the
Company’s ERM program is mentioned in the risk management port of the Corporate Annual
Report 2023.

key stakeholder engagement

The policy aims to develop and maintain trustworthy relations with shareholders and investors. The
investors’ relations section on the Company’s website (www.engrofertilizers.com) is updated
regularly to provide detailed and latest company information including financial highlights, investor
information and other requisite information. The Company’s website, maintained in English and
Urdu, also contains the link to SECP’s investor education portal, ‘dJamapunji’. Continuing with its
policy of promoting transparency and stakeholder engagement, the Company held quarterly
analyst briefing sessions.

policy for procurement of goods and services

The aim of our procurement policy is to obtain sustainable competitive advantage through efficient
sourcing of goods and services that maximizes value for the Company based on innovation,
principles of risk / return benefit, ensuring product quality, timely deliveries, reliability, and controls.
This policy establishes a foundation for our discipline and serve as guidelines in our daily activities
as we interact with external suppliers and service providers.

policy for safety records of the company

The Company has a documented Record Retention Policy to ensure the safety of the records for
periods that exceed the minimum requirement prescribed by Companies Act, 2017 and other
applicable regulatory requirements. In addition, EFERT has a business continuity plan
complemented by a disaster recovery plan to ensure uninterrupted operations.

investors’ grievance policy

The Company strives to develop and maintain trustworthy relations with all its stakeholders,
including shareholders and investors. It recognizes the importance of timely and fair disclosure of all
material information to them, without advantage to any investor, group or investment advisor /
analyst, in order to enable them to make informed decisions about investing in the Company.

The Company’s contact details are disclosed in “Company Information” section of this annual

report and on it’s website under “Investors relation” section to facilitate shareholders / other
investors’ and timely resolve their complaints, if any.
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disaster recovery and business continuity planning

The Company has a documented Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) and Business Continuity Plan
(BCP) which describes the business continuity and recovery strategies and related procedures for
the Company. It also provides policies and procedures whereby the critical business processes can
be restored in a timely and orderly manner and can be operated on an interim basis, thereby helping
to ensure that all critical business functions continue in the case of a disruption or disaster. This plan
is carefully followed during periodic testing exercises to thoroughly train recovery personnel and
ensure that strategies and actions accurately reflect current business recovery requirements.

whistleblower policy - “speak out”

There exists an independent whistleblower system maintained at group level that allows
employees, suppliers, customers, and contractors to speak out about any concerns they have
regarding business ethics, safety, environmental performance, harassment and other employment
related matters or other possible breaches of compliance. These whistleblower complaints are
independently reported to the BAC Chairman of the Company and are managed by the Corporate
Audit and Compliance department.

human resource management

Appropriate policies are in place to attract, induct, develop, retain, and motivate high caliber talent
who are qualified, capable and willing to contribute their best towards accomplishment of Company
objectives with increasing emphasis on equal opportunity, training and development, performance
management, compensation and benefits, diversity and non-discrimination and gender diversity.

social and environmental responsibility policy

The Company believes that businesses, in their normal course of operations, create positive and
adverse impacts. The policy aims to build on Company’s commitment to manage and improve
social and environmental impacts of its operations on the lives of its customers, suppliers, and
communities at large.

corporate tax strategy

The Board of Directors have approved a formal document for corporate tax strategy which defines
principles aiming to plan, devise and implement tax-efficient and optimized solutions and support
its long-term business strategy. The corporate tax strategy is governed by the following principles:

Ensuring high level of tax compliance in every jurisdiction where the Company has operations
- Making material business decisions after taking into account optimized tax solutions
- Ensuring minimum exposure through prevention and reduction of significant tax risks

- Developing and fostering open, honest and good working relationships with tax authorities and
undertaking all dealings in a professional, courteous and timely manner.

- Ensuring open communication channels within Engro group to encourage smooth flow of
information
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IT governance and cybersecurity policy

Information Technology (IT) Governance is an integral part of enterprise governance and consists of
the leadership, organizational structures, and processes. IT Governance aims to ensure that IT
activities are aligned with business objectives and that stakeholder requirements of value delivery,
risk optimization, and resource optimization are address.

role of the chief executive officer (CEO)

Roles and responsibilities of the Company’s CEO are duly assigned by the Board of Directors of the
Company. The Chief Executive Officer invested with the general control of the business of the
Company and amongst other things, he is empowered to:

e« enter any trade contracts on behalf of the Company in the ordinary way of business
» to do all other acts and things in the ordinary course of business which he may consider
necessary or conducive to the interests of the Company.

management committees

functional committees

These committees act at the operational level in an advisory capacity to the Chief Executive Officer,
providing recommendations relating to the businesses and employee matters. management
committee

Management Committee is headed by the President & CEO and includes the functional heads of all
departments. The committee meets to discuss Company’s performance and works in an advisory
capacity to the President & CEO.

members:

Mr. Ahsan Zafar Syed — Chairman

Mr. Syed Shahzad Nabi — Member

Mr. Ali Rathore — Member

Mr. Atif Mohammad Ali — Member

Mr. Syed Ammar Shah — Member

Ms. Nazia Ali — Member

Mr. Muhammad Saad Khan — Member

The secretary of the Management Committee is Ms. Beenish Kajani
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capex committee
This committee is responsible to oversee and approve capital expenditure strategies including its
alignment with approved Corporate Plan.

Members:

* Mr. Syed Shahzad Nabi - Committee Chairman

* Mr. Khawaja Bilal Mustafa - Member

e Mr. Muhammad Majid Latif - Member

* Mr. Ali Rathore - Member

* Mr. Adil Mushtaq — Member

The secretary of the Capex Committee is Mr. Abdul Ahad.
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corporate hse committee
This committee is responsible for bringing excellence in the domains of Health, Safety and
Environment.

Members:

Mr. Ahsan Zafar Syed — Chairman

Mr. Syed Shahzad Nabi — Co-Chairman

Mr. Ali Rathore — Member

Mr. Atif Mohammad Ali — Member

Mr. Muhammad Saad Khan — Member

Mr. Tarig Raza — On Invitation

Mr. Asim Rasheed Qureshi — On Invitation

The secretary of the Corporate HSE Committee is Mr. Mohsin Mukhtar
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pricing committee
This committee is responsible to oversee and approve product pricing strategies including its
alignment with the approved Corporate Plan.

Members:

* Mr. Ahsan Zafar Syed — Chairman

* Mr. Atif Mohammad Ali — Member

* Mr. Ali Rathore — Member

The secretary of the Pricing Committee is Mr. Ali Muhammad Mahenti.
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internal control framework

responsibility

The Board is ultimately responsible to ensure that a system of sound internal control is established,
which is effectively implemented and maintained at all levels within the Company. However, such a
system is designed to govern rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
The Board, whilst maintaining its overall responsibility for the governance of risk within the
Company, has delegated the detailed design and operation of the system of internal controls to the
Chief Executive.

framework

The Company maintains an established control framework comprising clear structures, authority
limits, and accountabilities, well-communicated and understood policies and procedures and
budgeting for review processes. All policies and control procedures are documented in manuals.
The Board establishes the overall corporate strategy and the Company’s business objectives.
Divisional management integrates these objectives into divisional business strategies with
supporting financial objectives.

review

The Board meets at least once in a quarter, to consider the Company'‘s financial performance,
financial and operating budgets and forecasts, business growth and development plans, capital
expenditure proposals and other key performance indicators. The Board Audit Committee receives
reports on the system of internal financial controls from the external and internal auditors and
reviews the process for monitoring the effectiveness of internal controls.

There is a Company-wide policy governing the appraisal and approval of investment expenditures
and asset disposals. Post-completion reviews are performed on all material investment
expenditures.

risk management process

All activities undertaken by a business entity carry an element of risk. At EFERT, the exposure to
these risks is managed through the practice of Enterprise Risk Management (ERM). The purpose of
ERM is to identify potential risks and define the strategy for managing the impact of these risks, as
well as the mechanisms to effectively monitor and evaluate identified strategies.

It is the policy of the Company to view ERM as integral to the creation, protection and enhancement
of shareholder’s value by managing the uncertainties that could influence the achievement of
corporate goals and objectives. To achieve this, an appropriate framework is adopted by the
management and approved by the Board.
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responsibility for statutory financial statements

In accordance with the requirement of the applicable regulatory framework, CEO and CFO
management are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal controls as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and circulated to the
shareholders within the specified time limit.

The annual standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2023 have been audited by the External Auditors and recommended by the Board in
its meeting held on February 15, 2024 for shareholders’ approval in the Annual General Meeting to
be held on March 26, 2024.

Other financial and non-financial statements enclosed with statutory financial statements are in
conformity with the applicable regulatory requirements.

timely communication of financial statements authorization

The financial statement for the half year ended June 30, 2023 was authorized for issuance on July
26, 2023. The financial statements for December 31st 2023 were authorized for issuance on
February 15, 2024

governance over related party transactions

The Board has approved a formal documented policy for governance over transactions between
the Company and one or more of its Related Parties which provides a framework for governance
and reporting of related party transactions. This policy is intended to ensure due and timely
approval, disclosure and reporting of transactions between the Company and any of its related
parties in compliance with the applicable laws.

The said policy:

* defines the type of contracts/agreements that can be made with the related party;

* defines the pricing policy for related party transactions;

* defines the framework for review, reporting and approval for transactions not at arm’s length; and

* specifies the methodology for approval for transactions in which Director(s) have an interest.
During the year, no contracts or arrangements with the related party were entered into other than in
the ordinary course of business on an arm’s length basis. Names of related parties in Pakistan and
outside Pakistan, with whom the company had entered into transactions or had agreements and/or
arrangements in place during the financial year are mentioned in Note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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beneficial (including indirect) ownership and flow chart of group

shareholding

Complete disclosure of EFERT’s shareholders has been provided in pattern of shareholding section
of our annual report, in addition, group shareholding and direct & indirect ownership of the company
are demonstrated within the Company’s organogram.

Annual General Meeting — update of last AGM, decisions taken and their

implementation status

The Company’s Annual General Meeting (AGM) was held on March 28, 2023 which was attended
by the Chairman of the Board, Chairman of Board Audit Committee, Chief Executive Officer and
other senior management of the Company to address queries and clarifications sought by the
Board of Directors.

business expansion and rationale of major capital expenditure projects
The Board routinely reviews significant capital expenditure projects including an actual vs.
budgeted cost comparison, expected completion timelines and overruns, if any thereby ensuring
timely and authorized business expansion in line with EFERT’s strategy. Further details are available
in the performance review section of this report.

compliance statement

The Board of Directors has duly complied with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 and the ‘Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework’ of the
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

State-of-the-art ERP systems the heart of digitization at EFERT

EFERT has recently adopted a state-of-the-art ERP system, One SAP, an end-to-end solution that
integrates information onto a single platform, serving as a single source of truth unifying reporting
and promoting improved collaboration through shared data. With the immense power of One SAR,
EFERT has been able to benefit from capturing and efficiently analyzing the vast volume of real-time
data for better decision-making.

The journey to One SAP and its effective implementation and continuous updation commenced
with management creating a new function known as the One SAP basis team. A management team
comprising experts from finance, IT and business-facing departments was formulated to lead,
design, implement and monitor the transition to One SAP. The objective of the One SAP basis team
was completed in 2021 with the successful implementation of the ERP.

The One SAP Basis team leads training sessions, held exclusively for the employees to enhance
their functional skill set in line with their functional objectives.

EFERT’s IT department ensures robust IT security controls on the individual level as well as

company-wide SAP-ERP System including passwords, system upgradations, firewall protections
and authorization controls with appropriate segregation of duties.
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diversity

Board’s Policy on diversity at EFERT is committed to unbiased and equal treatment of all employees
irrespective of cast, religion, and gender. EFERT is proud to embrace diversity in the form of age,
gender, ethnicity, physical and mental ability. To encourage gender diversity at all levels the Board
has defined measurable KPIs which it uses to monitor the Company performance and updates
under this UNSDG. To proactively infuse the concept of diversity and promote an encouraging
environment, a 3-point framework for gender diversity and various gender sensitization sessions
have been conducted. Furthermore, during the year, EFERT led the industry in its gender diversity
drive by opening avenues to women from various socio-economic backgrounds to work with the
Company in different unconventional roles such as Trade Apprentices, GTEs, workshop
supervisors, warehouse in-charges and in field-oriented roles.

human resource management policies including preparation of a

succession plan

The Company has a documented Human Resource management policy that aims to attract, induct,
develop, retain, and motivate high-caliber talent who are qualified, capable and willing to contribute
their best towards the accomplishment of Company objectives.

EFERT’s Board places great emphasis on people’s development and related policies. With this at
the heart of our core values, we developed leadership competencies. To ensure a dedicated focus
on people-related matters, the Board has established a subcommittee: Board People Committee
(BPC), that exercises oversight over Human Resources (HR) policies and systems and is
responsible for performance evaluation, development and succession planning.

employee health, safety and protection

The safety of employees has always been the foremost priority of the Company. A comprehensive
HSE process framework has been developed whereby all employees undergo regular in-depth
trainings to ensure that the commitment to HSE is inculcated in all employees.

safety of records of the company

The Company has a documented Record Retention Policy to ensure the safety of the records for
periods that exceed the minimum requirement prescribed by Companies Act, 2017 and other
applicable regulatory requirements.

In addition, the Company has a Business Continuity Plan (BCP) complemented by a Disaster
Recovery Plan (DRP). The BCP and DRP frameworks outline the policies and procedures with
respect to the identification of critical business activities and resources including the safety of
critical electronic, hard copy data and processes to ensure all critical functions continue in case of
a disruption or disaster. The Company has dedicated offsite facilities which serve as data-back-up
centers.
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whistleblowing policy

The Board of Directors of the Company have established a Whistleblower system that allows
employees, suppliers, customers and contractors to speak out about any concerns that they may have
regarding business ethics, safety, environmental performance, harassment and other
compliance-related matters. With a hassle-free window available to all employees where they can freely
raise their concerns, there is also a dedicated email address where matters can be attended to.

investors’ grievance policy

As Company strives to develop and maintain trustworthy relations with all its stakeholders, the
board in order to ensure this has a dedicated investor grievance policy for its shareholders and
investors. It recognizes the importance of timely and fair disclosure of all material information to
them, without advantage to any investor, group, or investment advisor/analyst, in order to enable
them to make informed decisions about investing in the Company.

external oversight

The external oversight activities during the year included the audit of the company’s financial
statements. An external valuations specialist was engaged during the year to perform a
re-assessment of the company’s plant and machinery, gas pipelines and civil work.

Additionally, a third-party cyber security review was conducted, and the improvement areas were
identified and addressed. The security assessment included testing of exposed assets,
applications, network devices, databases and so on.

communication with stakeholders
The Directors regard stakeholder engagement as an important element of the Company’s corporate
responsibility. Further details are available stakeholders information — mentioned in Section 1.

social and environmental responsibility

The Company’s culture is based upon the fair pursuit of profits while remaining mindful of the impact
of our actions on our people and place of operations. Protecting our corporate reputation is critical
in order to survive in the global marketplace. To this end, the Board of Directors has adopted a host
of policies that sets the standard for conduct.

governance practices at EFERT other than legal requirements
At EFERT we strive to work in a responsible and ethical manner. To ensure transparency EFERT has
institutionalized the following practices:

Benchmarks reporting requirements against ICAP / ICMAP and SAFA-prescribed guidelines

A stringent insider trading policy that goes beyond the legal requirement

Holds quarterly analyst briefings and regularly interacts with all stakeholders

Implementation of health, safety, and environmental policy as a responsibility of our
commitment to protect our people, community, and environment.

Undertaking several health and training initiatives for improving the livelihood of the surrounding
community.
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ensuring excellence in corporate governance practices

With a strong legacy system spanning over five decades, EFERT continues to optimize its
governance framework by institutionalizing its core values, policies, and principles across the board
to surpass the legal requirements and adhere to global best practices and standards of governance.
Following additional governance practices implemented by the management include:

+ Implementation of Health, Safety and Environment Policy for a better and safe workplace
environment for employees, workers and surrounding community.

+ |Implementation of various social projects for welfare of the community as part of its Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR).

» Adoption of a strict insider trading policy whereby all employees of the Company are restricted
from trading in shares of the Company.

» Restriction of employees of group companies to adhere to close period requirements.

+ All the Directors of the company have attended Directors’ training program exceeding the legal
requirement prescribed by the Code of Corporate Governance Regulations, 2019. The
Company endeavors to replicate the best practices in its privately owned subsidiary.

* Adoption of best reporting practices prescribed by ICAP / ICMAP and SAFA to make the
Company’s affairs more transparent and to give better inside of the Company’s affairs, policies
and strategies.
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internal audit, ethics and compliance

ethical complaince and whistle blowing

EFERT has an Internal Audit function, manned with suitably qualified and experienced staff. The
Board Audit Committee annually reviews the appropriateness of resources and authority of this
function. Moreover, the Board Audit committee in coordination with the Board Peoples committee
ensures that the performance review and compensation mechanisms of the Internal audit
personnels are appropriate to maintain their independence from the Company’s management.

The Head of Internal Audit functionally reports to the Audit Committee and has indirect reporting to
the Head of Corporate Audit of the parent company i.e. Engro Corporation Limited. The Head of
Internal audit only reports for administrative matters to the CEO of the Company.

The Board Audit Committee approves the audit plan, based on an annual risk assessment of the
operating areas. The Internal Audit function carries out reviews on the financial, operational and
compliance controls, and reports on findings to the Board Audit Committee.

The Company ensures appropriate focus on its business ethics policies through an inhouse Ethics
and Compliance section, housed within its Internal Audit department that monitors compliance
against all ethics related policies, interalia the following:

Code of Conduct

Fraud Risk Management

Governance of Conflicts of Interest

Statement of Ethics and Business Practices

Whistleblower Policy — Speak Out!

Governance of Transactions/Contracts with Related Parties

L. 20 20 2 2B B J

reporting critical concerns:

EFERT has a strong internal control system that encourages its employees, customers and
suppliers to report any suspected misconduct, fraud and violation of law or ethical standards. There
are a number of avenues to do so including the whistleblower complaint system called
“Speak-Out”, a transparent system that reviews all complaints and guarantees confidentiality and
protection from any form of retribution. Apart from this, EFERT has an internal system of voluntary
reporting called “Irregularity reporting” that allows employees to voluntary disclose actual or
suspected non-compliance through the Irregularity Reporting system. Employees are encouraged
to raise red flags and help strengthen the control environment.

Irregularity reports are shared with management and Board Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.
Whistleblower complaints and results of their investigations are also reported to Board Audit
Committee every quarter. There exists a process of periodic business practices review involving all
Engro companies and employees to identify questionable business practices. All identified issues
are reported directly to the Board Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. A total of 29
irregularities were reported in FY 2023 as against 20 irregularities in FY 2022.
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Moreover, the parent company’s Internal Audit (Corporate Audit) is conducts periodic joint audits of
all group companies in line with annual approved risk-based audit plan which include review of
Company’s performance in terms of economic, environmental and social aspects, the
appropriateness of its risk management plans in this respect and the ability of the Company to
generate long term value creation. The results of such audit are reviewed by the respective
company’s Board of directors and the Parent company’s Board of Directors.

whistleblower policy - “speak out!”

The Board of Directors of the Company have established a Whistleblower system which allows
employees, suppliers, customers and contractors to speak out about any concerns they have
regarding business ethics, safety, environmental performance, harassment and other employment
related matters or other possible breaches of compliance. The Company also has specific
procedures in place to increase awareness of the policy.

In order to further strengthen the Company’s Ethics compliance program and promote adherence
to sound business conduct, all employees, customers, suppliers and contractors are encouraged
to report serious concerns that could have a significant impact on these organizations, such as
actions that:

are unlawful or may damage the reputation of the Corporation or an affiliate

are fraudulent and lead to a loss of assets

may be intended to result in incorrect financial reporting

are in violation of various corporate policies governing business conduct

are in violation of Safety Health & Environmental standards applicable to the business
give rise to harassment, discrimination, or other unfair employment practices

L2020 20 BB B

As per the requirements of the policy, confidentiality of complainants is maintained to protect them
from any form of retaliation or victimization for genuinely held concerns that are raised in good faith.
Further, all concerns reported are investigated confidentially by the Corporate Audit Department
(CAD) which are also presented on a quarterly basis to the Board Audit Committee (BAC).

Below is the number of whistleblowers reported during the year 2023:
* No. of whistle-blower complaints investigated and closed during the year: 28 compared to 22

in 2022.
# No. of whistle-blower complaints in progress: 28
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chairman’s review

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am
delighted to present Engro Fertilizers Limited's
(EFERT / the Company) Annual Report,
encapsulating its outstanding performance for
the year ended 2023.

2023 was a challenging year for the global
economy. The world grappled with heightened
inflationary pressures, geostrategic tensions,
uncertainty in energy prices, and disruptions in
critical shipping routes.

In Pakistan, the already challenging business
environment was exacerbated by diminishing
foreign exchange reserves, a rapid devaluation
of the Pakistani Rupee, historically high interest
rates, an unprecedented surge in energy prices,
and political uncertainty. Nevertheless, it is
encouraging to note that policymakers have
proactively taken steps to initiate economic
reforms aimed at addressing longstanding
issues. We appreciate the economic reforms
and are cognizant about the short-term pain
associated with these reforms. However, | urge
policymakers to ensure that these reforms
create a fair and level playing field for all
stakeholders.

The global fertilizer market remained volatile in
2023 and farmers in several geographies
remained concerned about uninterrupted
supply of fertilizer. In contrast, the Pakistani
fertilizer industry not only ensured steady
supply to farmers but also provided fertilizers at
a noteworthy discount compared to
international prices. lllustratively, as of
December 31, 2023, the price of imported urea
per bag stood at Rs. 6,036, while the local
fertilizer price was Rs. 3,596 per bag, translating
into a substantial discount of 40%. | would also
like to highlight that fertilizer industry collectively
saved approximately $2 bilion in foreign
exchange by producing fertilizer locally. It is
essential to emphasize that within the fertilizer
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sector, Engro Fertilizers faces a significant
disadvantage, it is given gas at significantly
higher prices than its peers, despite being one
of the most efficient urea producers in the
country. Until uniform gas prices are established
for all fertilizer players, we will continue to
witness varying urea prices, depriving farmers
of consistent supply and optimal prices.

| commend our management team for their
exceptional leadership during challenging
times, resulting in safe operations, record urea
production, increased sales of specialty
fertilizer, and an improved cash conversion
cycle. Despite facing challenges like the super
tax and disadvantageous gas prices, the
company posted a Profit After Tax (PAT) of $93

million in 2023 compared to $78 million in 2022.

The company's operational excellence has
earned recognition from esteemed
organizations, including the Management
Association of Pakistan (MAP), Business
Awards UK, ESG Awards 2023 by UNICEPTA,
and the Royal Society for the Prevention of
Accidents.

Looking forward, we remain optimistic about
the agriculture landscape of Pakistan and are
hopeful that with climate smart agriculture and
adoption of best-in-class seeds and global
technology, our yields will converge to regional
and global average. This is all underpinned-on
availability for nutrients and fertilizer, which will
only thrive if we have a level playing field for all
fertilizer manufacturers in the country. We are
actively advocating for a uniform gas pricing
mechanism, ensuring a level playing field for all
manufacturers.

| extend my appreciation to the Board of
Directors and its committees for their insightful
guidance and encouragement. Gratitude is also
extended to our investors, employees, and
discerning customers for their steady support.
This trust remains pivotal to our continued
growth, securing Pakistan's food value chain for
a sustainable and resilient future.

engro fertilizers limited

Ghias Khan

Chairman
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ceo’s statement

| am pleased to present to you the Annual Report of Engro
Fertilizers Limited (EFERT / the Company) for the year ended
2023.

2023 was characterized by global economic and political
instability, presenting numerous challenging variables to
navigate. It gives me immense pride to share that, in the
midst of adversity, through unwavering commitment and
collaboration of the management and its stakeholders, we
navigated these hurdles and proudly upheld our 50+ year
legacy, consistently generating value for both shareholders
and the nation.

During the year, Pakistan faced a series of unprecedented
challenges, as uncertain geopolitical circumstances and
domestic political turbulence collectively hampered
economic recovery overall. Significant PKR devaluation, a
historically high policy rate, in conjunction with a persistent
trade imbalance and dwindling foreign exchange reserves
resulted in inflationary pressures. These factors collectively
exacerbated the impact of pre-existing economic
vulnerabilities, and as a result, Pakistan recorded its third
lowest growth since inception.

Understanding its strategic importance to Pakistan’s
agrarian economy, EFERT facilitated the Agri value chain
and stood with the nation and the Government of Pakistan
(GoP) by continuing to provide urea at a significant discount
from global urea prices. While doing so, EFERT enabled food
security on a national level as the country navigated its
recovery from social and economic losses incurred due to
the floods of 2022.

In 2023, the domestic fertilizer market saw domestic urea
demand unchanged at 6,639 KT vs 6,616 KT in 2022.
Improved farm economics and availability of urea at
discount to imported urea prices led to consistent offtake
during the year. The industry also saw an increase in total
production where total urea manufactured stood at 6,438 KT
vs 6,328 KT last year, while the remainder of market demand
was serviced by manufacturer’s inventories. For
Phosphates, the domestic DAP industry rallied to 1,557 KT
vs 1,158 KT in 2022, registering 34% growth year-on-year.
This is mainly attributable to improved agronomics and
liquidity for farmers in the Rabi season.

At EFERT, safety is our utmost priority and deeply ingrained
in our DNA. For the year, we recorded a very low total
recordable incident rate (TRIR) of 0.03, while lower than
planned outages resulted in overall efficiencies. This was
indeed a heroic feat achieved by our teams, who were
relentless in their commitment to safety in the face of
challenging circumstances.

On the Production front, we achieved our highest ever Urea
production, surpassing our site’s nameplate capacity for the
first time. EFERTs total urea production increased by 18.3%
during the year and stood at 2,313 KT vs 1,955 KT in 2022.
This remarkable feat was achieved primarily because of
reduced outages at both plants and improved plant
efficiencies.
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Our Phosphates business delivered robust performance,
achieving a notable 9.6% year-on-year increase in
volumetric sales, reaching 365KT compared to the previous
year's 333KT. This commendable volume growth was
coupled with effective procurement and sales management
strategies, enabling the Company to secure favorable
margins on these sales.

Our Specialty Fertilizer Business registered an 83% revenue
growth on the back of a staggering 47 % increase in volumes
year-on-year. Notably, Zabardast urea, a bioactive
nutrient-fortified fertilizer, maintained its consistent growth
trajectory throughout the year, demonstrating its proven
effectiveness in enhancing crop yields.

By the grace of Allah, EFERT posted our best-ever financial
performance where, sales revenue of PKR 223.7Bn
demonstrated a 42.5% vyear-on-year growth in topline.
Resultantly, EFERT posted its highest ever profit after tax of
PKR 26.2Bn, translating to consolidated earnings per share
of PKR 19.61. | would also like to report that a final dividend
of PKR 8.0/share for the year ended December 31, 2023,
has also been proposed for approval at the Annual General
Meeting bringing the total dividend for 2023 to PKR
20.5/share.

EFERT is dedicated to supporting the communities in which
it operates, where our Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
programs are structured to maximize the effects of our
investments. Notable community uplift initiatives include the
inauguration of a new block at Sahara school and classroom
expansions at Noor Hassan Shah Girls School. On the
healthcare front, the Company continued to operate its
Sahara clinics and dedicated snake bite, dog bite and limb
facilities. The Company through Engro Foundation also
initiated multiple nationwide tree planting campaigns. In
biodiversity projects, we are engaged in our partnership with
WWF Pakistan to conserve Indus River dolphins.
Achievements from our Seed Purification & Chili Value Chain
Improvement Project in partnership with USDA include
provision of soil testing as well as training for 5000+
smallholder farmers and 500+ women on best crop
management practices.

Throughout the year, EFERT maintained a collaborative
relationship with the Government of Pakistan (GoP), actively
engaging in discussions regarding essential gas reforms
within the fertilizer sector. These reforms are crucial for
guaranteeing national food security by fostering sustainable
growth within the industry. It is also equally essential to
recognize the collective efforts of the GoP in addressing the
structural weaknesses of our economy — particularly the role
of SIFC, who is working to tap Pakistan’s full agricultural
potential through adoption of global best practices.

engro fertilizers limited

During 2023, EFERT maintained its unwavering commitment
to excellence, and | am delighted to report that our
dedication has been acknowledged on numerous
international and local platforms. This recognition manifests
in the prestigious awards the Company received across a
diverse spectrum of critical areas, including safety,
manufacturing excellence, corporate governance, financial
performance, environmental stewardship, gender diversity,
and social inclusion.

As we embark on the next chapter of our journey, it is crucial
to acknowledge the complex macroeconomic landscape
before us. Pakistan faces a delicate balancing act: fostering
economic growth while maintaining fiscal prudence. Soaring
inflation and a mounting public debt pose significant hurdles
to investment, further exacerbated by the uncertainties
inherent in our political climate. However, we should not be
daunted by these challenges. Instead, we must strengthen
our resolve and chart a course toward sustainable and
inclusive growth. Investing in human capital, addressing
food security, and cultivatihng a competitive business
environment will be pivotal in our success.

annual report 2023

| would like to share my recognition of our employees and
valued business partners who have been instrumental in
navigating the various challenges we have faced. The
accolades above serve as a testament to the collective
effort, collaboration, and unwavering commitment of their
ownership. Their commitment to excellence is the
cornerstone for the Company’s historic performance and
has set precedents for future success, inspiring continued
innovation, and dedication across the organization.

| am incredibly grateful to our Chairman and the Board of
Directors for their legacy of achievements, resolute support,
and sage guidance. The unparalleled strategic vision and
insightful counsel of the Board have demonstrably
contributed to the establishment of an unsurpassed
standard of excellence. | am deeply appreciative of their
continued trust and confidence in our leadership and
operations. This, in turn, has solidified our long-term
competitive advantage, propelling us forward to building an
even stronger organization. As we look ahead, our
dedication remains steadfast, ready to confront future
challenges and capitalize on opportunities in line with our
mission and vision and deliver on our promise of growth.

Ahsan Zafar Syed

Chief Executive Officer
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directors’ report

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Engro Fertilizers Limited (EFERT / the Company), we are
pleased to submit the Directors’ Report and the audited consolidated and standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023.

safety

EFERT is relentlessly committed to safety, prioritizing it more than anything else. We continuously
refine our focus and safety protocols, fostering a culture of awareness and vigilance. Alhamdulillah,
our dedication to safety is reaping rewards and we are proud to report a remarkable TRIR rate of
0.03 across our facilities, with zero loss workday injuries registered at our manufacturing facilities.

macro-economic review

Economic turbulence remained the main theme for 2023 with several economic wild cards to
contend with. Uncertain geo-political conditions, elevated commodity prices and political
turbulence cast a shadow on the domestic economy. This compounded by existing structural
weaknesses, a trade imbalance and dwindling foreign exchange reserves amplified the impact of
successive domestic and global supply shocks. Inflationary pressures in tandem with a widening
fiscal gap dampened GDP growth and recovery efforts.

During FY 2023 (July’22 — June’23) Pakistan’s real GDP growth decelerated considerably to 0.3%
vs 6% during the last two years. This was the third lowest growth recorded in the history of Pakistan.
Owing to elevated food and energy import reliance, coupled with a lack of export performance,
Pakistan’s liquid foreign reserves nosedived to USD 8.2Bn at the end of January 2023 - signaling
limited import cover. However, on the back of import restrictions and policy adjustments, the
reserves climbed back to USD 12.7Bn at the end of 2023.

The Rupee stood at PKR 226:1 USD at the start of 2023. However, external debt repayments,
declining exports proceeds/remittances and delays in the approval of IMF’s Standby Agreement
(SBA) pushed PKR to its historically weakest at PKR 307: 1 USD by September 2023. The rupee
strengthened gradually through mid-October on the back of improved inflows in the FX market and
was at PKR 282: 1 USD by December 2023.

As per Pakistan Bureau of Statistics (PBS), headline inflation recorded at 27.6% in January 2023
(month on month) and was at its peak in May (38.0%). As the risks to macroeconomic stability grew,
so did the policy rate with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) increasing its rate by 6.75% during 2023
to an all-time high of 22%, putting further pressure on corporate borrowing costs.

The final quarter of 2023 saw relative stabilization on the back of effective policy measures and
resilience shown by the local market.
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agriculture review

Despite significant challenges, the Pakistani agricultural sector grew by ~ 2% in FY 2023. The
agricultural community demonstrated remarkable resilience as our communities worked collectively
to ensure improved yields in the Rabi season, which helped offset damage to important crops
earlier in the Kharif season.

Better economic returns on the back of stronger support prices and improved areas under
cultivation led to higher earnings for farmers, who were able to reinvest this into timely application
of inputs to boost agricultural output overall. Government of Pakistan’s (GoP) efforts to promote
agriculture and corporate farming practices is expected to tap Pakistan’s potential to be food
secure, boost demand for agricultural inputs and improve economic output going forward. This is
expected to complement the efforts of Special Investment Facilitation Council (SIFC), whose focus
to modernize agricultural practices through corporate farming, use of high-yielding varieties and
integrating Agri-tech solutions is a step in the right direction for Pakistan’s agrarian economy.

market review

Global fertilizer market faced significant headwinds in 2023, leading to fluctuating prices and
uncertainty for farmers. Global urea prices peaked in January 2023 standing at USD 402/ton
(landed equivalent PKR 6,705/bag) and declined during the first half of the year to their lowest at
USD 298/ ton by June. Urea prices remained rangebound between USD 300/ton — USD 400/ton for
the remainder of the year and declined by 25% vs start of the year to USD 301/ton (landed
equivalent PKR 5,715/bag) in December 2023.

For DAP, 2023 was a year of two halves. At the start of the year, DAP prices stood at USD 730/ton
and then started declining to reach USD 480/ton. However, DAP prices began to rally in the second
half and reached USD 625/ton by year end due to limited stock availability and increasing crop
prices globally. Conversely, local prices did not fall in tandem as PKR devaluation during the year
helped off-set international price correction.

We take pride in being a part of an industry that consistently delivers essential components to
service Pakistan’s agricultural value chain. In the wake of a challenging macro-economic
environment, the local fertilizer industry has ensured that farmers continue to benefit from lower
domestic urea prices. MRP of urea stood at PKR 3,596/bag at year end, at a discount of ~40% to
international prices. The presence of a domestic urea manufacturing industry enabled import
substitution to the tune of USD 2.3Bn.

Continuing the momentum built over the preceding year, domestic urea demand remained
unhinged at 6,639 KT vs 6,616 KT in 2022, showing consistency in offtake compared to last year.
The stability in market demand can be attributed to favorable farm economics and availability of
urea at discount to import parity during the year. Market demand was fulfilled by higher domestic
urea production of 6,438 KT vs 6,328 KT last year with the remainder of market demand serviced by
manufacturer’s reserves / inventory.
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On the Phosphates front, the domestic DAP industry rallied to 1,557 KT vs 1,158 KT in 2022,
registering 34% growth year-on-year. This is mainly attributable to improved agronomics and
recovery in the Rabi season vs last year where farmers faced significant liquidity crunch due to
massive flooding.

segment analysis

Urea

The Company’s urea production increased by 18.3% during the year and stood at 2,313 KT vs
1,955 KT in 2022, mainly because of reduced outages at both plants and improved plant
efficiencies. Consequently, our urea sales also improved by 20.3% to reach 2,327 KT as compared
to 1,935 KT in 2022. As a result, our market share increased to 35% for the year as compared to
29% in 2022.

Due to rising cost of production, significant revision in gas prices and imposition of Federal Excise
Duty (FED), EFERT took multiple price increases during the year to maintain the expectation of its
shareholders and ensure upcoming capital expenditure requirements of the plants.

Phosphates (DAP / Zorawar / NP)

The Phosphates business managed volumetric sales of 365KT compared to last year’s sales of 333
KT. The increase in sales is attributable to an improved industry. The Company also managed to
earn good margins on these sales through efficient procurement and effective sales management.

Specialty Fertilizer Business (SFB)

Our Specialty Fertilizer Business registered an 83% revenue growth on the back of a staggering
47% increase in volumes year-on-year. Zabardast urea, which is a bioactive nutrient fortified
fertilizer, continues to grow during the year with its proven impact on yield enhancement. The
potash-based products and micro-nutrients remained stable owing to international price stability.

Crop Sciences Division (CSD)
The Company re-evaluated its long-term strategy and decided to close its Pesticide and Seeds
business. The closure of the business was successfully executed in 2023.

E-Logistics

The Company’s logistics business continues to maintain its focus on improving safety standards
and bringing operational efficiencies. As part of the long-term strategy for this business segment,
the Company decided to exit this business and is in the process of divestment of its assets.

Other Key Developments

Based on fiscal challenges, the government imposed further 6% Super-tax through the Finance Act
2023. In accordance with the Finance Act, 2023 10% super tax instead of 4% has been levied for
TY 2023 and onwards. Resultantly, super tax charge for the prior year amounting to PKR 2,888 Mn
was recorded inclusive of deferred tax. Considering 10% super tax was applied retrospectively in
nature, therefore EFERT along with the Engro Group Companies and other industry players
challenged the retrospective imposition of Super Tax before the Islamabad High Court (IHC).

101 I enriching Pakistan engro fertilizers limited

EFERT does not however have any recourse to the imposition of additional 6% on TY 2024 and
onwards, and as a result it has recognized an additional super tax charge of PKR 3,016 Mn and the
same has been paid along with advance taxes during the year.

An additional development for the fertilizer sector during the year was the imposition of FED on all
fertilizers vide Finance Act, 2023 from July 1, 2023. Consequently, 5% FED on fertilizers has been
added to the pricing and hence input FED levied on gas, imports and other purchases by the
Company is now claimable.

Furthermore, through Finance Act 2023, Sales Tax was imposed on DAP exclusively. Resultantly,
5% GST in addition to 5% FED has been added to the pricing, whilst GST inputs against DAP are
now claimable. Accordingly, EFERT has started levying sales tax on its DAP invoices from July 1,
2023.

On suits filed for GIDC and end of concessionary gas period, the stay orders are in place. In 2022,
the Government of Pakistan filed a response setting out their stance in the suit filed for GIDC on
concessionary gas. The Company drafted a rejoinder to the stance submitted by the Government
and has submitted the same before the Sindh High Court in due course.

financial review

During the year, the Company managed to deliver sales revenue of PKR 223.7Bn showing an
increase of 42.5%, compared to sales revenue of PKR 157.0Bn in 2022. This improvement can be
attributed to higher volumes recorded across all businesses as well as the rise in imported DAP
prices.

The Company posted a gross profit of PKR 72.3Bn for the year which translates into a gross margin
of 32%, compared to 27% in 2022. The increase in gross margin reflects efficiency brought forward
through cost optimization and the increased production from the long-term reliability projects
executed during 2022.

Financial charges of the Company reduced by 27% to reach PKR 1.9Bn from PKR 2.6Bn in 2022.
Despite significant interest rate hikes during the period, the management was able to keep the
finance cost under control through improved working capital cycles and ensuring efficient
deployment of funds. The Company’s tax expense for 2023 stood at PKR 23.5Bn compared to PKR
10.6Bn in 2023. Our tax expenses have increased due to imposition of super tax on the Company
with an effective tax rate of ~47% for the year.

On a consolidated basis, the Company posted a profit after tax of PKR 26.2Bn showing an increase
of 64% compared to profit after tax of PKR 16.0Bn in 2022. As a result, consolidated earnings per
share rose to PKR 19.61/share compared to PKR 11.98/share in 2022. On a standalone basis the
Company’s profit after tax stood at PKR 25.7Bn, compared to PKR 15.4Bn in 2022, registering an
increase of 67% year-on-year.
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profit appropriation and reserve transfer

At the start of the year, the total reserves of the Company stood at PKR 31.7Bn out of which the
Board announced a dividend of PKR 6.7Bn. During the year, the Company made a net profit of PKR
26.2Bn and announced 3 interim dividends of PKR 12.5/share in total. The total reserves as at end
of 2023 stood at PKR 34.549 Bn, and the detailed reconciliation is given in the Dividend and
Appropriations table below.

Dividends and Appropriation* PKR Million
Opening reserves 31,700
Final dividend 2022: PKR 5.0 per share (6,676)
Net profit 2023 26,191
Other Comprehensive Income 26
Available for appropriation 51,241
Appropriations

1st Interim 2023: PKR 3.5 per share 4,674)
2nd Interim 2023: PKR 3.0 per share (4,006)
3rd Interim 2023: PKR 6.0 per share (8,012)
Closing Reserves 34,549

* Numbers have been rounded up to the nearest Million.

dividends and subsequent events

The Board is pleased to propose a final dividend of PKR 8.00/share, in addition to interim dividends
of PKR 12.5/share that have already been paid out, for the approval of shareholders in the Annual
General Meeting to be held on March 26, 2024.

There were no other material changes affecting the financial position of the Company till the date of
issue of this report.

capital structure and long-term debt management

In 2023, the Company continued to concentrate its efforts on managing the rising costs of financing
through better capital management. Long term borrowings at year end 2023 stood at PKR 6 Bn
compared to PKR 12.7Bn in 2022. All debt repayments maturing this year were paid by their due
dates and there have been no defaults in repayment of any debt during the year. Total equity as of
December 31, 2023, stood at PKR 47.9Bn, compared to PKR 45.1Bn in 2022. During the year,
PACRA maintained EFERT’s long-term credit rating of AA and short-term credit rating of A1+.

auditor’s report on the financial statements

Our Auditors have reviewed our business processes, strategic financial actions and expenditure
incurred during the year and we are pleased to share that they have issued an unmodified opinion
on the Company’s Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2023.
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future prospects and market outlook

To address the decline in gas pressure at Mari Petroleum Company Limited’s (MPCL) Habib Rahi
Limestone (HRL) Reservoir, EFERT and other fertilizer manufacturers have entered into an
agreement with MPCL to invest in the establishment of Pressure Enhancement Facilities (PEF) at
MPCL’s delivery node. The project is expected to have a significant capital outlay and will ensure
sustained gas supplies from HRL reservoir to fertilizer manufacturers (at required pressure levels).

Stabilizing supply lines and an easing of the commodity super cycle has allowed urea prices to
come down from their historical highs and suggest they will remain within the current range for the
upcoming year. DAP prices are also expected to edge lower on the back of improved acceptability
of current prices and demand recovery for the upcoming season. Resolution of the ongoing
geopolitical conflicts, progress on new production facilities and changes in Chinese export policies
will all be key determinants of future price movements.

For 2024 the cropping pattern in Pakistan is expected to shift towards wheat and sugarcane with
the reduction in areas expected for Maize, Cotton and Rice owing to reduced margins. The point of
concern however for the Rabi 2023 (ongoing cropping season) is the reduction of rainfall in the
country and delayed snowfall in the north that may lead to lower water availability. This is one critical
factor that may affect the cropping outlook for the next year.

In 2024, Urea consumption will remain firm on the back of better areas under cultivation as well as
proper application due to Crop prices positively impacting farmer liquidity. Demand supply vectors
propping up Urea demand are expected to persist, with fixed supplies and moderate Government
imports. The demand for Phosphates is expected to improve from existing levels on the back of
better price acceptance, farmer sentiment and economics, while prices are expected to remain at
the higher end but rangebound excluding any impact of supply shocks. Recovery to pre-2021 levels
(2Mn Ton+ levels) will take some time requiring PKR appreciation or massive Input price corrections,
both of which are not on the horizon.

We are confident that despite all the challenges currently being faced by the country, Pakistan's
agricultural sector will remain resilient, due to government support, better farm economics, and the
sale of urea at significantly lower prices compared to global prices.

The success of the journey towards lasting economic recovery will be contingent on Pakistan’s
ability to address fundamental structural weaknesses, manage external imbalances, and implement
bold yet prudent policies in the face of an uncertain global environment. Going forward, we expect
our existing challenges of inflation and a shortage of foreign reserves to persist. EFERT continues to
stand hand in hand with the GoP and is committed to achieving a prosperous, inclusive, resilient,
and sustainable Pakistan, while ensuring its contribution to food security in the region.

awards & recognition
During 2023, the Company continued its legacy of excellence across all dimensions and our efforts
were recognized on several local and international forums. Below are some of the major awards
won by EFERT during 2023:
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HSE awards & recognition

* Daharki manufacturing plant won the Gold Award for exceptional performance in HSE by The
Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA).

* EFERT emerged victorious in the Environmental Health & Safety Award category presented by
Business Awards UK, while securing the runner-up position in the Safety Culture Excellence
Award.

* EFERT was honored with the "1st Position" in the 17th Best Practices Awards in Occupational
Safety, Health & Environment by the Employer Federation of Pakistan.

e EFERT was also given “Fleet Safety Gold Award” to E-logistics division by RoSPA for
outstanding HSE practices and performance in a calendar year.

* EFERT has been awarded runner up position at EHS Daily Advisor US - Safety Standout Award
for best overall safety program and culture.

* EFERT also secured a finalist position in ESG Awards organized by UNICEPTA for the best ESG
Campaign or case study to promote and encourage climate action efforts in a calendar year.

HR awards

* EFERT also secured 3rd position for Employer of Choice at the Gender Diversity Awards by
Pakistan Business Council (PBC) and International Finance Corporation (IFC).

* EFERT won the Most Preferred Employer in the Manufacturing Sector at the Best Place to Work
Pakistan Awards 2023.

general management and finance

* EFERT 2022 Annual Report was shortlisted for Best Corporate Report 2022 in the Chemical &
Fertilizer sector by ICAP and ICMA.

* EFERT was Ranked 4th among the PSX Top 25 Companies Award 2022.

+ EFERT won the Amir S Chinoy Corporate Excellence Award at Management Association of
Pakistan’s 38th Corporate Excellence Awards.

improving customer service

EFERT flagship mobile and web enabled application, Engro Humsafar, was launched in September
2020. This is a B2B digital platform for fertilizer dealers, that allows them to transact with EFERT
round the clock. Till date, the Company has booked sales of PKR 500Bn via Engro Humsafar. This
is a testament to the Company’s commitment to digitization and the Company’s efforts to simplify
the order to cash cycle. The Company continues to improve the customer experience of the app
through introduction of new features and increasing the banking partners.
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health, safety & environment

HSE has always been a fundamental core value at EFERT, and the company is dedicated to
continuously enhancing safety awareness and protocols to uphold its best-in-class status. The
efforts and commitment shown by the company staff and management in maintaining ambitious
standards of safety, health and environment are visible through its strong track record. Our world
class HSE programs ensure that all stakeholders engaged with the company remain safe & well
versed with HSE systems, practices & policies. Through comprehensive training, the provision of
the best tools and gadgets, proactive hazard identification, and the implementation of mitigative
measures, we strive to achieve and sustain world-class safety statistics.

Our safety performance for the year 2023 is reflected by the below statistics.

Our HSE Performance 2023

Total Recordable Injury Rate (TRIR) 0.03
Recordable Injuries (RWC / MTC) 2
Loss Workday Injury (LWI) Nil

cultivating hse-first mindset

* The EFERT HSE management system underwent digital transformation with the adoption of the
state-of-the-art Velocity EHS platform. This has significantly enhanced effectiveness and
productivity by enabling efficient tracking, record-keeping, stewardship, and real-time data
analysis.

* Throughout the year, targeted HSE campaigns were conducted to collectively improve
behavioral and inherent safety at the site. These efforts have positively impacted operational
discipline by empowering individuals to lead various HSE initiatives. Through these programs,
we aspire to transform the mindsets and behaviors of our employees, both on a personal and
professional level.

* 21 days forced outage at Amm-2 plant was completed without any injury owing to the enhanced
focus and commitment of the team towards safe execution of all jobs.

* Zarkhez plant has once again accomplished a "ZERO" Total Recordable Incident Rate (TRIR) in
a calendar year for the fourth consecutive year. This accomplishment reflects a robust HSE
culture and unwavering adherence to HSE policies and principles.

process safety improvements
* Risk Based HSE Excellence Program:

*  The transition from a compliance-based HSE program to a Risk-Based Approach (RBA)
represents a significant step towards achieving HSE excellence. This approach adopts a
more focused lens to review inherent HSE risks, with the primary aim of enhancing the
management of top HSE risks, specifically Major Accident Hazard Scenarios (MAHS).
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* |n 2023, the Risk-Based Assessment phase-2 was successfully completed at the EFERT
manufacturing plants in Daharki and Zarkhez. This involved a comprehensive analysis of all
Major Accident Hazard scenarios (MAHS) on-site, utilizing advanced Hazard and Operability
Analysis (HAZOP) and Layers of Protection Analysis (LOPA) techniques. Ensuring the
effectiveness of barriers through Bowties development and integrating them with
safety-critical system was a crucial aspect of this phase.

+ To facilitate the adoption and effective implementation of the Risk-Based Approach,
extensive competency development workshops were conducted. These workshops
included in-house training sessions as well as external training and workshops facilitated by
PII (Process Improvement Institute - USA).

* A comprehensive Fire & Risk Assessment study for the entire site has been successfully
completed, emphasizing the adequacy of the emergency response system in place across all
scenarios.

promoting health & well-being

The company's occupational health program encompasses industrial hygiene and occupational
health. In 2023, we initiated various health awareness and control programs to foster good health
and hygiene practices among our employees:

* All food clubs and canteens obtained HACCP certification in 2023, demonstrating robust
monitoring and control practices for food safety requirements.

* Throughout the year, various awareness campaigns on disease prevention and initiatives to
enhance a healthy lifestyle were launched. Health drives such as Better Health, Better Tomorrow
and the Metabolic Syndrome drive were introduced and sustained.

* Site workers received comprehensive training on the effective utilization of personal protective
equipment, along with Hazardous material Management.

environmental performance
In 2023, dedicated efforts were undertaken to enhance environmental performance at EFERT. Key
highlights include:

* EFERT was certified by the International Fertilizer Association (IFA) Protect & Sustain for robust
management practices related to product quality, security, and sustainability.

* The Daharki manufacturing plant led the Net-Zero waste project, progressing towards the
execution phase. This initiative resulted in the conversion of organic waste from the colony into
compost, suitable for horticulture. Additionally, plastic waste was repurposed into lifestyle
products as part of this sustainability initiative.

* As part of EFERT’s initiative to conserve natural resources, the geo-membrane lining of
evaporation ponds was successfully completed.

* An extensive noise aspect impact assessment on critical receptors was conducted under the
environmental sustainability management program. The noise panel installation at the ENCOP-3
facility was successfully completed as well.
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* EFERT conducted comprehensive research and benchmarking on effluent quality standards,
aiming to enhance environmental reporting and compliance.

* An Environmental Management Plan was developed for the management of hazardous
materials at site and resources were adequately trained.

engro muhafiz

Engro Muhafiz is a first of its kind stakeholder engagement HSE program in Pakistan that is in line
with the Company’s HSE policy to protect & train all communities involved and / or linked with our
operations. The program is designed to train farmers and dealers on safe and environment-friendly
practices related to their routine operations, based on comprehensive risk profiling. It also includes
carrying out HSE audits of their workplaces and subsequently nudging them to improve their
infrastructure and practices through competition and token awards.

In 2023, a total of 506 activities were conducted under the Engro Muhafiz program and 21,299
farmers, dealers & community members were engaged in various initiatives under this program.
This included 11 blood donation drives, 7 medical camps, and 29 tree plantation drives across the
country.

corporate social responsibility

EFERT goes beyond simply giving back and believes in doing good while doing well. As a business,
we continuously strive to go beyond just corporate philanthropy to benefit both the Company and
the communities we engage with. We partner with Engro Foundation to create a win-win model and
take responsibility for people's well-being, investing in sustainable projects that drive positive social
and economic change. Through sustainable projects driven by our Engro Foundation, we invest in
local development and empower residents to create a brighter future. Our dedicated employees are
vital to this success, and we work closely with government and development partners to maximize
our impact.

Committed to both people and planet, EFERT established the Environment Sustainability &
Stakeholders Engagement Steering Committee. This group champions the social and economic
progress of those around our Daharki facility, while ensuring HSE compliance through thorough
emergency response training.

Our Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) programs are structured to maximize the effects of our
investments in the communities and can be categorized into the following broad areas:

Education

Livelihood

Healthcare services
Infrastructural support
Biodiversity initiatives
Agri value chain projects

L 20 20 20 2B B J

annual report 2023 enriching Pakistan | 108




education

The Company believes that education is the bedrock of a brighter future, not just for individuals but
for entire communities. That is why education has always been a cornerstone of our Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) strategy. We are not just building schools; we are investing in long-term
change and empowerment.

Our commitment is evident in the growing network of 25 schools we have established, with 15 in the
Katcha area of Ghotki and 10 in Daharki town. These schools provide a safe and nurturing learning
environment for underprivileged children, opening doors to new possibilities. During 2023, a new
block was inaugurated at Sahara School, increasing its capacity by 100 students, taking the total
enrolment to 535. We actively contribute to improving the quality of education in these institutions.
At the end of 2023, 1983 students thrived in our adopted government schools, while 2074 students
continued their education in the Katcha school network.

We heavily invest in the training and development of teaching staff, recognizing their crucial role in
transferring knowledge to future generations. This ensures our students receive the highest quality
education and are equipped with the skills and knowledge to excel in their future endeavors.
Education is not just about academics; it is about breaking the cycle of poverty. By providing access
to quality education, we are empowering individuals to secure better job opportunities, improve
their living standards, and contribute meaningfully to their communities.

Understanding the cultural preferences of the Katcha communities, the Company’s Diversity &
Inclusion agenda champions girls' education through culturally sensitive approaches. Recognizing
the power of education in breaking down barriers, we established the first Katcha Girls' middle
school. This trailblazing initiative, currently educating 52 young women, fosters a brighter future for
these communities by fostering gender equality and empowering the next generation — especially in
communities where locals do not prefer to send their daughters in a co-education environment.

Fostering confidence and education through debate, the Company actively promotes educational
opportunities. The "2nd Inter School Engro Debate Competition for Girls 2023," held at the
Technical Training Center Daharki, stands as a testament to this dedication. The event, graced by
distinguished guests such as the SVP Manufacturing of EFERT, the VP Operations, the Deputy
Commissioner of Ghotki, the Assistant Commissioner of Daharki, and officers from the Sindh
Education Department, brought together 20 schools and 40 debaters. This vibrant platform not only
challenged participants intellectually but also instilled confidence and public speaking skKills,
empowering young women to become vocal advocates for their communities.

Engro is also training young aspiring members of the community through a 3-year Diploma in
Associated Engineering in chemical, electrical and mechanical engineering. Through this program,
our Technical Training Institute initiative has helped bolster the careers of many individuals and
helped earn a decent livelihood for themselves and their families. The current enrolment in this
institute stands at 438. These graduates also regularly attain top positions in the Sindh Technical
board exams. In the year 2023, several Diploma in Associate Engineering (DAE) graduates have
been placed in EFERT in a variety of roles.
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Global hand wash day celebrated at CAER villages adopted Schools. Primary grade students were
engaged in this healthy activity. With the help of a pictorial and practical demonstration, the correct
handwash procedure was learnt by students. Additionally, career counselling was provided to
students to help map out a road map to achieve their individual career aspirations.

livelihood

To help empower differently abled individuals and those in need of a form of income, 12 livelihood
projects were awarded to widows and persons with disabilities to help create independent earning
opportunities. These projects constituted of Goat farming, Grocery stores and Ice cream making
grants.

For the socioeconomic independence of the households, financial grants have been provided to
help individuals set up sustainable small businesses and ensure an independent source of income
for their families.

healthcare

EFERT is deeply committed to ensuring the health and well-being of the communities within its
operational footprint. Recognizing the critical role of accessible healthcare in empowering
individuals and fostering sustainable development, the company undertakes a multi-pronged
approach to addressing the diverse healthcare needs of these communities.

At the forefront of providing essential services is the Sahara Clinic, a beacon of accessible care
within the community. In 2023 alone, the clinic treated a staggering 8,895 patients, providing vital
primary healthcare services free of cost. Committed to saving lives, the Company established a
dedicated snake-bite treatment facility, the first of its kind in the region. This facility has already
treated 5,819 snakebite patients, highlighting its crucial role in mitigating a significant health threat.
Addressing mobility challenges and detecting the debilitating impact of amputations, the Company
established a free-of-cost limbs facility in 2022. This pioneering initiative has already benefited
1,331 patients, restoring mobility and independence to their lives. To address Canine-Borne threats
and demonstrate its commitment to comprehensive healthcare, Engro developed a dedicated
dog-bite facility, treating 1,708 patients in 2023.

Promoting awareness while exemplifying employee engagement, the Sahara clinic hosted a free
Skin Diseases Treatment Camp under the Engro Volunteer Program. This three-day initiative
provided free consultations, treatment, and medication to 625 individuals, highlighting the
effectiveness of community-driven healthcare initiatives. Understanding the importance of
preventative measures, Engro conducted a 15-day fogging spray campaign across its CAER
villages, effectively protecting a significant population from the threat of dengue and malaria.

Recognizing the specific needs of women, Engro, in collaboration with its clinic team, conducted
awareness sessions on women's health in its CAER villages, empowering women with vital
information and promoting a culture of holistic healthcare. These initiatives speak volumes about
EFERT's unwavering dedication to ensuring equitable access to healthcare and fostering a
healthier, more empowered future for the communities it serves.

annual report 2023 enriching Pakistan | 110




infrastructural support

Understanding the critical role of clean water in health and well-being, EFERT has diligently
addressed water scarcity in the region. Throughout the year, 12 Reverse Osmosis (RO) plants,
primarily powered by renewable solar energy, have provided an exceptional 15 million liters of clean
water to approximately 4,000 families. This commendable project was complemented by sewerage
upgradation initiatives and installation of solar lights in various villages to display Engro's
commitment to ensuring basic necessities and improving the lives of local communities.

Recognizing the importance of environmental stewardship, Engro organized tree plantation drives
in Daharki city, CAER villages, and neighboring schools. Launched in September 2023, the
campaign saw the planting of thousands of fruit trees and other all-season varieties, contributing to
a greener and more sustainable future for the region. The Company also carried out tree plantation
drives, “Each One — Plant One” and “Hara Rang Dharti Ka” in which more than 5,000 trees have
been planted across Pakistan so far this year. In the previous quarters as well, the Company carried
out “Clean and Green Environment” tree plantation drive under which 18,000 trees were planted at
Bahawalpur border in collaboration with the Pakistan Army.

The Company fosters strong partnerships with local authorities to address diverse needs within the
community. This year, through collaboration with the District Government, EFERT contributed to the
Ramzan Bachat Bazar Daharki. This initiative offered groceries, vegetables, fruits, clothing, and
other essential items at subsidized rates to underprivileged individuals, providing much-needed
relief and support during Ramadan. Additionally, the Company provided crucial logistical support in
the form of rental vehicles for the bi-monthly Polio vaccination campaigns.

agriculture value chain

The Seed Purification & Chili Value Chain Improvement Project in partnership with Winrock
International and co-funded by US Department of Agriculture (USDA) has been successfully
completed. It was a two-year pilot program, commenced in January 2022 which aimed to revive the
traditional dandicut chili variety. Below are a few highlights of the project:

Key Achievements:

* 5000+ smallholder farmers including 500+ women were trained on Best Crop Management
Practices in Umerkot and Mirpurkhas districts. Chili seed growers and smallholder farmers were
provided with peat moss, seed packets and seedling trays.

* Amongst 5000 farmers, 25 beneficiaries (including a female) were trained and developed as
Seed Entrepreneurs. This training was conducted with the support of PARC-Arid Zone Research
Centre (AZRC) Umerkot and the seed purification tool kits were also distributed.

* A total of 87 Chili crop demonstration plots survived and thrived despite the heavy rains and
heatwaves in both Umerkot and mirpurkhas districts during the two-year project.

* Moreover, 1000 farmers benefitted through peer learning with additional spillover effect on 1000
farmers.

* Soil testing was conducted at 82 villages, and it emerged as a transformative practice, serving
as a change agent for farmers by reducing the overall cost of agricultural inputs.

* Looking at the high impact of the project, National Foods limited has signed an MoU with Engro
Foundation to work with some of the trained farmers and integrate them in their supply chain.
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biodiversity conservation: indus river dolphin conservation program

Engro Foundation has partnered with WWF Pakistan to conserve Indus River dolphin, one of the six
species of freshwater dolphins, endemic to Indus River and its tributaries only. The current
population is approximately 2,000 and it’s currently endangered on the [IUCN Red List.

We are working on:

* Establishing Key Biodiversity Area from Taunsa Barrage to Guddu Barrage. A workshop with
various stakeholders in this regard was conducted. The Head of KBA Secretariat, Dr Andrew
Plumptre participated. The project created a push for Pakistan to sign a new global declaration
to save the river dolphins that took place in Colombia in Oct 2023.

* River Health Assessment Report: The University of Maryland has been engaged for the
development of a River Health Assessment Report CARD, which marks the first-of-its-kind
intervention. This initiative aims to create tools that local communities and citizens can utilize for
monitoring river health.

A total of 20 eco-clubs have been established in schools across Districts Ghotki and Kashmore in
Sindh, as well as in Muzaffargarh, and DG Khan in Punjab to foster environmental awareness and
promote sustainable practices. A one-day eco-tour guide training was conducted in Sukkur for
enhancing the skills and capabilities of 12 boatmen to act as eco-tour guides.

statement of charity account

Committed to social responsibility, the Company generously contributed PKR 578Mn to support
vital initiatives in education, healthcare, environment, general well-being, and infrastructure
development.

our commitment to our people

As an organization that has always placed our People at the center of our success, our Human
Resources department remains motivated to prioritize the needs of our employees as they enable
growth for EFERT. Through our policies, compensation & benefits, learning & development
initiatives, and engagement activities, we seek to help nurture a workplace that fosters inclusivity
and collaborative success.

In 2023, HR undertook many new initiatives for greater efficiency, increased employee satisfaction
and improved employee performance. The following is HR’s contribution to the Company’s
success:

talent management
During 2023, focus has been on continuously streamlining our processes for an enhanced customer
experience, both internal and external.

Using industry analysis and sourcing channels to augment the quality of talent and to transition from
a reactive hiring to proactive hiring approach:
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+ Talent Mapping initiated for all divisions to improve the quality and lead time of sourcing relevant
profiles, thereby positively impacting the overall process efficiency and customer experience:
e A Talent Pool comprising of prospective women engineers was shared with the

Manufacturing Business

+ Women were hired in unconventional field roles

# More than 35 interns were inducted as part of the Company’s Summer Internship Program — The
students underwent challenging projects and assignments to enhance their professional
growth.

* Talent Mobility Index: A structured mechanism to enable Internal Movements across EFERT and
the Engro Group has been introduced. Movements highlights are summarized below:
e 82 Cross Subsidiary Transfers
e 34 Lateral Moves within EFERT
+ 55 Promotions

gender diversity
At EFERT, we take pride in providing everyone with an equal opportunity at employment and
growth. Some of the key milestones achieved with respect to gender diversity in 2023 include:

Women comprised 39% of total new joiners in 2023

8 women hired in Field Roles

12 women Graduate Trainee Engineers out of the total of 35 GTEs hired this year

4 women were hired in senior leadership roles in the Company

Partnered with Karachi Down Syndrome Program to welcome first ever batch of interns
Launched Parwaaz Program, successfully placing women in Marketing field roles
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rewards

As we reflect on the achievements of 2023, EFERT is proud to present a comprehensive overview
of the evolved rewards and recognition framework. Committed to the well-being and growth of our
workforce, the following highlights showcase our dedication to fostering a dynamic and rewarding
workplace culture:

# A structured revision of the minimum wage ensured that our employees are fairly compensated,
reflecting our dedication to equitable and competitive remuneration

* Aligning with changes in educational institute fees, the yearly assistance for children's education
has been revised

* Beginning this year, the steadfast commitment of our valued employees are presented with the
5-Year Long Service Award to commemorate and celebrate the enduring dedication
demonstrated by them

* Continuing our tradition of recognizing and celebrating hard work, bonus and promotions for the
year were disbursed as per Engro's philosophy, emphasizing the appreciation of high
performance and potential

# Pension Revision: In a significant move, we revisited the pension structure for retired and family
of retired employees, resulting in a substantial 47% increase in pension for each case. This
underscores our commitment to supporting our retired workforce
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As we conclude 2023, EFERT remains dedicated to creating a workplace where every employee is
valued, celebrated, and empowered. These initiatives represent our ongoing efforts to adapt to the
evolving needs of our workforce, ensuring that the Company remains an employer of choice and a
beacon of excellence in the industry.

strategic workforce planning

A Strategic Workforce Planning exercise was launched to structure the organizational design
process across EFERT. The objective is to identify talent needs associated with the organization's
future strategy and align the people agenda accordingly to ensure the organization has the right mix
of talent, infrastructure, and systems.

engagement and culture

In the realm of engagement, 2023 marked the milestone of EFERT launching its flagship listening
program Let’s Tune In, which provided employees with avenues for giving feedback through vibe
checks, an idea box, and our half yearly Pulse Survey, which run in tandem with the
organization-wide Employee Experience Survey. The second objective for the listening program is
to boost employee engagement and under the ambit of Let’s Tune In, we introduced the Fun Fridays
Initiative, holding a variety of fun events each Friday with board game competitions, mini golf,
painting activities, Snacktastic Fridays, and monthly birthday celebrations.

We also continued our long-held tradition of Sports Weekends and held a larger event than ever
before, featuring the Gala Dinner, Talent Show, Awards Ceremony, and Concerts, successfully
engaging, and bringing together engronians from across the subsidiaries.

capability development

Human Resource at EFERT is responsible to induce growth promote efficiency within the workforce
through skills and capability development. During 2023, the Company recorded a total of 22,758
learning hours for HR led learning interventions. A few major initiatives are summarized below:

# Inter-functional Mastery:
IFM was about fostering a culture of collaboration, understanding, and effective communication
across distinct functions within an organization. It was a valuable skill set that contributed to the
overall success and agility of the business.

* DEI Leadership Program:
Our commitment to fostering an inclusive culture took a transformative leap through our DE&I
Leadership Program and in 2023, we successfully held sensitization trainings for 100% of our
employee population. These one-day trainings provided an opportunity to sensitize and educate
our employees regarding the standard of conduct required to foster true inclusivity at the
workplace.

* We also conducted a diverse array of trainings that focused on capability building, ranging from
the Performance Enhancement Program sessions to trainings like Impactful Persuasion and
Gravitas, Collaboration through Mentorship, First Time Managers, and PMGM Retro Trainings.
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business ethics & anti-corruption measures

Transparency and accountability are cornerstones of the Company’s approach to governance. We
have implemented a robust framework of policies and standards rigorously monitored by high-level
committees which ensures every action aligns with ethical and operational best practices. Such
policies include:

Code of Conduct

Fraud Risk Management

Governance of Conflicts of Interest

Statement of Ethics and Business Practices
Whistleblower Policy

Governance of transactions/contracts with related parties

L 20 20 20 2B B

During the year, detailed sessions were held on Ethics and Compliance at the Company which
focused on our speak out platform, anti-corruption practices, conflict of interest and insider trading
policies.

consumer protection measures
At EFERT, we're dedicated to empowering farmers, not just selling them products. That's why we
go beyond fertilizer with a range of consumer protection measures:

* Transparent Pricing: We provide retail price lists to all dealers, ensuring farmers pay fair prices
and avoid exploitation.

* Expert Guidance: Our trained agronomists equip farmers with knowledge on optimal fertilizer
usage, soil health improvement, and best practices for higher yields.

* Free Soil Testing: We offer free soil sampling services across Pakistan, helping farmers
understand their soil's needs and tailor their fertilizer use for optimal results.

* Convenient Access: Our extensive distribution network and dealer network ensure timely
product delivery, so farmers can focus on what matters most - growing their crops.

* Informed Choice: We clearly communicate MRP information for urea through advertisements
and marketing materials, empowering farmers to make informed decisions.

contribution to national exchequer

During the year 2023, the Company contributed nearly PKR 34.7Bn towards the National
Exchequer by way of Government taxes, duties, and levies, compared to PKR 11.6Bn in 2022.
Further, value addition in terms of savings in foreign exchange amounted to approximately US$ 835
Mn through import substitution of 2,313 KT of urea and related products manufactured and sold in
the country by EFERT in 2023.
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internal control framework

* Responsibility:
The Board is ultimately responsible for the Company’s systems of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable rather than
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board, whilst maintaining its
overall responsibility for managing risk within the Company, has delegated the detailed design
and operation of the system of internal controls to the Chief Executive.

* Framework:
The Company maintains an established control framework comprising of clear structures,
authority limits, and accountabilities, well understood policies and procedures and budgeting for
review processes. Policies and control procedures are documented in manuals as well. The
Board establishes corporate strategy and the Company's business objectives. Divisional
management integrates these objectives into divisional business strategies with supporting
financial objectives.

* Review:
The Board meets every quarter to consider the Company’s’ financial performance, financial and
operating budgets and forecasts, business growth and development plans, capital expenditure
proposals and other key performance indicators.

The Board Audit Committee receives reports on the system of internal financial controls from the
external and internal auditors and reviews the process for monitoring the effectiveness of
internal controls. There is a Company-wide policy governing appraisal and approval of
investment expenditure and asset disposals. Once projects are completed, reviews are
performed on all material investment expenditure.

* Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls:
The Board of Directors has employed an articulate paradigm of internal financial controls,
promoting the culture of moral conduct and ethical obligation within the Company’s systems
and processes.

Directors’ remuneration

The Company has a formal policy and transparent procedures for the remuneration of its directors
in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019. The policy also provides travel and daily allowance entitlements for
Non-Executive Directors for business related travel.

The remuneration, including the director fee for attending the Board or Board Committee Meetings,

paid to the Directors and Chief Executive Officer is disclosed in Note No. 40 (of the Notes to the
unconsolidated financial statements.)
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pension, gratuity, and provident fund

The employees of the Company participate in Retirement Funds maintained by Engro Corporation
(the Parent Company). The Company contributes to plans that provide post-employment and
retirement benefits for its employees. These include DC provident fund, DC gratuity plan and DB
gratuity plans. The value of net assets of Provident Fund (as at June 30, 2023) and Gratuity and
Pension funds (as at December 31, 2022) based on their respective audited accounts are:

Provident Fund: PKR 5,501 million (EFERT’s share: ~PKR 1,829 million)
DC Pension Fund: PKR 418 million (EFERT’s share: ~PKR 254 million)

DB Pension Fund: PKR 44 million (All EFERT)

DC Gratuity Fund: PKR 3,439 million (EFERT’s share: ~PKR 1,192 million)
DB NMPT Gratuity Fund: PKR 223 million (All EFERT)

DB MPT Gratuity Fund: PKR 126 million (EFERT’s share: ~PKR 113 million)

auditors

The existing auditors of the Company A.F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants retire and being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment. The Board Audit Committee recommends
their appointment as auditors for the year ending December 31, 2024.

pattern of shareholding
As of December 31, 2023, Associated Companies and Directors of the Company held the following
number of shares:

Particulars % of Shareholding

Associated Companies ‘ 56.27%
Directors and Dependents ‘ 0.004%

A detailed pattern of shareholding is disclosed in the Shareholder’s Information section of the
Annual Report.

statement of director responsibilities

The Directors confirm the compliance with Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and Code of Corporate Governance for the
following matters:

* The financial statements prepared by the Management of the Company, present fairly its state

of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

The Company has maintained proper books of accounts.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the

financial statements. Accounting estimates are based on reasonable prudent judgment.

* International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been duly followed
in preparation of the financial statements.

* The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

* There is no doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

L 2 |
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* There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as
detailed in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

# The Directors Training program has been completed by all the Directors. Mr. Ahsan Zafar Syed
attended director’s training program during the year.

board composition and attendance
The Board of Directors held 5 meetings to cover its complete cycle of activities. The attendance
record of the Directors is as follows:

Mr. Ghias Khan Non-Executive Director & Chairman 5/5
Mr. Javed Akbar Non-Executive Director 5/5
Mr. Khawaja Bilal Hussain** Non-Executive Director 3/3
Mr. Ismail Mahmud Non-Executive Director 4/5
Dr. Shamshad Akhtar* Independent Director 3/3
Mr. Asad Said Jafar Independent Director 5/5
Mr. Asim Murtaza Khan Independent Director 5/5
Ms. Danish Zuberi*** Independent Director 11
Mr. Ahsan Zafar Syed Chief Executive Officer 5/5

*Resigned on August 23, 2023.

**Resigned on September 24, 2023.

**Co-opted as Independent Director on November 01, 2023 in place of Dr. Shamshad Akhtar.
There is one casual vacancy on the board as of December 31, 2023

BPC composition and attendance
In 2023, the Board People Committee held 4 meetings to cover its complete cycle of activities. The
attendance record of the Directors is as follows:

Asim Murtaza Khan, Chairman 4/4
Javed Akbar 4/4
Ghias Khan 4/4

BAC composition and attendance
In 2023, the Board Audit Committee held 5 meetings to cover its complete cycle of activities. The
attendance record of the Directors is as follows:

Mr. Asad Said Jafar, Chairman 5/5

Mr. Asim Murtaza Khan 5/5

Mr. Javed Akbar 5/5
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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corporate strategy & resource allocation

strategy

EFERT establishes strategic objectives for the short, medium, and long term, outlining clear priorities and
actionable strategies. This deliberate approach not only enables the company to optimize its resources
efficiently but also serves as a guiding framework, instilling focus, and motivation within teams by
providing a clear sense of purpose and direction. The implementation of a comprehensive plan allows
for continuous monitoring of progress, ensuring that the company remains on track towards its goals.
This disciplined approach not only propels EFERT towards long-term success but also fosters value
creation for its stakeholders.

measurable kpis in achieving strategic excellence and their relevance

EFERT excels in the precise identification and design of pertinent and tangible performance indicators.
These indicators are meticulously crafted, taking into account the company's forecasts regarding
indicative industry dynamics and macro factors that may influence profitability. The establishment of
measurable Key Performance Indicators (KPls) initiates essential discussions among stakeholders,
fostering transparent communication about the significance and purpose of the KPI process. This, in
turn, underscores its strategic importance within the broader plan and vision.

To ensure the realization of strategic aims and objectives, a well-structured KPI planning,
implementation, and monitoring process is in place. This systematic approach guarantees that EFERT
remains on course to achieve its goals, fostering adaptability and responsiveness in alignment with
industry dynamics and macroeconomic shifts.

significant changes in objectives and strategies
EFERT employs a clear and well-defined framework for business objectives and strategies, regularly
evaluating them in light of macro and micro environmental developments.

We maintain a vigilant stance, continuously monitoring relevant factors to stay informed about any
emerging developments. This proactive approach enables us to take prompt and appropriate actions,
safeguarding the interests of our shareholders, community, and other stakeholders.

resource allocation plans

The company is committed to realizing strategic objectives through the efficient utilization of available
resources. This involves leveraging the strength of the Engro brand, effectively managing financial
capital, harnessing the skills of a competent human resource, emphasizing manufacturing excellence,
and maintaining robust Health, Safety, and Environment (HSE) standards.

Strategic resource allocation is crucial for business expansion, ensuring the achievement of measurable
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), and mitigating existing risks. The company employs a synergistic
combination of resources to attain its targets and generate value for stakeholders. By optimally allocating
these resources, the company can address farmers' needs, enhance agricultural yields, establish a
resilient trade and distribution network associated with the integral image of Engro, elevate the brand's
presence and visibility, support the implementation of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) projects,
and embrace the best sustainable practices. This comprehensive approach aligns with the company's
commitment to sustainable growth and stakeholder satisfaction.
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Social and
Relationship
Capital

Manufactured
Capital

Natural Financial
Capital Capital

&3

Financial Capital Human Capital Social and Relationship Capital

Manufactured Capital Intellectual Capital Natural Capital

The relationship between EFERT’s objective, strategy, priority and financial & non-financial performance
indicators used to gauge results are as follows:
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1. Enhance farmer productivity Long-term objective 3. Leverage brand name to increase top-line Medium-term objective

4 N 4 . . . . . N\ 4 N\ 4 N
« Pilot various initiatives of improving farmer productivity. \ .
. . . i . +  Use Engro’s strong brand name to improve presence across all
Strategic > +  Interact with farmers to provide guidance Strategic > regions in the country
Actions . L|a|59n with relevant stakeholders to support use of balanced Actions . Introduce wide range of products and services
nutrients.
. J . J . J . J
4 N N 4 N N
Resource Resource
Allocation Allocation
- J J - J J
4 N 4 N 4 N 4 N
Measurable «  Yield peracre Measurable «  Market share
KPI & its > «  Soil strength and cropping patterns KPI & its > «  Share of dealer wallet
relevance +  Will continue to be relevant in the foreseeable future relevance +  Will continue to be relevant in the foreseeable future

- J - J - J - J

4. Become the farmer's preferred partner

STERET TAaIE by offering new value added products

Long-term objective High
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4 ™ / N 4 ™ / N
Strategic - Make efficient use of available gas to improve capacity utilization of Strategic . Focus on products diversification and introduced new value added
Actions manufacturing facility Actions fertilizers that help improve farmer yield
. J . J . J . J
4 ™ / N 4 ™ / N
Resource Resource %Q E\ 3
Allocation Allocation &
. J . J . J . J
/ ™\ 4 N / ™\ 4 N
«  Growthi
Measur?ble Capacity utilization of Plant 1 and Plant 2 Measur:_able o n revenue. .
KPI & its i . . KPI & its «  Enhanced profitability
Will continue to be relevant in the foreseeable future. . . .
relevance relevance - Will continue to be relevant in the foreseeable future.
- J . J - J . J
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5. Achieving operational efficiency Medium-term objective High 7. Corporate social responsibility Long-term objective High

/ ™ 4 ™ / N 4 ™
Strategic +  Work on improving plant utilization and energy efficiency. Strategic +  Focusing on improving quality of life of people in communities in
Actions + International benchmarking. Actions which we operate.
- J . J - J . J
/ ™ ™ / N ™
Resource Resource
Allocation Allocation
. J J . J J
/ ™ 4 N 4 N 4 ™
. + Total CSR budget
Measurable «  Plantenergy index Measurable
. . «  Number of students at school
KPI & its + Lessoutage days KPI & its )
) . . +  Number of patients treated
relevance «  Will continue to be relevant in the foreseeable future. relevance ] ) )
«  Will continue to be relevant in the foreseeable future.
. J . J . J . J

8. Making a positive impact by

6. Providing agri-inputs at optimal prices Medium-term objective High adopting best sustainable practices

Long-term objective High

4 h 4 h 4 h - Minimizing the environmental impacts of our operations h
Strategic . Facilitate the local farmers by providing inputs at affordable prices. Strategic »  Responsible consumption & Clean water and sanitization
Actions Actions +  People development and engagement
+ Sustainable cities and communities
. J . J . J . J
4 N\ N 4 N 4 N
Resource Resource
Allocation Allocation
. J J . J J
4 ) 4 A 4 ) (" «  Contribution towards social cause A
Measurable . Local vs International Urea prices Measurable + Reduction in CO2 emissions
KPI & its Will . be rel p hef ble f KPI & its +  Reduction contamination of underground water
relevance . ill continue to be relevant in the foreseeable future. relevance . Reduction in paper consumption
N ) S ) N ) L ” Will continue to be relevant in the foreseeable future. )

143 I enriching Pakistan engro fertilizers limited annual report 2023 enriching Pakistan I 144




adoption of united nations
sustainable development goals
(UNSDGS)

journey to UNSDGs: efert’s contributions

With the introduction of the 2030 Sustainable Development Goals, the UN sought to help create a
more sustainable, just, and equitable future. With the 17 SDG’s built to focus on a diverse array of
goals that would help ensure development for People, the Planet, Prosperity and Peace. Adopted
by Pakistan with initiative and enthusiasm since 2016, the SDG goals have become a guiding
principle and benchmark for the philanthropic and developmental work of organizations across the
nation. As firm believers in the importance of integrating sustainability in all our operations, EFERT
greatly prioritizes its compliance and engagement with world-class practices and pertinent
advancements in the development sector along with remaining cognizant of the challenges of the
prevailing environmental challenges and economic landscape.

We have remained committed to engaging regularly and remaining abreast of all we can do to help
further the development of Pakistan by generating value for our stakeholders while focusing on
creating sustainable ways to do so. As a member of the UN Global Compact, EFERT is dedicated
to making the Global Compact and its ten principles part of the strategy, culture and day-to-day
operations of the Group.

no poverty, quality education, decent work and economic
growth, reduced inequalities
To help truly uplift a community and ensure a more prosperous future, it is

important to provide avenues for financial empowerment and independence. gg BOVERTY

EFERT maintains its stance on UNSDG 1: “No Poverty” and UNSDG 4 ‘Quality
Education’ and understands the only way to achieve this is to empower people
financially, that can only be achieved by improving the accessibility and quality
of education. As such, Sahara Welfare School continues to deliver quality
education in the vicinity of our manufacturing facility in Daharki throughout the
year and currently have 550 students enrolled.

YL

The Company also has also established a blended learning model for providing

quality education to underprivileged communities while consistently improving 83' Y
quality and learning outcomes at these institutions. We currently have 25 EDUCATION
schools in our network, out of which 15 are in Katcha area, and 10 are in

Daharki. The enrolment at our adopted government schools stands at 1983 .'
students currently. Furthermore, our Katcha School Network, with an

enrolment of over 2074 students, continues to operate including the operations
at the first girls’ middle school in Ghazi Chachar with support from CDP
(Government of Sindh), private donors and EFERT.
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As part of Engro’s Diversity, Equity & Inclusion agenda, we have also invested
in girls’ education in our Katcha areas. These areas do not prefer co-education
schools so in order to encourage the villagers to allow their girls to study, we
have established our first Katcha Girls’ middle school which now has 52 female
students.

Engro has also established skills training programs like the Technical Training
College (TTC) at Daharki have been established which offers a 3-year Diploma
in Associated Engineering (DAE) in Chemical, Electrical and Mechanical
technologies, as well as short-term vocational training programs for the youth
living in the district. The college over 3,500+ alumni and the current enrolment
stands at 438. These graduates also regularly attain top positions in the Sindh
Technical board exams. In the year 2023, about 14 Diploma in Associate
Engineering (DAE) graduates have been placed in Engro Fertilizers in a variety
of roles. For the socioeconomic independence of the households we serve,
10M in financial grants have also been granted to help individuals set up
sustainable small businesses.

To help empower differently abled individuals and those in need of a means of
gaining income, 12 livelihood projects were awarded. Through Goat Farming
ventures, Grocery Stores and homemade Ice cream businesses, these projects
create sustainable and independent earning opportunities. Similarly, to help
integrate differently abled individuals into our own workforce, we collaborated
with the Karachi Down Syndrome to launch our internship program and
inducted our first batch of interns in 2023. As of 2023, our employee % of
People with Disabilities stands at 1% and we aim to increase this number by
2.5x by 2025. We aim to hire 05 more differently-abled employees in the year
2024 under Engro’s Khudi program. The Khudi Training Program is a
one-of-a-kind traineeship for persons with disabilities at various open roles in
Engro. People with all forms of disabilities are eligible to apply. As an inclusive
employer, Engro prioritizes diversity, equity, and belonging, fostering an
environment where the unique strengths and perspectives of every individual
are not just welcomed but celebrated.

Our Company has also established a one of its first kind initiative, Engro
Muhafiz, related to stakeholder engagement and HSE in 2021. The program is
in line with the Company’s HSE policy to protect and train all communities
involved and linked with our operations. The program is designed to train
farmers and dealers in safe and environmentally friendly practices related to
their routine operations, based on comprehensive risk profiling. It also includes
carrying out HSE audits of their workplaces and encouraging constant
improvement. In 2023, several initiatives were held with the support of the
Marketing Division’s dealers and the Shaandar Kissan program to educate the
help improve the community’s HSE standards for safety in their homes and
workplaces. A total of 506 activities were held across Punjab and Sindh and
successfully engaged a population of over 21,000 people in total
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across the communities we operate in. Major activities included free medical
camps, blood donation drives, HSE awareness sessions at schools, tree
plantation drives, awareness and precautionary sessions and measures during
heat waves, and farmer safety sessions.

gender equality

With a great portion of the nation’s population being held back by a lack of
access to resources, EFERT prioritizes providing an equal opportunity at
employment and growth and has taken steps the alleviate the gender inequality
and pay scale gap between men and women. To ensure equity and diversity
across the levels of the Company, the Board has defined measurable KPIs
which it uses to monitor the Company performance and updates under this
UNSDG. To help make the workplace more diverse and encouraging for female
employees, a 3-point framework for gender diversity and various gender
sensitization sessions have been conducted.

In 2023, Engro Fertilizers sponsored the SDG Leadership Programme (SDGLP)
for Goal 5: Equality. SDGLP is the flagship program of the Centre of Excellence
in Responsible Business (CERB) at the Pakistan Business Council (PBC) to
recognize SDG Leaders from the PBC membership which champion their local
communities and the environment through inclusive workplaces and climate
action. CERB will use EFERT as a benchmark for the industry, showcasing
EFERT’s efforts in assessing a company’s performance on gender to devise a
company-wide strategy, with defined short- and long-term targets on
enhancing diversity. And on creating an optimal work environment to retain
women and promote equal opportunity workplaces.

EFERT has always been a leader in the industry in its gender diversity drive by
opening avenues to women from various socio-economic backgrounds to
work with the Company in different unconventional roles such as Trade
Apprentices, GTEs, Workshop Supervisors, Warehouse In-Charges and in
other field-oriented roles. In 2023, EFERT provided more opportunities to
women than ever before with 40% of entrant level positions being occupied by
women, marking a 1.5x increase. 34 out of the 79 Trade Apprentices hired in
2023 were women, and 14 of the 35 Graduate Trainee Engineers hired in 2023.
9 out of 27 of the M1s and M2s hired in 2023 were also women. With 10
women in leadership across the divisions of EFERT, this marks a remarkable 5x
increase from last year. Our diversity ratio now stands at 9.2%, which is a 3x
increase across the last 3 years.

More data regarding the constitution of our employee base can be found in the
Human Capital section of this report.
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zero hunger

EFERT takes its responsibility to bolster the food security of Pakistan and takes
great pride in serving farmers through its indigenous fertilizer product portfolio
which represents 35% of the Pakistani fertilizer market. With an ever-increasing
population of the nation entirely dependent on local crops for sustenance, the
Company continues to play a crucial role in ensuring a supply of fertilizers at the
right price to the farmer. With a diverse fertilizer portfolio, The Company
continues to work on replenishing nutrient-deficient soil resulting in a larger
harvest and promoting sustainable farming practices.

Along with establishing a product portfolio that will address the scarcity of
resources, EFERT also trains and educates farmers in agricultural sciences and
runs several farmer advisory platforms. With the Agri Services Program
arranging seminars, farmer meetings, group discussions and agri-workshops,
and educational farm visits for advisory assistance in crop management,
soil/water testing services through established labs, and 4R nutrient
stewardship, EFERT provides extensive support to the farming community.

Our products are designed to help boost crop yield and address malnutrition
and related health issues. Our Innovative product Zabardast Urea (Bioactive
Zinc coated Urea) is helping the farmers to grow more by improving yield by
10% vyield, and enriching food with Zinc. During 2023, Zabardast Urea was
applied on 5.6 million acres of cereal crops which helped produce healthy and
Zinc enriched grain, sufficient to feed 56 million people for a year. Moreover,
various initiatives have been launched over the years like Shandaar-Kissan
program, aimed at the development and growth of farmers through training,
advisory support based on farmer soil and water testing aimed at balanced use
of fertilizers and to improve nutrient use efficiency.

good health and well-being

Ensuring the safety, well-being and health of our employees is a top priority for
EFERT. A safety-first attitude is an integral part of all our operations,
accomplished through extensive training and diligent monitoring of compliance
with protocols. In 2023, we have held several sessions and spearheaded
initiatives ranging from the Road Safety Week, global hand washing day,
detailed first aid & CPR trainings, precautionary measures for heat strokes and
informative sessions on snake bites.

In the realm of Healthcare, Engro provides free-of-cost essential services to the
communities through clinics, hearing aid camps, and crucial time-sensitive
treatments for snake bite and dog bite patients. Our initiatives on the healthcare
front include the Sahara Clinic which treated a total of 8895 patients this year,
while a singular snake-bite treatment facility treated a total of 5819 snake bite
patients. In 2022, the region’s first free-of-cost Limbs Facility was
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established and has since then treated 1331 patients. We also developed a Dog
Bite Facility that treated 1708 — patients this year. Under the ambit of the Engro
Volunteer program, Sahara clinic organized a free-of-cost Skin diseases
treatment camp in Daharki. In this three-day camp, free consultation, treatment,
and medication were provided. A total of 625 individuals were treated. To stop
the spread of dengue and malaria, preventative measures were also taken in the
form of fogging spray, which covered a population of Engro Fertilizers
Community awareness and emergency response (CAER) villages in its 15-day
drive.

In collaboration with our Engro Fertilizers Clinic team, we conducted an
awareness session on women’s health in the CAER villages. Similarly, to
promote women’s health and wellness in the workplace, the Specialty Fertilizers
Business’ North zone team introduced an initiative to ensure the provision of
feminine hygiene products for field-based female team members of SFB and
warehousing teams, aimed at creating an inclusive work environment. Similarly,
our Head Office also introduced permanent installations in the restrooms that
provide free-of-cost sanitary products for all women employees in the office.

The Base Business North Zone team collaborated with the Fatimid Foundation
for a Blood Donation Drive. The team managed to collect and donate 435 pints
of blood to the Fatimid Foundation across the North Zone, translating into
treatment arrangements for 1,305 patients suffering from Thalassemia and
Hemophilia.

To further bolster the environmental awareness of our employees, various
awareness sessions were held in the celebration of World Environment Day,
ranging from environmental measures such as water and energy preservation to
segregating hazardous waste materials, drawing competition for kids on the
theme of green environment, and an online quiz on environmental issues.
EFERT launched an Environment Week in 2023, with the agenda for the week
incorporating everything from environmental footprints, a cycle to work
campaign and the paper reduction drive to the correct method of waste
segregation.

Our occupational health program encompasses industrial hygiene and
occupational health. In 2023, we initiated various health awareness and control
programs to foster good health and inculcate hygienic practices among our
employees. All food vicinities, clubs and canteens, obtained HACCP
certification in 2023, demonstration the robust monitoring and control practices
for our food safety requirements. Throughout the year, various awareness
campaigns for disease prevention and initiatives to encourage a healthy lifestyle
were launched. Health drives such as Better Health, Better Tomorrow and the
Metabolic Syndrome drive were introduced. Our site workers also underwent
comprehensive training regarding the effective utilization of personal protective
equipment and hazardous material management.
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clean water and sanitation

As EFERT works in the chemical industry and water is a limited and precious
resource, we consider it our responsibility to help maintain clean water sources
and ensure the proper disposal of generated waste. For this reason, a
multi-layered approach is used to manage the effluent generation, quality, and
disposal on-site while maintaining high standards of quality and control. To
ensure that quality standards are met before disposal, a dedicated effluent
treatment facility was set in place to treat the effluent generated at residential
colonies. Additionally, to minimize the water footprint and help address the
need for freshwater sources, EFERT has been concentrating on reusing water
in our processes and our manufacturing facility is designed to recycle water
used during the manufacturing process. After extensive chemical processing,
this water is then recycled. A closed-loop recycling system is also used for the
cooling water system that is installed in manufacturing facilities to cool process
streams.

To further reduce its impact on the environment and water footprint, EFERT has
undertaken projects like effluent recovery optimization and cooling water blow
reduction. A further indication of the high standards of quality control is the
reuse of the effluent produced at the site for horticulture. As part of EFERT’s
initiative to conserve natural resources, the geomembrane lining all 16 of our
evaporations ponds has been successfully completed.

To ensure the uninterrupted supply of clean water in CAER villages, Daharki
City and Ghotki Railway Station, a total of 12 RO plants have been installed by
the Company, mostly running over renewable solar energy and providing
approximately 15 million liters of water across 4000+ households and to all the
daily train passengers this year.

In the Sahiwal region, a water conservation drive was launched by Base
Business with the tagline “Save water save life” for the purpose of creating
water conservation awareness among all our stakeholders and community
members. 11 awareness sessions were conducted in schools, colleges, and
universities covering 3,500 community members involving teachers, staff, and
students.

affordable and clean energy

Given the energy-intensive nature of the Company’s manufacturing operations,
responsible energy consumption and a focus on clean, renewable energy are
top priorities. EFERT engages in actions to reduce energy usage and
investigate renewable energy sources. In this regard, in the year 2023, EFERT’s
warehousing division has taken the lead so far by converting 86 warehouses to
solar power. Additionally, in order to uphold our commitment to providing clean
and affordable energy to our stakeholders, improvements such as the
installation of solar lights in educational facilities in Daharki and Ghotki have
been made with the support of the local community. Initiatives taken in this
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direction are described in the report's section on social performance. As part of
its sustainability strategy, EFERT is committed to reducing its carbon footprint
for which a few initiatives were implemented during the Long Term Reliability
Turnaround (LTR) of the Base plant and have contributed to improvement in site
emissions. These initiatives included the replacement of the primary reformer
burners along with turbine exhaust gas duct has resulted in better combustion
efficiency, false air ingress has been reduced post hardware modifications on
primary reformer resulting in better heat efficiency, and the steam optimization
on plant post LTR has resulted in improved fuel efficiency.

During the year 2023, EFERT has been involved in multiple energy efficiency
improvement projects that were executed. These included the Plant-1 furnace
optimization, AM-II HP purges reduction, Optimization of NH3 converter, AM-3
HTSC temperature optimization and Steam optimizations at URUT-IIl &
Ammonia-lll. To highlight the initiatives taken, EFERT has written a technical
paper that was approved in Nitrogen+Syngas conference for 2023. The paper,
titled “Optimizing Gas Mixture in a Vintage Urea Plant to Enhance Production
Capacity and Energy Efficiency for Sustainable Operation”, discusses an
alternative to avoid the formation of gaseous mixtures, which are energy
efficient and environmentally friendly that can be beneficial for the industries
operating in the same capacity.

To minimize our impact on the environment, the Warehouse team also initiated
a solarization project across field warehouses to reduce our carbon footprint.
As of 2023, we have over 80 warehouses powered via solar power generation
of 7.2 kilowatts per day per warehouse.

responsible consumption and production, and industry,
innovation and infrastructure

It is becoming a matter of increasing importance considering the rapidly
altering and evolving global circumstances that EFERT ensures responsible
consumption and production by constantly optimizing and innovating in its
processes.

Innovative engineering solutions were adopted during the LTR at base plant to
overcome load limitations, thereby enabling plant operations at the maximum
possible load (144%) and efficiency. Making use of the latest technology and
advanced process controller was commissioned at EnVen plant Urea-3.

The EFERT HSE management system underwent digital transformation with
the adoption of the state-of-the-art Velocity EHS platform. This has significantly
enhanced effectiveness and productivity by enabling efficient tracking,
record-keeping, stewardship, and real-time data analysis.

Throughout the year, targeted HSE campaigns were conducted to collectively
improve behavioral and inherent safety at the site. These efforts have positively
impacted operational discipline by empowering individuals to lead various HSE
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initiatives. Through these programs, we aspire to transform the mindsets and
behaviors of our employees, both on a personal and professional level. A
21-day forced outage at Ammonia-Il plant was completed without any injury
owing to the enhanced focus and commitment of the team towards safe
execution of all jobs. Additionally, the Zarkhez plant has once again
accomplished a "ZERO" Total Recordable Incident Rate (TRIR) in a calendar
year for the fourth consecutive year. This accomplishment reflects a robust
HSE culture and unwavering adherence to HSE policies and principles.

The transition from a compliance-based HSE program to a Risk-Based
Approach (RBA) represents a significant step towards achieving HSE
excellence. This approach adopts a more focused lens to review inherent HSE
risks, with the primary aim of enhancing the management of top HSE risks,
specifically Major Accident Hazard Scenarios (MAHS). In 2023, the Risk-Based
Assessment phase-2 was successfully completed at the EFERT manufacturing
plants in Daharki and Zarkhez. This involved a comprehensive analysis of all
Major Accident Hazard scenarios (MAHSs) on-site, utilizing advanced HAZOP
and LOPA techniques. Ensuring the effectiveness of barriers through Bowties
development and integrating them with safety-critical system was a crucial
aspect of this phase.

To facilitate the adoption and effective implementation of the Risk-Based
Approach, extensive competency development workshops were conducted.
These workshops included in-house training sessions as well as external
training and workshops facilitated by PIl (Process Improvement Institute -
USA). Additionally, a comprehensive Fire & Risk Assessment study for the
entire site has been successfully completed, emphasizing the adequacy of the
emergency response system in place across all possible scenarios.

In 2023, dedicated efforts were undertaken to enhance environmental
performance at Engro Fertilizers. EFERT was certified by the International
Fertilizer Association (IFA) Protect & Sustain for robust management practices
related to product quality, security, and sustainability. The Daharki
manufacturing plant led the Net-Zero waste project, progressing towards the
execution phase. This initiative resulted in the conversion of organic waste from
the colony into compost, suitable for horticulture. Additionally, plastic waste
was repurposed into lifestyle products as part of this sustainability initiative. As
part of EFERT’s initiative to conserve natural resources, the geo-membrane
lining of evaporation ponds was successfully completed. An extensive noise
aspect impact assessment on critical receptors was conducted under the
environmental sustainability management program. The noise panel installation
at the ENCOP-3 facility was successfully completed as well. EFERT also
conducted comprehensive research and benchmarking on effluent quality
standards, aiming to enhance environmental reporting and compliance. An
Environmental Management Plan was developed for the management of
hazardous materials at site and resources were adequately trained.
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EFERT has also strengthened its processes with agility via digitalization and
automation, with the introduction of electronic bank guarantees for the first time
in Pakistan and the launch of the first-ever customer relationship management
application in the industry that enables customers to book orders efficiently.

climate action, life on land

As global climate conditions continue to worsen, the need to address climate
change has become a matter of utmost priority. To help address the urgency for
action, a carbon footprint reduction plan was developed in 2017 in accordance
with global standards with the aim of bringing the Company’s performance in
line with globally acceptable levels for the fertilizer industry. Through increased
urea production using more environmentally friendly gas inputs than RLNG, the
Company managed to significantly reduce its carbon footprint. The Company
took a number of efficiency initiatives to improve its plant efficiencies including
the Feed Gas Enrichment unit. In pursuit of continuous improvement, EFERT
manufacturing Daharki site did extensive exercises for measurement of air shed
quality for 6 long months in 2020 to evaluate its operational impacts on ambient
air. A Flare system is provided at our state-of-the-art environmentally friendly
ENVEN plant where all gaseous streams are burnt before venting directly into

the atmosphere making it the only facility in Pakistan operating with this feature.

2023 also marked the launch of EFERT’s "Plant a Tree, Plant a Hope" flagship
project, underscoring our dedication to environmental conservation, carbon
footprint offsetting, and sustainable practices, Engro Fertilizers’ Zarkhez Plant
joined hands with WWF (Worldwide Fund for Nature) on May 16th, 2023. With
this collaborative effort to address the impact of climate change and preserve
coastal ecosystems in Pakistan, they pledged to plant 1,000 mangrove saplings
along the coastlines. Thousands of trees were also planted throughout the year
under the Environmental campaigns launched in 2023.

As a part of our continued efforts to help the environment, a tree plantation drive
has been conducted at Daharki city, CAER villages and vicinity schools.
Thousands of fruit trees and other all seasons’ trees were planted during a
campaign started in the last week of September 2023.

The Base Business North Zone team also launched a Tree Plantation Drive in
collaboration with the Forest Department with the tagline ‘Save Trees — Save
Life’. During this tree plantation drive, 2,900 tree saplings were planted at 17
different schools and colleges.

In the Sahiwal region, a water conservation drive was launched by the Base
Business with the tagline “Save Water Save Life” for the purpose of creating
water conservation awareness among all our stakeholders and community
members. 11 awareness sessions were conducted in schools, colleges, and
universities covering 3,500 community members involving teachers, staff, and
students.
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Lastly, by transforming waste into high-quality compost, the Company’s
Manufacturing site has committed itself to waste reduction and environmental
stewardship as part of its NET ZERO WASTE Project. As part of its visionary
NET ZERO WASTE Project, the company made a steadfast commitment to
waste reduction and environmental stewardship. This initiative primarily
focuses on the conversion of waste into quality compost, effectively
transforming materials that would otherwise contribute to landfill waste into a
valuable resource. EFERT Manufacturing harnesses the power of nature to
convert various types of waste, including food scraps, garden waste, and other
organic materials, into a nutrient-rich compost. This compost, teeming with
beneficial properties, serves as a powerful catalyst for enhancing soil health
and fostering robust plant growth.

Composting allows us to improve the structure and health of your soil by
adding organic matter, helps the soil retain moisture and nutrients, attracts
beneficial organisms to the soil, reduces the potential for soil erosion,
sequesters carbon in the soil, and builds resilience against the effects of
climate change.

life below water

Engro Foundation has partnered with WWF-Pakistan for the Indus River
Dolphins Conservation Project for the last five years to conserve Indus River
dolphin, one of the six species of freshwater dolphins, endemic to Indus River
and its tributaries only. The current population is about 2,000 and endangered
on the IUCN (International Union for Conservation of Nature) Red List. EF with
EFERT’s support is working on this project and has focused on establishing
key biodiversity area from Taunsa Barrage to Guddu Barrage. A workshop with
various stakeholders in declaring a part of the Indus River as a protected area
was conducted. The Head of KBA Secretariat, Dr Andrew Plumptre
participated. The project created a push for Pakistan to sign a new global
declaration to save the river dolphins that took place in Colombia in Oct 2023.
The University of Maryland has been engaged for the development of a River
Health Assessment Report CARD, which marks the first-of-its-kind
intervention.

This initiative aims to create tools that local communities and citizens can utilize
for monitoring river health. A total of 20 eco-clubs have been established in
schools across Districts Ghotki and Kashmore in Sindh, as well as in
Muzaffargarh, and DG Khan in Punjab to foster environmental awareness and
promote sustainable practices. A one-day eco-tour guide training was
conducted in Sukkur for enhancing the skills and capabilities of 12 boatmen to
act as eco-tour guides. Engro Foundation was part of a panel in World Water
Week that focused on the use of pingers in the conservation of river dolphins.
Pingers produce sounds that keep dolphins away from fishing nets and have
turned out to be effective in preventing dolphin entanglements. Therefore, one
key action was carrying out population surveys and rescue operations, using
technology, tags and pingers, to support conservation efforts.
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iInvestor relations financial performance review

Financial Year ended December 31, 2023 q u arterly ana Iysi S
April 17,2023 Announcement of first Quarter results
July 27, 2023 Announcement of second Quarter results (Rupees in million)
October 12, 2023 Announcement of third Quarter results Description Qi Q2 Q3 Q4 FY 2023
February 15, 2024 Announcement of fourth Quarter results Net sales 43.991 38375 66,165 75174 003,705
March 26, 2024 15th Annual General Meeting Cost of sales (33216) | (26951) | (45,176) | (46,064) | (151,407)
Gross profit 10,775 11,424 20,989 29,110 72,298
Financial Year ending December 31, 2024 Selling and distribution expenses (2,468) (2,223) (3,507) 4855 | (13,053)
April 16, 2024 Announcement of first Quarter results Administrative expenses (555) (820) (680) (1,952) (4,007)
July 30, 2024 Announcement of second Quarter results Other income 717 447 737 1,813 3,714
October 14, 2024 Announcement of third Quarter results Other operating expenses 611) 670) (1,173 (1,915) (4,369)
February 14, 2025 Announcement of fourth Quarter results Finance cost (435) (702) (499 (275) (1,911)
Remeasurement (loss) / gain on provision for GIDC (201) (256) (82) 1 (538)
Trading Performance During the Financial Period (Loss allowance) / reversal of loss allowance on
) i subsidy receivable from GoP 432 (72) 1 (1,937) (2,440)
Opening Price 79.8
) ) Profit before tax 6,790 7,128 15,785 19,990 49,693
Closing Price 112.23
: : : Tax (2,386) (6,069) (6,204) 8,843) | (23,502)
Highest Closing Price 114.72
) ) Profit after tax 4,404 1,059 9,581 11,147 26,191
Lowest Closing Price 75.37
) — Production (KT) 577 538 600 598 2,313
Average daily volume traded (million shares) 1.456
Urea sales (KT) 551 483 692 601 2,327
EPS 3.30 0.79 717 8.35 19.61
Total Shareholder Return* 2023
1 year period (01 January 2023 to 31 December 2023) 69%
3 year period (01 January 2021 to 31 December 2023) 154%
5 year period (01 January 2019 to 31 December 2023) 169%

* Total returns are computed based on the closing unit price on the last trading day of the preceding reporting period,

compared with the closing unit price on the last trading day of the current period.
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Profit after tax (rupees in million) detailed quarterly anaIySiS

12,000 11,147 .
first quarter
10,000 9,582
8,000 Period Production Sales Net Profit
5000 Q12023 | 577TKT | B51KT | 4,404 Mn
- 4,404 Q1 2022 \ 568 KT \ 549 KT \ 5,511 Mn
2000 1,059 Production:
. The Company’s urea production in Q1 2023 stood at 577KT compared to 568KT in the corresponding period last year,
An increase of 1.58%. This shows consistency with the production in Q1 2022.
Ql mQ2 mQ3 mQ4
Sales Revenue
Urea Sales clocked in at 551 KT compared to 549 KT in Q1 2022, Sales growth is almost consistent with production
reflecting an increase of 0.36%. Urea price stood at PKR 2,994/bag as on 31st March 2023 depicting a discount of 37%
Quarter wise sales volumes (KT) to international price. The Company’s Urea market share was 34% in Q1 2023 which is similar to the market share of
Q1 2022. Industry Urea demand decreased by 0.80% in comparison to Q1 2022.
1,200 EFERT phosphates (DAP, Zorawar and NP) sales during Q1 2023 stood at 65 KT vs 79 KT last year, a decrease of
1,000 17.72% YoY.
80 Cost of Sales and Other Operational Costs
600 Gross Profit was recorded at Rs. 10.8 billion for Q1 2023, compared to Rs. 10.9 billion in the same period last year, a
400 decrease of 1% YoY mainly because of increased cost of production.
200 Profit
) The company’s consolidated profit stood at Rs. 4.4 billion vs. Rs. 5.5 billion in the corresponding period last year,
Qal Q2 Q3 resulting in EPS of Rs. 3.30 vs. last year’s EPS of Rs. 4.13. Profit was lower due to higher taxes in the form of super tax.
m Urea m Phosphates
second quarter
. . Period Production Sales Net Profit
Earnings / Dividend per share Q2 2023 ‘ 538 KT ‘ 483 KT ‘ 1059 Mn
10.00 Q2 2022 ‘ 550 KT ‘ 549 KT ‘ (98) Mn
8.35 8.00
8.00 717
6.00 Production
6.00 The Company’s Urea production in Q2 2023 stood at 538 KT compared to 550 KT in the corresponding period last year.
400 330 350 200 Decrease in production was mainly because of shutdown of Base Plant for 21 days for unscheduled maintenance to
: address plant vulnerabilities and ensure reliable operation going forward.
[ | Sales
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Urea sales during the period clocked in at 483 KT compared to 549 KT in Q2 2022 showing a decrease of 12% Vs Q2

2022. Urea price stood at PKR 2,994/bag as on 30th June 2023 depicting a discount of 41% to international price. Urea
demand was fully met through local production without any need for Import during 1H of 2023. Industry Urea demand
declined in Q2 2023 by 8.3% Vs Q2 2022.

W EPS mDPS

*Final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2023,
recommended for approval of members at the Annual General Meeting
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EFERT phosphates sales during Q2 2023 stood at 44 KT vs 75 KT last year, a decrease of 41% YoY. International DAP
price observed declining trend, However, due to rapid devaluation the cost of DAP has not decreased with the same
trend. Engro DAP prices stood at PKR 9,838/bag by the end of Q2 2023.

Cost of Sales and Other Operational Costs
Gross Profit of the Company was recorded at Rs. 11.4 billion for Q2 2023, compared to Rs. 11.7 billion in the same
period last year, a decrease of 2.56% owing to decline in sales volume by 12% as compared to same period last year.

Profit / (Loss)

The company’s consolidated profit stood at Rs. 1.06 billion vs. Rs. (0.1) billion in the corresponding period last year
resulting in EPS of Rs. 0.79 Vs. last year’s LPS of Rs. (0.07).

Third quarter

Period Production Sales Net Profit

Q32023 | 600KT |  692KT | 9,582 Mn

Q3 2022 ‘ 450 KT ‘ 424 KT ‘ 6,409 Mn
Production

The Company’s urea production in Q3 2023 clocked in at 600 KT compared to 450 KT in the corresponding period last
year mainly because of the low demand in Q3 of 2022 due to heavy monsoon and flood situation in Pakistan.

Sales

Urea sales during the period clocked in at 692 KT compared to 424 KT in Q3 2022, an increase of 63.2% YoY. Urea price
stood at PKR 3,411/bag as on 30th September 2023 depicting discount of 54% compared to international prices. Urea
demand was fully met through local production without any need for import during Q3 2023. Industry Urea demand
increased in Q3 by 21.08% in comparison with Urea demand of Q3 2022.

The Company’s phosphates (DAP, Zorawar and NP) sales during Q3 stood at 107 KT vs 58 KT last year, reflecting an
increase of 84% in comparison with Q2 2022. DAP international price rebounded during Q3 and stood at USD 603/ton
by the end of September 2023. Local market price of DAP also rallied due to surge in international prices. Engro DAP
MRP price stood at PKR 12,110/bag by the end of September 2023.

Cost of Sales and Other Operational Costs

Gross Profit of the Company was recorded at Rs. 21 billion for Q3 2023, compared to Rs. 9.7 billion in the same period
last year, an increase of 115% mainly due to increase in sales volume as compared to Q3 2022 and increase in sales
price as compared to Q3 2022 where sales price stood at Rs. 2,250 per bag.

Profit
The company’s consolidated profit stood at Rs. 9.6 billion vs. Rs. 4.18 billion in the corresponding period last year
resulting in quarterly EPS of Rs 7.17 Vs last year Q3 EPS of Rs. 3.13
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fourth quarter

Period Production Sales Net Profit

Q4 2023 | 598KT |  601KT | 11,147 Mn

Q4 2022 ‘ 387 KT ‘ 413 KT ‘ 6,642 Mn
Production

The Company’s urea production in Q4 2023 clocked in at 598 KT compared to 387 KT in Q4 2022 resulting in an
increase of 54.5%.

Sales

The Company was able to sell 601 KT of Urea in Q4 2023 as compared to 413 KT in Q4 2022. The Company achieved
a historic milestone of highest ever domestic urea sales of 2,327 KT as compared to 1,935 KT in 2022. As a result,
overall market share improved to 35% for the year 2023 as compared to 29% in 2022.

The Company’s phosphates (DAP, Zorawar and NP) sales during Q4 stood at 149 KT vs 121 KT last year, reflecting a
overall increase of 9.6% YoY. Company’s market share stood at 18% as compared to 23% for the year 2022.

Cost of Sales and Other Operational Costs

Gross Profit of the Company was recorded at Rs. 29.1 billion for Q4 2023, compared to Rs. 10.7 billion in the same
period last year, an increase of 172%. Sales volume in Q4 2023 increased by 45% as compared to Q4 2022 which has
resulted in increase in Gross Profit. Furthermore, price revision also resulted in positive impact on Gross profit.

Profit

The company’s consolidated profit stood at Rs. 11.1 billion vs. Rs. 6.4 billion in the corresponding period last year.
Profitability was led by higher sales volume of Urea, Phosphates and SFB segment along with efficiencies in cost
optimization, reduction in financial charges due to effective working capital management. Net profit margin during Q4
stood at 14.83% as compared to 13.8% for the same period during 2022. Quarterly EPS of Rs 8.35 vs last year Q4
EPS of Rs. 4.80.

Analysis of variation in interim accounts with final accounts

The Company’s net sales grew from Rs. 82.366 billion in H1 2023 to Rs. 224 billion for Full year 2023. The company’s
highest quarterly sales were recorded in the last quarter. The Company’s market share increased to 35% for FY 2023
as compared to 33% in H1 2023. Further the Company has sold 1,034 KT Urea in H1 2023 whereas it sold 1,293 KT
Urea in 2H 2023.

The company’s Gross profit stood at Rs. 22.199 billion in H1 2023, which increased to Rs. 72 billion for Full year 2023.
The company’s highest quarterly gross profit was recorded in Q4 2023 of Rs. 29.110 billion mainly because of the
increase in sales volume during H2 2023.

GP% of the company increased from 27% in H1 2023 to 32% for FY 2023

Net profit for the company increased from Rs. 5.463 billion to Rs. 26.191 billion for FY 2023 mainly because of

increased sales volume in H2 2023, cost optimization and reduction in finance cost during H2 2023 due to effective
working capital management.
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horizontal analysis

consolidated statement of financial position

(Amounts in millions)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Share capital

Share premium

Exchange revaluation reserves

Remeasurement of post employment benefits

Unappropriated profit
Total Equity

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings

Deferred taxation

Deferred liabilities

Provision for GIDC

Deferred income - Government grant

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Accrued interest / mark-up
Taxation - net

Current portion of:

- borrowings

- deferred income - government grant
- deferred liabilities

- provision for GIDC

Short term borrowings
Unclaimed dividend

Loan from Holding Company

Total Liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Long term loans and advances
Long-term investments

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans, advances, deposits and prepayments

Other receivables

Taxation - net

Accrued income

Short term investments

Cash and bank balances

Assets classified as held for sale

TOTAL ASSETS
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237
721
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6,495
16,868
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2,834
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2021

13,353
3,385

(90)
30,439

47,087

11,460
11,943
232
6,364
925
30,924

26,027
262
1,361

5,756
154
64
11,816
4,118
49
5,200
54,807

85,731

132,817

73,031
5,301
61

78,393

6,427
13,490
3,070
2,237
12,677

19

15,238
1,266

54,424

132,817
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2020

13,353
3,385

(50)
30,043

46,731

13,514
11,678

273
10,510

35,975

30,219
263

10,062

54
6,927
425

57
1,000
49,007

84,983
131,713

65,734
5,165
82

70,981

6,411
7,533
2,906
2,189
8,304
2,858
158
26,763
3,610
60,732

131,713

20Vs. 19 2019

13,353
3,385

(57)
26,598
43,279

22,192
12,183
257

34,632

18,228
588

8,760

56
19,458
1,986
60

49,136

83,768

_—
127,047

65,940
5,071
164

71,175

5,285
12,478
14,175

2,949

9,412

2,542

106

5,512

3,413

55,872
127,047

72,220

117,743

68,203
4,488
143

72,834

5,325

) 11,538

55.6 9,110
116.3 1,363
3.8 9,067
100.0 -
96.0 54
(28.6) 7,722
367.7 730

244 44,909
79 _A7748
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Horizontal Analysis of Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Capital Structure

m Debt ®Equity
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80%
» 60% 58% 00

()

40%

20% LY 42%
: 34% 27%
0%

78%

89%
229
o 11%
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Balance Sheet Analysis (Equity and Liabilities)

100%
80%
60%
40%

20%

0%
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

mEquity @ Current liabilties  ® Non-current liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital and share premium stood at par Rs. 13,353 and Rs. 3,385 million during the last six years. Further,
reserves have increased due to better profitability and effective reserves retention and payout policies.

Non-current Liabilities

Non-current liabilities majorly comprise Long-Term borrowings from Financial Institutions and Deferred Taxation.
Borrowings have decreased from Rs. 25,715 million in 2018 to Rs. 3,267 in 2023, in line with the Company’s capital
structure strategy and repayments. During the year, long-term loans amounting to Rs. 7.07 bn were repaid. Deferred
tax liability has increased from Rs. 7,100 million in 2018 to Rs. 10,402 million in 2023. The increase in Deferred tax
liability is due to a change in tax rate from 33% in 2022 to 39% in 2023. It mainly comprises temporary differences due
to accelerated depreciation allowance.

Provision for GIDC has been fully classified in the current liability as at Dec 2023.

Current Liabilities

Current liabilities mainly comprise of Trade and other payables, current portion of Long-term Borrowings, taxes
payable and provision for GIDC. Trade and other payables have increased to Rs. 74,096 million in 2023 from Rs.
29,095 million in 2018 representing an increase of 155%. The increase is mainly due to increase in advances from
customers from Rs. 4,174 million in 2018 to Rs. 18,851 million in 2023 on account of increasing market share and
consequently revenue. Further increase is due to higher accrued liabilities from 17,540 million in 2018 to 42,190 million
in 2023 representing increased procurement of stock and capital expenditure to sustain operations.

Balance Sheet Analysis (Assets)

100%

- =
0
60% Y 4% 5%
)
40%
0
20% R

0%
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B Property, Plant & Equipment ~ m Non-current Assets = Current Assets

Non-current Assets

Non-Current assets mainly comprises of Property Plant & Equipment and Intangible assets. Property plant and
equipment have increased by 15% in comparison with 2018. This is mainly due to the major capital investments in
debottlenecking and optimization of Base and EnVen Plant netted off by depreciation charge for each financial year.
During 2023, property, plant, and equipment increased due to investment in PEF and other plant related capital
projects.

Current Assets

Over the past six years, current assets have increased by Rs. 31,897 million. They majorly comprise of short-term
investments, Other receivables, cash & bank balances and assets classified as held for sale. Short-term investments
have increased due to investment in Mutual Funds. Other Receivables have increased by Rs. 6,990 million due to
increasing sales tax receivable.

163 | enriching Pakistan engro fertilizers limited annual report 2023 enriching Pakistan I 164




vertical analysis

consolidated statement of financial position

(Amounts in millions)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Rs.

EQUITY

Share capital 13,353 ’ 13,353 . 13,353 . 13,353 13,353

Share premium 3,385 . 3,385 . 3,385 . 3,385 . 3,385

Exchange revaluation reserves - - - - -

Remeasurement of post employment benefits (74) . (100) . (90) . (50)] (57)

Unappropriated profit 31,239 28,415 30,439 . 30,043 26,598

Total Equity 47,903 45,053 47,087 . 46,731 43,279

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Borrowings 3,267 ; 5,842 . 11,460 . 13,514 ] 22,192

Deferred taxation 10,402 . 8,155 . 11,943 . 11,678 . 12,183

Deferred liabilities 237 : 235 . 232 . 273 . 257

Provision for GIDC - 2,315 . 6,364 . 10,510 . -

Deferred income - Government grant 721 ! 891 . 925 . - =
14,627 } 17,438 . 30,924 . 35,975 34,632

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 74,096 . 45,156 . 26,027 . 30,219 18,228

Accrued interest / mark-up 73 ! 520 . 262 . 263 . 588

Taxation - net 994 ! 4,512 . 1,361 - =

Current portion of:

- borrowings 2,715 . 6,828 5 5,756 . 10,062 . 8,760

- deferred income - government grant 236 ! 256 . 154 . = =

- deferred liabilities 63 I 70 . 64 . 54 . 56

- provision for GIDC 19,558 . 16,705 . 11,816 ) 6,927 , 19,458 ] -

Short term borrowings 530 ! 7,826 . 4,118 . 425 ; 1,986 . 1,010

Unclaimed dividend 48 ! 49 . 49 . Y4 . 60 . 66

Loan from Holding Company - 1,000 . 5,200 . 1,000 = =
98,313 . 82,922 . 54,807 . 49,007 . 49,136 39,152

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 160,843 145,413 . 132,817 . 131,713 . 127,047 117,743

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 78,440 . 77,880 . 73,031 . 65,940 68,203

Intangible assets 5,184 . 5,288 . 5,301 . . 5,071 . 4,488

Long term loans and advances 210 ! 207 . 61 . . sz . 143

Long-term investments 202 ! 2,204 . = = =
84,036 . 85,579 g 78,393 71,175 72,834

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools 8,730 d 6,495 ) 6,427 ) . 5,285 . 5,325

Stock-in-trade 15,356 } 16,869 . 13,490 . . 12,478 . 11,538

Trade debts 2,912 . 3,772 . 3,070 . . 14,175 . 9,110

Loans, advances, deposits and prepayments 3,993 ’ 2,796 . 2,237 . . 2,949 : 1,363

Other receivables 16,057 ! 17,226 . 12,677 . ' 9,412 ’ 9,067

Taxation - net - - - . 2,542 . =

Accrued income 117 ! 175 . 19 . . 106 . 54

Short term investments 24,063 . 9,668 : 15,238 . ] 5,512 . 7,722

Cash and bank balances 4,054 . 2,834 . 1,266 . . 3,413 . 730

Assets classified as held for sale 1,525 A = > - -
76,807 59,835 54,424 55,872 44,909

TOTAL ASSETS 160,843 145,413 132,817 127,047 117,743
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vertical analysis of consolidated statement of financial position

Shareholders’ Equity

Shareholders’ equity stands at 29.8% of total equity and liabilities as compared to 38.7% in 2018. Despite increased
profitability and a healthy and consistent dividend payout strategy, the change is mainly due to an increase in total
liabilities which have increased by 8.9% from 2018.

Non-current Liabilities

Long term borrowings (including current portion) have significantly reduced from 42.6% of total Liabilities in 2018 to
5.3% in the current year. This is in line with EFERT’s long-term debt structure strategy. Deferred taxation as a
percentage of total non-current liabilities has increased from 21.47% in 2018 to 71.1% in the current year mainly due
to temporary differences by accelerated depreciation allowance accentuated by a change in applicable tax rates
promulgated via the Finance Act 2023.

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables as a percentage of total current liabilities stood at 75.4% at the year-end as against 74.31%
in 2018. The current portion of GIDC constitutes 19.9% of total current liabilities as compared to nil in 2018.

Non-current Assets

Property plant and equipment as a percentage of total non-current assets stood at 93% vs 94% in 2018. This is mainly
due to steady depreciation charge over the years of our Base and EnVen production facilities partially offset by major
capital expenditures during this time primarily on plant efficiency, gas compression facilities, PEF and implementation
of new ERP software in the past six years.

Current Assets
Stock-in-trade stood at 20% of total current assets in 2023 vs 25.7% in 2018 due to efficient inventory management.
Short term investments have grown to 31.3% in 2023 as compared to 17.2% of the total current assets in 2018 due
to attractive returns available over the six years. Other receivables have remained at par and constitute 20.9% of total
current assets in 2023 in comparison to 20.2% in 2018. Cash & bank balances have also increased from 1.6% t0 5.3%
over the period due to increasing sales. Assets classified as held for sale constitute 2% of total current assets.
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horizontal and vertical analysis

profit or loss account

(Amounts in millions)

HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other income

Other operating expenses
Operating profit

Finance costs

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on provision for GIDC
Loss allowance on subsidy receivable from GoP
Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

VERTICAL ANALYSIS

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Other income

Other operating expenses

Operating profit

Finance costs

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on provision for GIDC
Loss allowance on subsidy receivable from GoP
Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year
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Rs.

223,704
(151,407)
72,297

(13,053)
(4,007)
3,714
(4,369)
54,582
(1,911)
(538)
(2,440)
49,693
(23,502)

26,191

Rs.

223,704

(151,407)

72,297

(13,053)
(4,007)
3,714
(4,369)
54,582

(1,911)
(538)
(2,440)
49,693
(23,502)

26,191

2023

157,017
(114,170)
42,847

(9,886)
(2,217)
2,325
(2,523)

30,546

(2,622)
(840)
(523)

26,561

(10,558)

16,003

2023

157,017
(114,170)

42,847

(9,886)
2,217)
2,325
2,523)

30,546

(2,622)
(840)
(523)

26,561

(10,558)

16,003

engro fertilizers limited

2022

132,363
(88,289)

2021

44,074

(8,530)
(1,900)
1,790
(2,641)

32,793

(1,602)
(743)
(558)

29,890

(8,797)

21,003

2022

132,363
(88,289)

2021

44,074

(8,530)
(1,900)
1,790
(2,641)

32,793

(1,602)
(743)
(558)

29,890

(8,797)

21,093

annual report 2023

105,846
(71,591)

(8,457)
(1,919)
1,667
(1,894)

(3,236)
2,121
(1,239)

(3,165)

105,846
(71,591)

(8,457)
(1,919)
1,667
(1,894)

(3,236)
2,121
(1,239)

(3,165)

34,255

23,652

21,298

18,133

34,255

23,652

21,298

18,133

121,355
(81,815)

(8,736)
(1,248)
4,352
(2,623)

(3,887)

121,355
(81,815)

(8,736)
(1,248)
4,352
(2,623)

(3,887)

2019

39,540

31,285

2019

39,540

31,285

2018

109,196
(73,880)

35,316

(8,008)
(1,585)
2,062
(1,432)

26,353

(2,071)

2018

109,196
(73,880)

35,316

(8,008)
(1,585)
2,062
(1,432)

26,353

(2,071)

enriching Pakistan | 170




horizontal analysis of consolidated
statement of profit or loss

Profit and Loss Analysis (Income)

100% 2% 3% 2% 1% 1%
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50% 98% 97% 98% 999, 99%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

m Revenue mOther Income

Sales

The primary focus of the Group's sales lies in Urea and Phosphates. In 2018, the Group sold 1,986 KT of urea.
However, with a revised strategy and a more aggressive approach aimed at expanding market share, the Group
managed to increase sales of urea and phosphates to 2,527 KT in 2019. The upward trend continued into 2021, where
there was a notable increase in sales compared to 2020, primarily driven by a higher volume of urea sold, totaling 2,295
KT, marking a historic milestone for the Company. This momentum persisted, with sales experiencing a further 18.6%
increase in value in 2022, reaching a record high revenue mark of Rs. 157 billion.

In 2023, the Company achieved another significant milestone with its highest-ever urea sales of 2,327 KT, a 20.3%
increase from the previous year's sales of 1,935 KT. This substantial growth can be attributed primarily to the rising
demand for local urea. Consequently, the Company's market share saw an improvement, reaching 35% compared to
29% in 2022. The Company also delivered impressive sales revenue of PKR 223.7 billion in 2023, marking a
substantial 42.5% increase from the PKR 157 billion recorded in 2022, driven by higher urea volumes sold and a
significant increase in imported Phosphate prices.
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Sales Revenue year-wise (Rs. in Million)
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Cost of Sales

The fluctuations in the cost of sales closely mirror the fluctuations in sales over the past six years. Production from the
Urea and NPK plants rose from 2,061 KT in 2018 to 2,409 KT in the current year. In 2020, the Company reached a
significant milestone with production hitting 2,391 KT. Factors such as gradual increases in gas prices, the impact of
inflation, currency devaluation, and heightened consumption to meet local demand have collectively contributed to the
increase of Rs. 77,527 million over the six years.

Gross Profit

The Group's gross profit rose to Rs. 72,297 million in 2023 from Rs. 35,316 million in 2018. A notable decline in
profitability was experienced in 2020 due to challenging market conditions within the fertilizer industry. However,
increased sales in the following years, driven by a focused commercial strategy and stronger agronomic demand,
enabled EFERT to recover and achieve a remarkable 105% increase over the six-year period. The higher margins for
phosphates and urea contributed to an overall improvement in the gross margin.

Operating profit

The Group's operating profit has surged by Rs. 28,229 million in the past six years primarily because of heightened
urea and phosphates volumes during this period, coupled with the uptick in urea prices. Additionally, the ascending
KIBOR rates over the timeframe have contributed positively to the operating profit.

Profit and Loss Analysis (Expenses)

100%

80% - -
60%
40%
20%
0%
2021 2022 2023
m Cost of sales m Distribution Cost

m Selling and distribution expenses  Finance cost

Other Expenses Taxation
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Finance Costs

The finance costs have decreased from Rs. 2,071 million to Rs. 1,911 million over the span of six years. This reduction
can be attributed mainly to the gradual repayment of long-term borrowings that were initially acquired for investment
in new production facilities. Furthermore, the enhanced liquidity position resulting from increased sales over the years
has lessened the necessity for short-term debt.

Taxation
Taxation has increased significantly by Rs. 16,634 million in 2023 as compared to 2018. Besides higher profit before
tax, this increase is also due to the super tax impact of 10% in 2023 with an additional 6% impact of 2022.

Cost Analysis (Rs. Million)

m Cost of sales m Selling and distribution expenses ~ ® Administrative expenses

m Other operating expenses Finance cost = Taxation

200,000

160,000
140,000

[
120,000
100,000 [ I
— —

80,000

60,000

40,000

20,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Net Profit

The Group’s net profit has increased to Rs. 26,191 million from Rs. 17,414 million in 2018. The financial year end 2022
was not a fruitful year as the net profit declined to Rs. 16,003 million from Rs. 21,092 million in 2021 for the company.
However, the Company was able to significantly improve its profitability in subsequent financial year through capturing
better market share, increase in production levels and increase in sales volume.
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vertical analysis of consolidated statement
of profit or loss

Gross Profit

The gross profit surged to Rs. 72,297 million in 2023 from Rs. 35,316 million in 2018. A notable decline in gross profit
occurred in 2020, dropping to 34,255 from 39,540 in 2019. This decline was primarily due to reduced DAP offtakes and
the announcement of lower Urea prices in 2020. Nonetheless, increased sales in the following years, driven by a
focused commercial strategy and stronger agronomic demand, enabled the Group to achieve an overall twofold
increase over the past six years.

Taxation

The tax charge as a percentage of turnover rose from 6.3% in 2018 to 10.5% in 2023. This increase is attributed to
several factors. Firstly, due to higher profit margins, the trading subsidiary of the Group transitioned from the MTR
regime to the NTR regime, compared to previous years. Additionally, this increase includes the effect of the enhanced
rate of 10% super tax, which was imposed on the company's profits through the Finance Act 2023. This Act also
retrospectively imposed an additional 6% tax on the profits of FY 2022, impacting the taxation for the current year.

Net Profit

The net profit as a percentage of sales was 11.7% in 2023, down from 15.9% in 2018. The higher net profit margin in
2018 was primarily due to a one-off reversal of deferred tax liability following the introduction of a gradual reduction in
corporate tax rates through the Finance Act 2018. Additionally, the net profit margin increased to 17.1% in 2020
because the group recognized a remeasurement gain on GIDC provision of PKR 2,121 million.
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analysis of consolidated statement of
cashflows

Cash Flow Analysis (Rs. in million)
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B Net cash generated from operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities

m Net cas used in financing activities

Cashflows from operating activities

Cash flows from operating activities rose from Rs. 23,405 million in 2018 to Rs. 60,555 million in 2023. This increase is
primarily attributed to the growth in Profit Before Tax (PBT) amounting to Rs. 49,693 million in 2023 vs Rs. 24,282 million
in 2018 and changes in working capital totaling Rs. 26,069 million in 2023. The rise in working capital is mainly due to
an increase in trade and other payables by Rs. 28,939 million, partially offset by a decrease in current assets. However,
this increase was partially offset by tax payments related to increased profitability and import stage tax payments by its
trading subsidiary amounting to Rs. 24,772 million.

Cashflows from investing activities

The cash flows from investing activities primarily involve the acquisition and sale of property, plant, and equipment, as
well as short-term and long-term investments. These cash flows have shifted from a negative position of Rs. 6,635
million in 2018 to a negative position of Rs. 18,744 million in 2023. This change is attributed to the Group's net purchase
of short and long-term investments totaling Rs. 12,838 million in the current year, alongside additions to property, plant,
and equipment amounting to Rs. 6,174 million.

Cashflows from financing activities

The net cash used in financing activities has seen a notable rise, climbing from Rs. 16,981 million in 2018 to Rs. 33,741
million in 2023. This increase primarily stems from the higher net repayment of borrowings, escalating from 0.1 million
in 2018 to 8,077 million in 2023. Moreover, significant dividend payments of Rs. 23,369 million in the current year,
compared to Rs. 14,647 million in 2018, have further contributed to the increase. However, finance costs have remained
relatively consistent.

175 I enriching Pakistan engro fertilizers limited

business rationale of major capital
expenditure and projects

Engro Fertilizers Limited strongly believes that continuous improvement is essential for delivering sustainable value to
our shareholders. In addition, the nature of the business in which the company operates is such that we experience an
ever-changing paradigm of manufacturing and technological enhancements. As a result, disciplined capital allocation
acts as an important tool for the company to achieve its strategic objectives. The Company has a comprehensive set of
policies and procedures to plan and execute capital expenditure projects, keeping in view the long-term objectives of
the Company. Our robust Capital governance framework ensures that safety, critical and business continuity
expenditures are prioritized, thus ensuring smooth and safe operations. All this expenditure is spent with utmost
transparency and strict Board oversight.

During the year, the company continued making significant major capital expenditures in line with our focus on
improving the efficiency and reliability of the Company’s manufacturing facilities. In this regard, we spent on various
projects of long-term reliability that were initiated by the company in previous years. In the current year, the company
has achieved a historic milestone for the highest ever urea production of 2.3 million tons on the back of improved plant
efficiency and reliability is testament of continuous investments in our Plant. Plant reliability and efficiency projects are
done on basis of a detailed evaluation to determine the cashflow requirements, the business rationale, and payback
periods to ensure that we have an end to end picture of the benefits and associated costs of the project.

The Company plans to continue making significant capital expenditures encompassing the replacement of integral
equipment at the Company’s plants through advance payments to vendors. These projects are expected to continue in
FY2024 and will ensure continuation of sustainable plant operations.

Foreign Currency Sensitivity Analysis

The company has significant exposure to foreign currency sensitivity due the substantial raw material and trading
products the Company procures. Based on the Company’s results for 2023 and the proportion of foreign material
procured during the year, a 10% variation in exchange rate would have led to an impact of Rs. 5.6 billion on net
profit before tax.
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cash flow statement - direct method

(Amounts in thousand)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers

Cash paid to supplier / service providers and employees - net
Payment to Workers Welfare fund

Payment to Workers Profit Participation fund

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Proceeds from disposal of operating assets

Purchase of short-term and long-term investments
Proceeds from sale of short-term and long investments

Net cash utilised in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Loan repaid to the Parent Company

Repayments of long-term borrowings

Finance cost paid

Dividends paid

Net cash utilised in financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
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2023

231,814,907
(143,675,804)
427,571)
(2,384,454)
(24,772,397)

60,554,681

(6,174,436)
268,056
(200,024,474)
187,186,841

(18,744,013)

(1,000,000
(7,076,643
(2,295,234
(23,368,651

—_ = = =

(33,740,528)

8,070,140

(4,096,566)

3,973,574

....Rupeses....

(16,473,782)

2022

163,555,164
(119,074,736)
(358,915)
(1,290,846)
(11,196,311)

31,634,356

(8,377,514)
418,378
(307,566,500)
296,598,771

(18,926,865)
993,993
(4,200,000)
(5,771,083)
(2,177,382)
)

(18,026,801

(29,181,273)

12,377,216

(4,096,566)
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six years analysis

financial information summary

Amounts in million

Summary of Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

Share capital

Reserves

Shareholders equity
Borrowings

Capital employed

Deferred liabilities
Property,plant & equipment
Long term assets

Current assets

Summary of Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss

Sales

Gross profit

Operating profit

Profit before tax

Profit after tax

EBITDA

Summary of Consolidated Statement of
Cashflows

Net cash flow from operating activities

Net cash flow from investing activities

Net cash flow from financing activities
Changes in cash & cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents — Year end

Summary of Actual Production
(units in MT)

Urea

NPK
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2023

13,353
34,550
47,903

5,982
53,885
10,638
78,440
84,036
76,807

223,704
72,297
54,582
49,693
26,191
55,691

60,555
(18,744)
(33,741)
8,070
3,974

2,313,448
96,328

2022

157,017
42,847
30,546
26,561

16,003
32,622

31,634
(18,927)
(29,181)
(16,474)

(4,097)

1,954,528
137,075

2021

13,353
33,734
47,087
17,215
64,302
12,175
73,031
78,394
54,425

132,363
44,074
32,793
29,890
21,003
34,522

14,612
16,028
(23,388)
7,251
12,377

2,104,722
144,564

2020

13,353
33,378
46,731
23,576
70,306
11,951
65,734
70,981
60,733

105,846
34,255
23,652
21,298
18,133
29,878

51,470
(25,744)
(24,629)
1,096
5,126

2,263,806
127,082

2019

13,353
29,926
43,279
30,952
74,232
12,440
65,924
71,159
55,888

121,355
39,540
31,284
27,397
16,871
36,962

21,989
4,503
(22,547)
3,944
4,030

2,003,035
134,784
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2018

13,353
32,170
45,523
30,811
76,334

7,354
68,204
72,834
44,910

109,196
35,316
26,353
24,282
17,414
31,548

23,405

(6,635)
(16,981)
@11)
(190)

1,928,080
132,790




financial ratios

2023
Profitability Ratios
Return on Equity (Profit after tax) % 56.35
Return on Equity (Profit before tax) % 106.9
Return on Capital Employed % 46.9
Return on Shareholders' Funds % 54.7
Shareholders' Funds Ratio % 29.8
Pre tax margin % 22.2
Pre tax margin (Including Subsidy) % 22.2
Profit markup % 47.8
Gross Profit ratio % 32.3
Net Profit to Sales % 11.7
EBITDA Rs. In million 55,691
EBTDA Rs. In million 53,780
Growth in EBITDA % 70.7
Growth in EBTDA % 79.3
EBITDA Margin to Sales % 24.9
Operating leverage ratio Times 1.8
Return on assets % 17.1
Growth in Operating revenue % 42.5
Capital Expenditure to total Assets % 3.84
Liquidity Ratios
Current ratio Times 0.8
Quick / Acid test ratio Times 0.5
Cash and cash equivalents to Current Liabilities % 0.0
Cash flow from Operations to Sales % 0.3
Cash flow to capital expenditure Times 9.8
Cash flow coverage ratio Times 9.2
Long term liabilities / current liabilities % 15
Activity / Turnover Ratios
No. of days Inventory Days 39
Inventory turnover Times 9.4
Debtors turnover ratio. Times 66.9
No. of days in receivables Days 5
Trade payables turnover ratio Times 25
No. of days in payables Days 144
Operating cycle Days (99)
Total Assets turnover ratio Times 1.46
Fixed Assets turnover ratio Times 2.9
Current Assets Turnover Times 3.27
Operating working capital turnover Times (10)
Capital employed turnover Times 4.01
Production per employee Units (KT) 1,983
Revenue per employee Rs.Inthousand 184,271
Net income per employee Rs. In thousand 21,574
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2022 2021

44.97
63.7
31.3
44.8
35.5
22.6
22.6
49.9
33.3
15.9

34,522
32,919
15.5
23.6
26.1
1.1
15.9
251
7.96

49
75
459

8

87

114
(57)
1.13
2.0
2.75
(13
2.57
1,546

116,051
11,828

2020

40.29
47.3
25.1
38.8
35.5
20.1
20.1
47.8
32.4
17.1

29,878

26,642
(19.2)
(19.4)
28.2

1.7
14.0
(12.8)
4.00

51
7.2

29

3.0
123
43)
0.82
1.6
1.82

11
1.46
1,755
77,714
13,314

2019 2018

54 47
6.8 7.7
15.0
35 24
3.5 29
106 126
(17) (54)
0.99 0.95
1.8 1.6
241 2.63
19 31
1.61 1.46
1,697 1,646
96,313 87,218
13,390 13,909
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financial ratios

Investment /Market Ratios

Earnings per Share - basic

Earnings per Share - diluted

Earnings growth (diluted)

Earnings growth (basic)

Market value per share

- Year end

- High during the year

- Low during the year

Cash dividend per share

Breakup value per share

Breakup value per share - incuding surplus on
revalation

Breakup value per share - including investment in

related party at market value and surplus on
revaluation

Price earning ratio

Change in market value added

Price to book ratio

Dividend yield ratio

Dividend payout ratio

Dividend cover ratio

Retention (after interim & proposed cash)

Capital Structure Ratios

Financial leverage ratio

Earning assets to total assets

Weighted average cost of deposit
Weighted average cost of debt

Debt to Equity ratio (as per book)

Debt to Equity ratio (as per market value)
Interest Cover ratio

Others

Spares inventory over total assets
Maintenance cost over operating expenses
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5.7
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analysis of financial ratios

Profitability Ratios

The Company’s gross profit margin has increased to 32.3% in comparison with 27.3% in 2022 due to increase in Urea
production and sales by 18.3% and 20.3% respectively. As a result, the Company’s market share also increased to
35%. Phosphates business also managed volumetric increase in sales volume during 2023 and the Company earned
good margins on these sales through efficient procurement and effective sales management. Despite significant
increase in tax rates the Company managed to maintain net profit margin at 11.7% as compared to 10.2% in 2022
mainly because of efficiencies through cost optimization and through effective management of working capital
requirement which resulted in reduction in finance cost.

Gross Profit and Net Profit (Rs. in million)

I Gross Profit I Net Profit e (Gross Profit Ratio e Net Profit Ratio

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
80,000 35.0%

70,000 30.0%

60,000 25.0%

50,000
20.0%
40,000
15.0%
30,000

)
20,000 10.0%

10,000 5.0%

0.0%

Liquidity Ratios

The Company’s current ratio changed to 0.8 times compared to 1.1 times from 2018 mainly because of accumulation
of GIDC Liability. Cash flow from operations to sales have been improved to 0.3 times in 2023 in comparison with the
ratio of 2018 on account of better working capital management.

Liquidity Analysis (Rs. in million)

N Current Assets N Current Liabilities = Current Ratio e Quick Ratio
120,000 1.5
100,000

1.2
80,000

0.9
60,000

0.6
40,000

0.3
20,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
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Activity / Turnover Ratios

Company’s debtor turnover days is reduced to 5 days compared to six years’ average of 18 days since 2018 due to
greater sales against advance payment. Inventory turnover is 39 days in comparison with average of 47 days for the
period 2018 to 2023 due to higher sales than production. Creditor turnover days has increased to 144 days compared
to six years’ average of 122 days. The Company’s operating cycle was thus recorded at negative 99 days compared
to six year average of negative 56 days.

Operating Life Cycle Ratios in Days
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20 ‘/.\\g :

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

e=@== |nventory === Debtors e=@== Creditors

Investment / Market Ratios

Earnings per share have increased to Rs 19.61 in comparison with 11.98 in 2022 due to higher sales volume in Urea
which resulted in an increase in our market share to 35% as compared to 29% in 2022. Phosphates business also
registered an increase in sales volume. The Company also managed to earn a good margin on these sales through
effective sales management. The Company also managed to reduce its finance costs by 27% despite a significant
hike in interest rate through effective working capital management. Despite mixed trends witnessed at the Stock
Exchange, the Company’s share was traded on PSX between a range of Rs 75 and Rs 115.4, closing at Rs 112.2 at
the year-end, relatively higher by Rs 35.34 compared to last year. The price to earnings as at December 31, 2023 is 5.7
compared to 5.3 times in 2018. The breakup value per share of the Company was logged in at Rs. 35.9/share in 2023
increasing from Rs. 34.1/share in 2018.

Earnings, Break up Value & Market Value
(in Rs. per share)
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Dividend payout ratios during 2023 was 89.2%, against a six years’ average total payout of 96.0%.
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Dividend Ratios (in Percentages)
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Capital Structure Ratios

Financial leverage ratio has decreased to 0.1 times compared to six years average ratio of 0.4 times. Debt to equity
ratio also changed to 13:87 in comparison of six-year average of 45:55 The company has timely paid all loan
repayments during the year. Interest cover ratio was 27 times in 2023 as compared to 14.4 on six years average.

Capital Structure

HDebt M Equity
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Market share information

Engro Fertilizers has consistently been a key player in the fertilizer industry, providing nutritional support to the
agri-landscape of Pakistan. Contributing to sustainable growth and innovative enhancement of the economy’s crop
yield, EFert’s sizeable market share reflects the same.

Market Share
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share price sensitivity
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Sensitivity Analysis of Share Price of the Holding Company

Engro Fertilizers’ share price is affected by internal and external factors. Furthermore, the Company’s performance
directly impacts its share price. Certain external factors that impact the share price include the economic and political
environment of the Country, as well as Governmental regulations, macro-economic indicators as well as stakeholder
sentiments. The Company regularly monitors these ever-changing factors and remains vary of their impacts.

Shareholder relations and share price

The company has continued engagement with shareholders as well as potential investors over the last year. The
Company has regularly held Security Analysts briefings during the year where extensive information over the operating
performance of the Company as well as market outlook and strategy has been shared.

While the company’s share price increased from Rs. 79.80 at 1 January 2023 to Rs. 112.23 on 31 December 2023,
the maximum share price achieved during the year was Rs. 115.40 . Our shareholder base comprises of companies,
individuals, pension and provident funds, insurance companies, banks and investment companies, and other
corporate bodies. The shareholding of Engro Corporation Limited as at 31 December 2023 was 56.27%.

Market capitalization sensitivity
As at December 31, 2023, Engro Fertilizers’ market capitalization stood at Rs. 149,861 million. A consequent change
of 5% in the market price of EFert’s share would result in a change of Rs.7,493 million in the market capitalization.
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economic value added

Amounts in million

Economic value added (EVA) is a measure of a company’s financial performance based on the residual wealth
calculated by deducting its cost of capital from its operating profit, adjusted for taxes on cash basis (NOPAT).

2023 2022
NOPAT 26,229 16,972
Less: cost of capital (9,483) (7,735)

Economic value added 16,746 9,237

FREE CASH FLOWS 2023 2022

Net cash generated from operation 60,555 31,634
Capital expenditure- net (5,906) (7,959)
Free cashflows 54,649 23,675
Net repayment of borrowings (8,077) (8,977)
Free Cashflow available to equity shareholders 46,572 14,698

Free cash flows to equity shareholders represent the cash a company can generate after required investment to
maintain or expand its asset base and net repayment of debt. It is a measurement of a Company's financial
performance and health.
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dupont analysis statement of value addition and distribution

Amounts in millions

2023 2022
54.68%
Return on
equity Wealth generated
Total revenue inclusive of sales-tax and other income 237,219 161,053
Bought-in-materials and services (159,705) (117,741)
77,514
) — Wealth distributed
1&%34’ OW'ner.°s Taxes, duties and development
on assets equity ratio surcharge to Govt. of Pakistan 37,490
Salaries wages and benefits 7,320
Dividend to Shareholders 23,368
Mark-up / interest expense on
borrowed money 1,848
11.71 %_ 139.08% 47,903I 160,843 Donation 578
N;L‘:;?;'t tuéz(s:l:er O;Tliet;s a1s'<;teatls Retained for reinvestment & future growth,
depreciation, amortisation and retained profit 6,910
77,514

26,191 223,705 160,843 112,940

Net Profit Sales | Total _Total
assets Liabilities

160,843 98,313
Total Current
assets Liabilities

14,627
197,513 Non-

Total Cost Current
Liabilities
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social and relationship capital
year 2023

We aim to go beyond traditional corporate philanthropy and build an inclusive business model in
collaboration with the engro foundation that will create positive value for both the company and its
communities. We take ownership of the welfare and development of the communities that we
engage with and invest in sustainable initiatives that impact the lives of the people around us by
inspiring positive change through the social and economic growth of our communities. This
commitment is inculcated in all our employees and we are proud of their direct association with
these social initiatives.

corporate social responsibility (CSR) initiatives

Our CSR initiatives span a range of categories from environment, education, and livelihood, to
healthcare and infrastructural development. Our CSR initiatives ensure we can allocate our
resources to supporting and uplifting the areas we operate in, and we seek to maximize the impact
of our investment in these communities.

statement of the charity account
During the year, the Company made donations of PKR 578 Mn focused on education, healthcare,
environment, infrastructure and general welfare.

engro muhafiz program

As we continue to create value and deliver on our promise to uphold the needs of the community,
Engro Fertilizers’ Commercial Division took the initiative to launch the Engro Muhafiz Program in
2021. The key objective of the program is to educate and support the community where we operate
on Health, Safety, and Environment. A large variety of activities was held with the support of our
dealers and Shandar Kissans to educate and help the community improve HSE standards at their
homes and workplaces. A total of 506 activities were held across Punjab and Sindh with over
21,000 participants from our local communities. Major activities for the program included free
medical camps, blood donation drives, HSE awareness sessions at schools, tree plantation,
awareness and precautionary measures during the heat wave, farm safety, etc.

education

Our education initiatives have become a catalyst of change in rural areas and have always been
among our top priorities. Engro has worked endlessly to provide quality education to
underprivileged communities while consistently improving quality and learning outcomes at these
institutions. We currently have 25 schools in our network, out of which 15 are in Katcha area, and 10
are in Daharki. The enrollment at our adopted government schools stands at 1,983 students

currently whereas our Katcha school network continues to operate as per plan with 2,074 students.

As part of Engro’s Diversity & Inclusion agenda, we have also invested in girls’ education in our
Katcha areas. These areas do not prefer co-education schools so in order to encourage the villagers
to allow their girls to study, we have established our first Katcha Girls’ middle school which now has
52 female students.
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Pertinent educational sessions at the schools are also held by Engro; we celebrated Global Hand
Wash Day at our CAER (Community Awareness and Emergency Response) villages’ adopted
schools. Primary grade students were engaged in this healthy activity. With the help of a pictorial
and practical demonstration, the correct handwash procedure was learnt by students. For the
development of our students and their talents, a one-day debating event, “2nd Inter School Engro
Debate Competition for Girls 2023”, was arranged at the Technical Training Center Daharki. A total
of 20 schools participated, with 40 debaters entering the contest. The Prizes were distributed
among the winning debaters. Our Senior Vice President Manufacturing, Syed Shahzad Nabi, and
Vice President Operations, Bilal Mustafa, graced the occasion along with DC Ghotki, AC Daharki,
and officers from the Sindh Education department.

Engro is also training young aspiring members of the community through a 3-year Diploma in
Associated Engineering in chemical, electrical and mechanical engineering. Through this program,
our Technical Training Institute initiative has helped bolster the careers of many individuals and
helped earn a decent livelihood for themselves and their families. The current enrolment in this
institute stands at 438. These graduates also regularly attain top positions in the Sindh Technical
board exams. In the year 2023, 14 of Diploma in Associate Engineering (DAE) graduates have been
placed in Engro Fertilizers in a variety of roles.

livelihood

To help empower differently abled individuals and those in
need of a means of gaining income, 10M in financial grants
was granted to help individuals set up sustainable small
businesses. Through these grants, 12 livelihood projects
were awarded that helped sponsor and set up Goat
Farming ventures, Grocery Stores and homemade Ice
cream businesses, creating sustainable and independent
earning opportunities for widows and People with
Disabilities.
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healthcare

In the realm of Healthcare, Engro provides free-of-cost essential services to the communities
through clinics, hearing aid camps, and crucial time-sensitive treatments for snake bite and dog bite
patients. Our initiatives on the healthcare front include the Sahara Clinic which treated a total of
8,895 patients this year, while a singular snake-bite treatment facility treated a total of 5819 snake
bite patients.

The Base Business North Zone team collaborated with the Fatimid Foundation for a Blood Donation
Drive. The team managed to collect and donate 435 pints of blood to the Fatimid Foundation across
the North Zone, translating into treatment arrangements for 1,305 patients suffering from
Thalassemia and Hemophilia.

In 2022, the region’s first free-of-cost limbs facility was established and has since then treated 1331
patients, with 412 patients treated in 2023. We also developed a dog bite facility that treated 1,708
— patients this year. Under the ambit of the Engro Volunteer program, Sahara clinic organized a
free-of-cost Skin diseases treatment camp in Daharki. In this three-day camp, free consultation,
treatment, and medication were provided free of cost by Sahara Foundation. Aside from patients
from Daharki, individuals traveled from neighboring cities—Mirpur Mathelo, Murid Shah,
Kandhkot—and even from distant places like Rahimyar Khan, Sadigabad and Kashmore to avalil
consultation and treatment at the camp and a total of 625 individuals were treated. Sahara Eye
Clinic also provided consultations and treatment to 1,945 patients in 2023.

The North Zone team also held a session on Nutrition and Personal sanitation for 80 children at the
Dar Ul Shafqgar Islamic Orphanage in Faisalabad, providing necessary care instructions and
provisions.

-

e piio B las

3 o
Y sty agrs Reiier e ] pidos .:—,"-—'Ts vzl @ E >
] - —

191 I enriching Pakistan engro fertilizers limited

To stop the spread of dengue and malaria, preventative measures were also taken in the form of
fogging spray, which covered a population of Engro Fertilizers’ CAER villages in its 15-day drive.

Additionally, our teams also ensured that women’s health remained a priority. An Awareness session
on Women's Health at our CAER villages in collaboration with our Engro Fertilizers Clinic team
conducted. Similarly, to promote women's health and wellness in the workplace, the Specialty
Fertilizers Business’ North team implemented an initiative focused on the provision of feminine
hygiene products for field-based women employees of the Specialty Fertilizers Business and
Warehousing teams, aimed at creating an inclusive work environment. A similar initiative was taken
in EFERT HO with the provisions for access to free-of-cost hygiene products for women made in the
office.

infrastructural support

To ensure the uninterrupted supply of clean water to EFERT’s CAER villages, Daharki City and
Ghotki Railway Station, a total of 12 RO plants have been installed by the Company, mostly running
over renewable solar energy and providing approximately 15 million liters of water across 4000+
households and to all the daily train passengers this year.

Sahara Welfare also inaugurated a new block that has magnified Sahara's portfolio by an impressive
25%. This new block signals a milestone for Sahara School, and is set to welcome its first cohort of
students in September. With expanded learning facilities, Sahara School will now be able to
provide quality education and equal opportunities to an additional 100 students.

environment

2023 also marked the launch of EFERT’s "Plant a Tree, Plant a
Hope" flagship project, underscoring our dedication to
environmental conservation, carbon footprint offsetting, and
sustainable practices, Engro Fertilizers’ Zarkhez Plant joined
hands with WWF (Worldwide Fund for Nature) on May 16th,
2023. With this collaborative effort to address the impact of
climate change and preserve coastal ecosystems in Pakistan,
they pledged to plant 1,000 mangrove saplings along the
coastlines. Thousands of trees were also planted throughout the
year under the Environmental campaigns launched in 2023.

As a part of our continued efforts to help the environment, a tree
plantation drive has been conducted at Daharki city, EFERT’s
CAER villages and vicinity schools. Thousands of fruit trees and
seasonal trees were planted during a campaign started in the last
week of September 2023.

The Base Business North Zone team also launched a Tree
Plantation Drive in collaboration with the Forest Department with
the tagline “Save Trees — Save Life”. During this tree plantation
drive, 967 community members participated and 2,900 tree
saplings were planted at 17 different schools and colleges.
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In the Sahiwal region, a water conservation drive was launched by the Base Business with the
tagline “Save Water Save Life” for the purpose of creating water conservation awareness among all
our stakeholders and community members. 11 awareness sessions were conducted in schools,
colleges, and universities covering 3,500 community members involving teachers, staff, and
students.

To minimize our impact on the environment, the Warehouse team also initiated a solarization project
across field warehouses to reduce our carbon footprint. As of 2023, we have over 80 warehouses
powered via solar power generation of 7.2 kilowatts per day per warehouse.

providing necessary support

This year in collaboration with Local District Government Engro contributed in Ramzan Bachat
Bazar Daharki, where groceries, vegetables, fruits, clothes and other items were sold at subsidized
rates for underprivileged people.

Engro provided logistic support in the form of rental vehicles in the noble national cause of
bi-monthly Polio vaccination campaigns to Local District Government.

In response to the recent devastating floods that have impacted several areas within Pakistan,
including the Bahawalnagar District, the Bahawalnagar Base Business and SFB team in
collaboration with the dealer Kissan Dost Corporation organized an Engro Muhafiz Flood Relief
Activity. This outreach initiative was specifically targeted at providing support to the flood-affected
residents of Moza Sanatteka - Mari Mian Sahib, Bahawalnagar. The team distributed 100 ration
packs to flood-affected families.
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safety

Base Business’ Lahore team launched a CSR Initiative for motorbike safety awareness with the
tagline “Bachay Hamaray — Roshan Sitaray”. The initiative was held in collaboration with the
Education wing of the National Highways & Motorways Police. By educating the most vulnerable
drivers on the road, college students, and diversifying the target audience to girls’ colleges and
universities, this session inculcated necessary safety precautions in young drivers and catered to
the growing number of two-wheelers used by girls. A total of 11 awareness sessions were delivered
by experts from the Education Wing of NH&MP, reaching an audience of 1,225 community
members including students, teachers, and college staff.

Arranged by

Pachay ‘Hamaray

engro ‘RRoshan Sitaray
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The Bahawalnagar Warehousing team arranged a safety session at the local school for
differently-abled children, educating them on how to handle emergency situations at home and at
school. The team also donated first aid kits to the school, ensuring their access to necessary aid in
case of any emergencies.

A comprehensive First Aid Training Session was also held at the Okara Warehouse which was
facilitated by Rescue 1122 through the Pakistan Life Savers Program. 25 members attended the
session, with representation from various departments within the Marketing Division. Additionally,
the attendees also included 3 security guards and 3 employees from Fatima Fertilizer.
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manufactured and intellectual capital

technical symposium

In the midst of ever-evolving global industrial landscape and prevailing economic challenges,
fostering collaboration within the local industry becomes pivotal in achieving Operational
Excellence — a fundamental pillar for success. Acknowledging this critical necessity, Engro
Fertilizers — Manufacturing Division initiated Engro’s1st Technical Symposium on Operational
Excellence at Daharki. The Symposium serves as a platform aiming at nurturing partnership &
collaboration enabling a seamless exchange of knowledge, experiences & best practices. Its design
facilitates shared learning, emphasizing enhancement of skills both in leadership & functional
domains. The overreaching objectives are to bolster Quality Decision Making, cultivate
Self-Reliance and in the larger scope, contribute to the development of Pakistan’s Economic
Landscape. The event witnessed active participation of esteemed Senior Management and
distinguished professionals from diverse sectors of Fertilizer, Oil & Gas, Petrochemical and Power,
highlighting our collective dedication to Excellence. The topics of presentations delivered covered a
wide spectrum of topics ranging from HSE to Plant Reliability, Energy Efficiency, Technological
Advancements, Operational Discipline and Sustainability.
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EFERT roadshow

The EFERT Roadshow: Field to Future presented attendees with an immersive experience like no
other! By allowing insight into the best-selling products that bolster the agricultural yield of the
nation, the team helped illuminate what makes Engro Fertilizers the household name that it is. With
sessions attended by subsidiaries across Engro, this allowed us to share what we at EFERT proudly
work towards and uphold for the country, community, and company.

b

learning circle: fostering learning, enabling growth

In continuation of the very successful Learning Circle held in 2022, the Base Business HO team took
the trainings a step forward this year by conducting full day in-person sessions for all RSMs and
ASMs across our operational zones. With the sessions powered by Engro Eximp FZE and Finance,
the trainings focused on enhancing key business knowledge and know-how, giving the field team
an edge over their competitors by improving their ability to provide critical insights to our channel
partners.

The program delved deep into the major drivers of demand and supply, demystifying the
complexities of market occurrences in real time through an analytical view of the macro landscape.
Our trainers Sufian Salam, Ali Riaz Cheema, Ali Hanif, Hassan Zafar and Shahrukh Farid ensured the
sessions were valuable learning experiences for all attendees.
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zabardast urea

Engro Zabardast Urea met the target of an outstanding sales volume of 400 KT, with the
achievement signifying a 60% growth in sales volume as compared to the previous year, making
Zabardast Urea the second-highest selling product of Engro Fertilizers. The product has
experienced a phenomenal growth of 25x in sales volume since its inception in 2018.This
achievement is a testament to the product’s remarkable market acceptance and exceptional
performance.

contribution to the nation’s wellbeing

In 2023, Zabardast Urea was used for 5.6 million acres of cereal crops in 2023, leading to healthy
and zinc-enriched grain, sufficient to feed 56 million people for a year. In addition, different initiatives
like the Hamgadam Program, Shandaar-Kissan Program, and Agriculture Internship Program were
employed to put in effort for the training and growth of the farmers and provide them with advisory
support.

fertilizer networking forum

Acquiring valuable insights from the achievements and learnings of others is pivotal in establishing
engineering excellence and instilling operational discipline. With the intent of establishing Industrial
networking and collaboration, EFERT Manufacturing has formed the Fertilizer Networking Forum
(FNF) to benchmark operational practices and technical regimes across urea manufacturing sites.
Full day FNF meetings were organized with the Technical teams of organizations including Fatima
Fertilizers, Fauiji Fertilizer, Liberty Power, Foundation Power and EPQL. These sessions made way
for a groundbreaking collaborative forum allowing for important dialogue and knowledge sharing
within and outside the Fertilizer sector.

annual report 2023 enriching Pakistan | 198




marketing innovations
2023 was a year of innovating and building the EFERT brand and presence across the nation as we
continued our efforts to grow and prosper.

1.

Zabardast Urea Kharif & Rabi Campaign

EFERT Brands executed a 360° Degree Campaign during the 2023 Rabi season across
Pakistan, aiming to boost the brand presence of Engro Zabardast Urea. This comprehensive
campaign spanned various marketing channels, from television to Mandis, engaging farmers
and revitalizing dealer shops. The advertising activities had a significant impact on farming
communities, substantially driving sales of Zabardast Urea.

The key objective of the campaign was to build awareness through TVC and merchandising and
to generate product trials through free samples, lucky draws, and dealer incentives.

This Kharif campaign adopted a multifaceted approach, which included:

TVC Airing: The airing of Zabardast Urea TVC further amplified the campaign. TVC was
broadcasted on major national and regional channels.

Dealer Shop Branding: Dealers were encouraged to merchandise their shops with visibility tools,
including posters, banners, buntings, danglers, and inflatable bags display. Merchandising has
been executed on dealer shops across Pakistan for which dealers have been fully motivated to
put the best visibility at their shops and won valuable prizes.

Mandi Branding: This includes branding of Ghalla Mandis with high visibility fixtures including
iron frame banners, wall murals, flex banners, and Engro Zabardast Urea's bori on poles.

Digital Media: The campaign utilized multiple online platforms including TikTok, Facebook, and
Youtube to reach farmers and agricultural communities with a total of 292.7 million impressions,
an average reach of 20 million, and 28.6 million total views. The campaign effectively leveraged
social media advertising to connect with the farming audience.
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2. Zarkhez Tobacco Video:

An infomercial for Zarkhez Tobacco grade was developed, showcasing key benefits of the
product through aesthetically appealing visuals. The infomercial was shot in the Tobacco fields
of KPK. The video explained the functional benefits of products, including balanced nutrition of
Nitrogen, Phosphorus, and Potassium in it, resulting in strong and quality end produce of the
Tobacco crop.

3. Engro Zarkhez Mega Farmer Meetings on Citrus and Tobacco

EFERT’s Brand and Communications team successfully conducted 24 Mega Farmer Meetings
on SFB’s 2nd highest-selling brand Engro Zarkhez. These meetings were targeted at the two
major crops of the season: Citrus and Tobacco. The purpose of these farmer meetings was to
educate the farmers about crop nutrition and the benefits of Engro Zarkhez for better yield and
quality of crop.

The mega farmer meetings started on 6th February 2023 and concluded on 27th February 2023
and were attended by around 3600 farmers in 24 different locations.
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Engro Zarkhez Mega Farmer Meeting at Joharabad Sugarmill

Another Mega Farmer Meeting was successfully conducted for Joharabad Sugarmill in the
North zone for the promotion of Engro Zarkhez Plus. This meeting was targeted at the
Sugarcane crop, designed to educate the farmers about the crop nutrition and the benefits of
Engro Zarkhez for better yield and quality of the crop.
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International Seminar on Potassium - For Sustainable Crop Production and Food
Security:

Engro Fertilizers, in collaboration with Arab Potash and the University of Agriculture, Faisalabad,
hosted an international seminar on 29th May 2023, with an emphasis on the usage of balanced
fertilizer on crops to ensure food security in Pakistan. The seminar was attended by the chief
guest, Dr. Muhammad Akhtar, Chief Scientist, DG Agriculture (Research) Punjab, Professor Dr.
Munir Jamil Al-Rusan from Jordan University of Science and Technology, and by General
Manager Base Business Awais Mushtaq Paracha.

The event was hosted at the University of Agriculture, Faisalabad, and attended by international
delegates from Jordan, Arab Potash Company, and the academia.

engro fertilizers limited

6. Trial Generation with Product Display Branding

For a farmer, seeing the product for himself and hearing genuine praise of a product via word of
mouth are very important. Hence, transparent jars for product samples were developed so
farmers can feel the grains, powder, and different varieties before making a purchase decision.
The brand created a Product-Display unit with 18 jars that showcase the product as
granular/powder and have branded covers. These are placed across Pakistan in 500 dealer
outlets which facilitate the dealers in showcasing the functional benefits of our straight and
value-added fertilizers.
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engro leadership
competency model

No»

Takes responsibility Develops self
Engages in a constructive manner Develops others
Applies sound judgment Leads with empathy
Is courageous Has impeccable Builds relationships based on trust
character and lives
by highest standards
of integrity and
accountabilty
Nurtures passion to
serve country, community
and company, with strong
belief in the dignity and
value of people
Cares deeply about
) environmental impact
_‘ and safety of people
S\
\
Continuously seeks to improve Helps others
Solves problems with creativity Seeks help
Is resilient Values diversity

Takes failure in stride Promotes ‘one team’
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human capital

developing our people

The development of our people remains at the heart of our endeavors as we Enable GROwth for
Engro Fertilizers. Upholding the values of Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DE&I) and ensuring we
foster a culture that allows everyone to feel welcome, included and represented, where their efforts
receive due recognition, and their development and experience is of utmost importance as they
foster success for EFERT. Employee centricity, the highest standards of business ethics and
integrity, and world class standards for the workplace is the Engro way.

employee data by location in 2023

total by gender
employees

women

1,214 1,138 76

by category by age

<30 30-50 >50
factory non-factory

by location by location

head office daharki faisalabad hyderabad lahore multan

117 728 49 | 73 62 103

by location by employment type

sukkur zarkhez plant management non-management

31 o1 734 480
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HR governance process

EFERT recognizes its "People" to be its most valuable asset and therefore People development has
always been our priority. We understand that satisfied and highly motivated employees personify
the Company's values, ensuring continued excellence is the foundation for a sustainable and
growing company. We recognize the importance of human capital and its critical role in creating
value creation potential for our businesses and a successful corporate echo system.

Therefore, EFERT'S Board places great importance on people development and related policies
and processes which are at the heart of our core values and our People leadership competencies
model. To ensure dedicated focus on HR matters, the Board has established the Board People
Committee (BPC) that exercises oversight over HR policies and systems and is responsible for the
review of performance evaluation, development and succession plans of its People.

There is also a management committee called Board People Committee (BPC) for review and
stewardship of all HR matters including compensation, organization training and development of
people.

The Company has a clearly documented Human Resource management policy which aims to
attract, induct, develop, retain, and motivate high caliber talent who are qualified, capable, and
willing to contribute their best towards accomplishment of Company objectives. To complement
this policy several other policies have been developed for recruitment, compensation, and
organizational development.

EFERT's HR policies encompass the following principles:

equal opportunity

e provide equal opportunity to all job applicants through clearly defined and consistently applied
induction standards.

e create a work environment where every employee has an equal opportunity to develop their
skills and talents.

training and development
¢ To meet employee and organizational needs, provide opportunities to employees for acquisition
of knowledge for technical and managerial skills through classroom and on-the-job learning.

compensation and benefits
¢ Rewards policies aligned with best companies in the market that compete for high quality talent.
e (Clear linkage of reward policies with performance and potential.

diversity and non-discrimination

¢ Provide an environment free from all forms of discrimination and harassment at workplace.
e Foster gender diversity at all levels within the Company.

¢ Policies aimed at creating flexible and conducive working arrangements.
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performance management

e Have a transparent and merit-based performance management system in place.

e Have a transparent and well-defined career development and succession planning system.
e (Clearly defined system for care progression based on merit and potential.

EFERT's HR policies are approved by the BPC and the Board and are stewarded by MC and the
BPC periodically. The most senior management position that is responsible for HR matters is Head
of Human resources at company level, who directly reports to the Company's CEO and indirectly
reports to Chief Peoples Officer (CPO). Certain People specific policies are also managed at group
level by Engro's People division based at the holding company. Furthermore, industrial relations at
plant sites is managed by respective Admin Department at the plant.

The HR function was recently re-modelled to improve HR functional services by inducting HR
Business Partners in 3 major divisions to enable HR function to serve better and be "Fit for Purpose”
in line with its shared vision.

centralization

In 2024, the HR function underwent another remodeling with centralized teams for culture, Learning
& Development, Talent Acquisition and Rewards, i.e. the Centres of Excellence (COEs), formed to
lend support to the Human Resources departments across all Engro Subsidiaries.

employee remuneration policies and processes

The Company's HR policies ensure competitive and appropriate compensation and remuneration
for its employees based on their role, experience, and performance. Employee remuneration for
management employees is determined by relevant competitive markets and guided by Company
policies. The Company maintains separate funded pension and gratuity schemes for its employees.
Employees are eligible for these schemes based on completion of vesting period. Trustees of the
Fund are responsible for administering these funds. The annual contributions to gratuity and
management staff pension funds are based on actuarial valuation. The benefits are provided to
full-time employees including management and staff. These benefits are not offered to contractual
employees. The Company contributes to the defined contribution provident fund for its permanent
employees. Monthly contributions are made both by the Company and employees to the fund at the
rate of 10% of the basic salary. Additionally, a service incentive plan is also maintained for certain
categories of employees to reward them for their service of at least 3 years with the company.

The Company strives to maintain a well-balanced program of employee benefits. Various programs
mentioned below are currently in place for our employees.

Defined benefit gratuity fund
Contributory provident fund
EFERT pension fund

Health Insurance

Life Insurance
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other benefits to permanent employees include:

Part- Time work policy

Compensation cars

Travel and transport benefits

Hajj policy

Annual incentive bonus and performance bonus
Paternity/ maternity leaves and sabbatical leaves
Medical and dental benefits

Long service awards

Loans and advances

Service incentive plans

Home ownership assistance

Club memberships

Beach Huts and Lodges

Day Care

Location specific benefits

Job Evaluation

Engro has initiated a group wide Job Evaluation exercise utilizing the Korn Ferry Hay Method to
measure the relative size of its roles, relying on the world’s leading method to determine the fair and
objective relative value of each role in the organization.

rewards - policy

1. female transport
Engro partnered with Careem in an effort to provide safe and hassle-free mobility solutions for
female employees. This collaboration was aimed at easing the commute to and from work for
women at Engro as part of the Company’s diversity, equity, and inclusion initiatives. This travel
policy complements other initiatives introduced by Engro to create a gender-diverse workforce.
Some of these initiatives include maternity and paternity leaves, and daycare solutions.

2. 5year Long Service Awards
Beginning this year, the steadfast commitment of our valued employees are presented with the
5-Year Long Service Award to commemorate and celebrate the enduring dedication
demonstrated by them.

3. engro help central

Engro Help Central Portal was launched as a one-stop solution for all employee queries such as
Salary Slip issuance, Tax related letters, and other Visa and Employment Related letters.
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4. policy roadshow
To continue creating awareness about HR policies, the Rewards team conducted a series of
sessions under “Our Effort for you- Policy awareness campaign”. To enlighten and remind
employees about all the benefits that they can avail of. Each session has been designed and
curated for the specific audience entailing all the benefits they are entitled to. The awareness
session not only enables employees to be cognizant of HR policies but also provides a platform
where they can voice their opinions and provide feedback.

people & talent development

EFERT's commitment to people development is evident in its core philosophy, emphasizing Talent
Management as crucial for organizational sustainability and continuity. By investing in its workforce,
EFERT recognizes the value of nurturing its most valuable asset—its people.

The Talent Development Program launched last year at EFERT marked a significant step towards
empowering individuals to take charge of their own development within Engro. Built on the
foundational principles of truth, trust, and transparency, this program exemplifies the organization's
unwavering dedication to creating an environment that nurtures both personal and professional
growth. Building upon this foundation, EFERT is proud to introduce EDGE —a pioneering program
designed to identify and cultivate the potential future leaders among high-performing individuals
within the company. This initiative is particularly targeted towards three key groups: women,
individuals on the borderline of the Talent Development Program (TDP) criteria, and members of our
junior bands.

Through EDGE, EFERT aims to provide targeted support and resources to these promising talents,
equipping them with the tools, skills, and opportunities needed to accelerate their career growth
and assume leadership roles within the organization. By fostering diversity, inclusivity, and talent
development at all levels, EFERT reaffirms its commitment to unlocking the full potential of its
workforce and driving sustainable organizational success.

succession planning

EFERT's commitment to ensuring seamless business continuity is evident through its robust
succession planning strategy. By creating a talent pipeline for future leadership positions, EFERT
aims to guarantee uninterrupted operations even in times of transition. Central to this approach is
the emphasis on skill enhancement tailored to meet current and future business demands, ensuring
readiness to navigate dynamic environments. Throughout this process, people development
remains at the forefront, with EFERT acknowledging the inevitability of change and prioritizing the
growth and development of its workforce. To facilitate career progression and talent development,
EFERT has meticulously charted employees' career paths, taking into account factors such as
potential, experience, and demonstration of Engro competencies. Each employee is provided with
ample opportunities for training and development, alongside the necessary resources and
equipment to excel in their respective roles. This holistic approach not only ensures the individual
growth and satisfaction of employees but also strengthens EFERT's overall organizational
capabilities, positioning it for sustained success in the long run.
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learning and development / training and education

Learning Hours

Total 22,758
Men Women
20,663 2,095
Avg 31.2 30.4

time management and communication skills

This comprehensive training program is designed to equip participants with the essential skills for
effective time management and clarity in communication. Through this course, attendees delved
into practical strategies and engaged in interactive exercises for enhanced efficiency and clarity and
impact in communications. These trainings were conducted by our internal trainers and held in
Multan, Lahore, Faisalabad, Hyderabad and Daharki, covering 370 employees.
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feedback conversations
This training module is tailored to cultivate effective feedback communication skills in our Team and
Division leads, enabling collaborative growth and transparency in our appraisal and feedback
mechanism. These trainings were conducted in our Head Office and in Daharki by Activ8 Founder
and Leadership trainer Umer Khan, covering a total population of 53 Managers and General
Managers across the Company.
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inter-functional mastery

Inter-functional mastery fosters a culture of collaboration, understanding, and effective
communication across different the functions of the organization. It is a valuable skill set that
contributes to the overall success and agility of the business. In 2023, EFERT trainers club
conducted 4 sessions: IFM- Secret of Sales, IFM- Supply chain fundamentals, IFM- Manufacturing
Mantras and IFM- Finance for Non- Finance. This comprehensive training program was attended by
212 participants and recorded highest satisfaction score of 98%.
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DEI leadership program

Our commitment to fostering an inclusive culture took a transformative leap through our DE&I
Leadership Program and in 2023, we successfully held sensitization trainings for 100% of our
employee population. These one-day trainings provided an opportunity to sensitize and educate
our employees regarding the standard of conduct required to foster true inclusivity at the workplace.

Performance Enhancement program
The Performance Enhancement Program is designed to create and hone
leaders in the organization, equipping them with the essential skills and
strategies to perform at a higher level, while fostering a culture that upholds
innovation and drives success. We conducted 3 sessions for PEP: Leadership
Intent vs Behavior, Finance for Non-Finance, and Digital Agricultural space,
covering a total population of 115 employees who gave the series a
satisfaction rate of 89%.
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impactful persuasion and gravitas

This training seeks to teach employees the art of effective persuasion and communication with
intent. By training attendees in effective presentation skills from confident body language and
precision while also brushing up their presentation skills, enabling communication and collaboration
that creates success. We conducted three sessions at HO and Daharki, successfully training around
80 employees.

collaboration through mentorship

Through our Mentorship Mastery Program, we empower participants to embrace mentorship as a
dynamic force for collaboration and professional growth. Session participants develop the skills,
insights, and commitment needed to foster a culture of collaboration, knowledge-sharing, and
mutual support within the organization.

first time managers

The First-Time Managers Training Module equipped new leaders with essential skills for effective
team leadership. Covering communication, decision-making, and team motivation, the module
ensured a smooth transition into managerial roles. Participants gained insights into different styles
of leadership styles, conflict resolution, and performance management, fostering success in their
managerial journey.

PMGM retro trainings

A development mindset is crucial in ensuring the success of the performance management journey.
Our group-wide trainings help employees understand the PMGM process end-to-end, which is
integral to their self-development and the development of their direct reports. A special focus is
placed on any changes in the system so the procedures can be executed with clarity and due
diligence. The trainings also enhance awareness of the Engro Leadership Competency Model
(LCM) which is an essential part of the PMGM process and a cornerstone of Engro’s workplace
culture.

employee engagement 2023

We believe our employees remain our enduring advantage and whilst we believe that our ability to
create high performance teams in a culture of inclusiveness, professionalism and excellence is what
drives our success, after a thorough analysis we identified critical aspects around human capital
management that can enhance our people competitiveness.

Engro recognizes that employee engagement is critical for retaining value talent and boost
employee experience. Our success is measured by a defined set of engagement perimeters
adaptable to our working environment.

Each year, we conduct an employee engagement survey, the results of which are shared with both

employees as well as the Board. These results are analyzed and action plans are developed. The
survey addresses following dimensions:
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¢ Purpose e Overall Leadership

e \/alues e Truth, Trust & Transparency
¢ Puts People First e Diversity & Inclusion

¢ Encourages Innovation & Change e Wellbeing

e Collaborates Openly e Engagement

e Acts with Ownership ¢ Survey Followup

During 2023, the results of engagement survey for Engro Fertilizers were:

Employee

Engagement 86 OA) 2:?: onse 95 OA)

Score

At Engro, we aim to score above the global average which, according to Qualtrics 2024 Employee
Trends report, was 67% in 2023 Over the last few years, we have managed to remain above the
target with variation on year to year basis.

These results are analyzed by each division’s HRBP to understand the factors that are encouraging
as well as factors that need interventions and accordingly plans are designed to improve employee
experience in those areas.

Recognizing the significance of fostering a culture of active listening beyond yearly EES surveys, we
have endeavored to establish continuous avenues for employee feedback. This year, EFERT
proudly introduced its flagship listening program, 'Let’s Tune In', designed to empower employees
to share feedback through various channels such as vibe checks, idea boxes, and our semi-annual
Pulse Survey, aligned with the organization-wide Employee Experience Survey. This program aims
to gauge employee sentiments and preferences, enabling us to better cater to their needs.

let’s tune in

2023 saw the launch of EFERT’s flagship listening Program Let’s Tune In, through which we adopted
a multi-faceted approach, providing avenues for feedback and dialogue, enhancing employee
experience and providing engagement via fun activities in the workplace. Under the ambit of Let’s
Tune In, HR introduced a number of features. Elected members from across the Company were
made Fun Catalysts who were in charge of arranging away days for their respective departments
and ensuring the engagement of their departments and participation in other events. Under this
ambit, we introduced our Fun Fridays, which included:
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snacktastic fridays
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friday gamers
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our fun catalysts also played their role in organizing fun away days

mini sports gala

An eventful family sports day, with all teams from football and volleyball to softball and ladies'
cricket holding small tournaments. This also provided an excellent warm up for colleagues to
practice and prepare for the Sports Weekend.

sports weekend 2023

Continuing our long standing prized Engro tradition of the Sports Weekend in 2023, we held our
largest Sports Weekend ever. From employees and their families to friends and colleagues,
everyone was there to celebrate the spirit of sportsmanship and camaraderie.

Whether it was cheering on our colleagues during the games, receiving awards and recognition at
the Gala Dinner, dancing the night away at the concert, or simply enjoying the beautiful
surroundings with our people, employees took away so much more than just a weekend of fun.
Truly, Daharki Sports Weekend 2023 was not just about sports or entertainment, but about All Engro
coming together to celebrate its diversity, creativity and spirit of collaboration. It was a testament to
the power of teamwork and the importance of building strong bonds and relationships that go
beyond the workplace!

‘i,jh,_-l
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mental health awareness month
We celebrated Mental Health Awareness Month with weekly sessions that helped enhance our
employees mental health.

1. Gut and Mind Connection: Healthy Habits Start with Healthy Choices
What we eat affects how we feel! Eating a healthy, balanced diet can help reduce stress levels
as there is a strong connection between the gut and the brain, which ultimately impacts your
overall mental health and well-being. EFERT held the Gut & Mind Connection talk, an informative
nutrition session led by expert nutritionist Nazish Chagla to help everyone learn how
mindfulness in our diet can enrich our lives.
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2. Sound Bath Session: Immerse Yourself in Serenity & Renewal
EFERT employees experienced the serenity of a sound bath. The immersive experience,
complete with tranquil sounds and guided meditation, brought everyone relaxation and inner
peace. Everyone left the session refreshed and ready for the day ahead.

3. Thriving in Uncertain Times: Mastering Financial Wellness
Helping us all navigate these uncertain economic times, this workshop equipped employees
with the tools and knowledge needed to thrive in uncertain times. An interactive session where
employees learned effective strategies and practical tips to take enhance and sustain their
financial well-being.

CEO Iftar

In honor of the auspicious month of Ramadan, EFERT CEO Ahsan Zafar Syed hosted an iftar
celebration for employees at Do Darya. Employees enjoyed an evening of great food and even
better company at the iftar.

tie & dye totes

To celebrate world sustainability day and bring awareness to the importance of adopting the
principles of reusable goods and sustainable practices, we organized a tie & dye tote bags activity,
that allowed us to unleash our creativity, transforming plain totes into works of art, all while
celebrating our beautiful planet.
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jamming with joy

EFERT HO celebrated Independence Day with a live jam session
that had us all singing our hearts out to ring in Pakistan’s 76th
anniversary. Celebrating with a tribute to Pakistani music and
lightening hearts at the end of a bustling workday.

digital campaigns

in 2024, we also leveraged our digital platforms and engaged employees across Pakistan with fun,
interactive competitions for Mothers Day, Fathers Day, World Environment Day, Global Fertilizer Day
and World Food Day. With prizes on the line, these brought our employees together with fun
competition as they participated in sharing stories, taking photos, rapidly answering quiz questions
and cooking up some fun recipes.
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test your knowledge

scavenger hunt

In a memorable 8-day extravaganza, Engro Fertilizer and Engro Energy united to organize the
magnificent Energy-Fertilizer Hunt. Our employees embarked on a thrilling quest as they navigated
through the floors of Energy and EFERT, unlocking mysteries, and seeking the coveted green ticket.
This engaging event brought our teams together, fostering teamwork and connection throughout
the journey.
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inspirenect

Through our new flagship leadership connect program for the Manufacturing Division, attendees at
the Daharki and Zarkhez plants gain the opportunity to interact with our leaders. With sessions led
by Khawaja Bilal Mustafa, Waqgas Qureshi, Usman Asif, Mojiz Mansoor, Syed Usman Aslam and
Hamid Anjum, with Ahsan Jawed and team moderating. With thought-provoking discussions,
insights into the business and an interaction Q&A session, this proved an ideal learning experience
for all to gain motivation and knowledge that will continue to guide them in enabling growth for
themselves and Engro Fertilizers.

town halls - EFERT live

In 2024, we introduced our newly revamped CEO Town Hall: EFERT Live, moving away from our
traditional yearly model to a quarterly one. Through EFERT Live, employees across our 11 locations
not only gained facetime and interaction with CEO Ahsan Zafar Syed but were also given important
business updates and engaged in a Q&A session with the CEO. But EFERT Live transcended
traditional town halls by incorporating fun rapid fire rounds with our Management Committee,
engagement skits by talented troupes like Khawatoons and employee recognition for both
workplace excellence and the People’s Joy Awards, a democratic award system for comedic
categories like Laughter Leader, Chai Addict and Fashionista.
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chai sessions with the leadership

In 2023 we kicked off our fun inspirational initiative: Chai Sessions with the leadership. With
sessions featuring our Senior Vice President Manufacturing Shahzad Nabi, Vice President Business
Development Ammar Shah and Vice President Marketing Atif Mohammad Ali. These sessions allow
us to amplify our employees' voices and engage in meaningful and candid conversations with the
leadership.

CEO Connect: women'’s breakfast session
Last Friday, EFERT HR held a connect session for our
women employees with our CEO Ahsan Zafar Syed.
With a delectable live breakfast segueing into a great
opportunity to pick our CEO’s brains and ask questions
about career development, decision-making and
motivation, the connect was as fun as it was meaningful.
Ahsan delighted and inspired the attendees with tales
from his illustrious career at Engro: challenges
surmounted, and lessons learned. With the dialogue
going two ways, the women of EFERT proudly shared
stories of their own careers and experience gained at
EFERT.

tuesday touchdowns

EFERT’s initiative Tuesday Touchdown, led by VP
Business Development Syed Ammar Shah, is an
exciting way to connect and strategize far from the
office! With literal goals in sight, this allows for some
tough yet fun competition and much-needed
rejuvenation. Tuesday Touchdown features fun football,
badminton and paddle tennis competitions. It’s always
fun to fight on the field.
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forward looking statement

source of information and assumptions used for projections / forecasts
Engro Fertilizers Limited recognizes the importance of proactive planning to ensure sustainable
growth. For this, it is essential the company prioritizes the generation and analysis of information to
comprehend historical and current trends, thereby enabling accurate forecasting of future events.
Key factors that significantly contribute to our annual and future forecasting processes include
economic indicators, market perspectives, global projections, regulatory frameworks, political
landscapes, and internal developments.

The company has established comprehensive systems and models for analyzing current trends and
formulating future projections. The incorporation of detailed information in our projections enhances
our ability to foresee the future with a reasonable degree of accuracy. However, given the dynamic
nature of the macro environment, we continuously reassess and adjust the company's operational
strategy to align with evolving market dynamics.

Internally, our organizational framework comprises functional divisions such as Manufacturing,
Agronomy, Commercial, Supply Chain, Finance & Accounting, and Human Resources. These
divisions collaborate to compile information and data essential for financial projections. Our
approach involves leveraging internal data and expertise alongside secondary market information,
ensuring a robust foundation for information compilation and assessment.

analysis of last year’s forward-looking statement / status of projects
Economic turbulence remained the main theme for 2023 with several economic wild cards including
uncertain geo-political conditions, economic challenges, elevated commodity prices and political
turbulence casting a shadow on the domestic economy. The impact of these challenges was further
compounded by existing structural weaknesses, a significant trade and fiscal imbalance and
dwindling foreign exchange reserves. As a result, Inflationary pressures in tandem with a widening
fiscal gap dampened GDP growth and recovery efforts. Through significant effort of the
management and employees, and under the guidance of the Board, EFERT successfully managed
to navigate the challenges presented by the year 2023.

Our unwavering commitment to operational excellence and continuous investment in our
manufacturing facilities yielded substantial rewards as we progressed further in our growth journey,
attaining several noteworthy milestones. These achievements stand as a testament to the
substantial collective efforts exerted by the company, aimed at delivering high yet sustainable
returns for our shareholders. During the fiscal year, the Company achieved its highest-ever profit
after tax, reaching PKR 26.2 billion, reflecting a commendable 64% growth compared to the
previous year.

Throughout the year, our Agri expansion continued, leveraging our competitive advantages,
including a robust trade network, understanding of farmer economics, and a diverse product
portfolio. Record urea sales of 2,327 KT were achieved, surpassing the previous year’s sales of
1,935 KT by 20.3%. Our commitment to maximizing farmer productivity is also evident from the
rapid growth exhibited by our Zabardast Urea and Specialty Fertilizer portfolio.
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These record-breaking sales not only positioned the Company as a key player in the agriculture
sector but also played a pivotal role in mitigating the current account deficit. The value addition
amounted to approximately US$ 835 million through import substitution of 2,313 KT of urea sold in
the country by Engro Fertilizers Limited. Additionally, the Company contributed nearly PKR 34.7Bn
towards the National Exchequer by way of Government taxes, duties, and levies, compared to PKR
11.6Bn in 2022. The contribution has increased significantly versus last year due to imposition of
super tax on the Company through Finance Act 2023.

The outgoing year withessed improved crop economics, leading to higher earnings per acre for
farmers across major crops. However, the escalating cost of fertilizer inputs remained a prominent
concern.

On suits filed for GIDC and end of concessionary gas period, the stay orders are in place. In 2022,
the Government of Pakistan filed a response setting out their stance in the suit filed for GIDC on
concessionary gas. The Company drafted a rejoinder to the stance submitted by the Government
and has submitted the same before the Sindh High Court in due course.

looking towards FY 2024

Engro Fertilizers Limited is cognizant the pivotal role the fertilizer sector plays for the national
economy and for ensuring food security by facilitating import substitution, at a substantial discount
to international prices, and yield improvement. Presently, MRP of urea stands at PKR 3,596/bag at
year end, at a discount of ~40% to international. Through ongoing efforts to enhance the efficiency
and reliability of our plant, we aim to create opportunities for exporting excess urea supply,
contributing to valuable foreign currency earnings and alleviating the country's current account
deficit.

Our commitment to our shareholders involves delivering consistent growth by prioritizing
operational excellence and cultivating a sustainable business model. We actively contribute to
farmer education, utilizing technological and social capital to raise awareness, introduce
comprehensive solutions, advocate best practices, and promote responsible use of scarce water
resources.

Furthermore, recognizing the potential impact of government policies and regulations, we remain
engaged with governmental bodies and stakeholders at various levels. This ongoing dialogue
enables us to share insights into business dynamics and industry challenges, playing a crucial role
in shaping sustainable and progressive agricultural policies in the country.

Over time, our company has developed a streamlined organizational structure, boasting efficient
manufacturing capabilities, a robust trade network, deep understanding of farmer economics, and
strong focus on corporate governance and compliance. With a diverse product portfolio addressing
a wide range of farmer needs, coupled with the capacity to integrate synergies and adopt advanced
technology, we are well-positioned for sustainable long-term growth. Our strategic focus includes
introducing new products, providing value-added solutions, and promoting import substitution for
the ultimate benefit of all our stakeholders.
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Embracing the ethos of doing good while prospering, we remain committed to investing in
corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. Our emphasis lies in infrastructure development,
education, livelihood, health, and environmental initiatives, with the aim of creating a brighter future
for the communities surrounding our manufacturing facilities and for Pakistan as a whole.

Looking ahead, Engro Fertilizers Limited eagerly anticipates its continued role in enhancing
agricultural yields and improving farmers' living standards in the region.

response framework for future challenges and uncertainties

Engro Fertilizers Limited is equipped with a highly efficient response framework designed to
address forthcoming challenges and uncertainties. One significant challenge on the horizon
involves the depletion of allocated gas fields, potentially impacting urea production. It is pertinent to
mention here, that to address the decline in gas pressure at Mari Petroleum Company Limited’s
(MPCL) Habib Rahi Limestone (HRL) Reservoir, EFERT and other fertilizer manufacturers have
entered into an agreement with MPCL to invest in the establishment of Pressure Enhancement
Facilities (PEF) at MPCL’s delivery node. The project is expected to have a significant capital outlay
and will ensure sustained gas supplies from HRL reservoir to fertilizer manufacturers (at required
pressure levels).

Concurrently, the organization is also actively exploring alternative sources of gas and energy. The
company's robust investment pipeline is also poised to diversify the product portfolio and introduce
new verticals, ultimately bolstering profitability.

To continually maximize shareholder wealth, the company has adopted a sustainable resource
allocation framework, ensuring the efficient utilization of capital resources to achieve strategic
objectives.

Externally, the prevalent reliance of farmers on urea and resistance to balanced nutrient usage for
‘P’ and ‘K’ variants poses a potential challenge. Engro Fertilizers Limited is proactively addressing
this by consistently promoting the benefits of balanced fertilizer usage through engagements,
product trials, and pilots. As part of a long-term strategy, the company plans to collaborate with the
government to implement subsidy plans encouraging farmers to invest in ‘P’ ‘K, and other
value-added variants. Additionally, discussions with the government on smart subsidy mechanisms
are underway, as they prove effective in influencing buying patterns and promoting balanced
fertilizer usage.

The company acknowledges the adverse impact of foreign exchange and interest rate fluctuations
on profitability. Engro Fertilizers Limited's treasury function actively monitors market rates and open
positions to mitigate potential risks.

Guided by comprehensive and coherent strategic guidelines, coupled with vigilant monitoring of
changes in the operating, economic, political, and social landscape, Engro Fertilizers Limited
positions itself for organic growth. This approach not only contributes to the company's profitability
growth but also aligns with the broader economic success of the country.
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report of the audit committee
for the year ended december 31, 2023

composition
The Committee is appointed by the Board and at the year-end it comprised of two Independent
Directors:

Category Category

a. Independent directors Mr. Asad Said Jafar — Chairman

Mr. Asim Murtaza Khan - Member

Mr. Javed Akbar — Member

c. Secretary Ms. Mehreen Khalid — Head of Internal Audit

b. Non-executive directors

The detailed profiles of the Audit Committee members are given on the Director Profile section of
the Annual Report 2023.

Two of the Committee members are qualified finance professionals and the committee, as a whole,
possesses significant economic, financial, and business acumen.

The Head of Internal Audit of the Company functions as the Secretary to the Committee. The Chief
Financial Officer of the Company attends the meetings by invitation, internal auditors are present in
all committee meetings whereas external auditors are invited to the meetings on a requirement
basis.

charter of the committee
The terms of reference of the Committee are clearly defined in the Charter of the Committee which
is duly approved by the Board of Directors. The salient features are stated below:

To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of external auditors;

To review quarterly, half-yearly, and annual financial statements;

To review the internal control systems and internal audit function;

To monitor compliance with complaints received through the Speak Out — Whistle Blower Policy;
and

¢ To monitor compliance with statutory requirements.
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role of the committee

The Committee assists the Board to effectively carry out its supervisory oversight responsibilities on
financial reporting and compliance, internal controls and risks, and internal and external audit
functions of the Company.

The Audit Committee believes that it has carried out responsibilities to the full, in accordance with
Terms of Reference approved by the Board which included principally the items mentioned below
and the actions taken by the Audit Committee in respect of each of these responsibilities. Evaluation
of the Board performance, which also included members of the Audit Committee was carried out
separately and is detailed in the Annual Report.

The Committee has concluded its annual review of the operations of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2023 and reports that:

e The Committee reviewed the quarterly and annual financial statements of the Company and
recommended them for approval of the Board,;

¢ The standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2023 have been prepared on a going concern basis under requirements of
Companies Act 2017, incorporating the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance,
International Financial Reporting Standards and other applicable regulations.

¢ These financial statements present a true and fair view of the Company’s state of affairs, results
of operations, profits, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company and its subsidiary for
the year under review.

¢ Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied and all applicable accounting
standards were followed in preparation of the financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2023;

e The Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have
endorsed the standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Company, while the
Directors’ Report is signed by the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. They acknowledge
their responsibility for true and fair presentation of the Company’s financial condition and results,
compliance with regulations, applicable accounting standards and establishment and
maintenance of internal controls and systems of the Company.
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e Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. Proper and adequate
accounting records have been maintained by the Company in accordance with the Companies
Act, 2017. The financial statements comply with the requirements of the Fourth Schedule to the
Companies Act, 2017 and the external reporting is consistent with management processes and
adequate for shareholder needs.

¢ Proper, accurate and adequate accounting records have been maintained by the Company;

¢ The Company’s system of internal control is sound in design and is continuously evaluated for
effectiveness and adequacy;

¢ The Company has issued a “Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance”
which has also been reviewed and certified by the External Auditors of the Company.

e Understanding and compliance with Company codes and policies has been affirmed by the
members of the Board, the Management and employees of the Company. Equitable treatment
of shareholders has also been ensured;

¢ The Committee has reviewed all related party transactions and recommended them for approval
of the Board;

¢ Reviewed and investigated whistleblower complaints received during the year, details of which
can be found in Internal Audit, Ethics & Compliance section of the Annual Report.

risk management and internal control

¢ The Company has developed a sound mechanism for identification of key risks and assigning
appropriate criticality level and devising appropriate mitigation measures which are regularly
monitored and implemented by the management across all major functions of the Company and
presented to the Audit Committee for information and review.

¢ The Company has devised and implemented an effective internal control framework which also
includes an independent internal audit function.

¢ The Internal Audit department is responsible to provide independent opinion on whether the
Company’s risk management, governance and internal controls processes are operating
effectively.

internal audit

e The Audit Committee has ensured achievement of objectives relating to internal controls
systems including operational controls, compliance, risk management, financial reporting and
determination of appropriate measures to safeguard the Company’s assets

¢ The Internal Audit function has carried out its duties under the charter defined by the Committee.
The Committee has reviewed material Internal Audit findings, taking appropriate action or
bringing the matters to the Board’s attention where required.
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Audit Committee has provided proper arrangement for staff and management to report to Audit
Committee in confidence, concerns, if any, about actual or potential improprieties in financial
and other matters. Adequate remedial and mitigating measures are applied, where necessary.
The Head of Internal Audit has direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the
Committee has ensured staffing of personnel with sufficient internal audit acumen and that the
function has all necessary access to Management and the right to seek information and
explanations.

Coordination between the External and Internal Auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency and
contribution to the Company’s objectives, including a reliable financial reporting system and
compliance with laws and regulations.

external audit

The statutory auditors of the Company, A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, have
completed their audit assignment of the Company’s consolidated and standalone financial
statements and the statement of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance for the
year ended December 31, 2023 and shall retire on the conclusion of the 15th Annual General
Meeting;

The Committee has reviewed and discussed audit observations with the external auditors. A
meeting was also held with the external auditors in the absence of management;

The external auditors have direct access to the Committee and Internal Audit Department,
hereby ensuring the effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the audit process;

A.F Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants also provides taxation and secondment services to
the Company. The objectivity and independence of the auditor is safeguarded through separate
engagement partners for the non-audit services and the firm’s internal process to ensure
independence, as confirmed by them through their engagement letter. The firm has no financial
or other relationship of any kind with the Company except that of External Auditor, Taxation
Consultant, and other services as disclosed in the financial statements.
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¢ The performance, cost and independence of the external auditors is reviewed annually by the
Committee. The Audit Committee obtained confirmation from the external auditors in its
meeting that the engagement team, other partners and staff in the firm, and the firm have
complied with the applicable requirements regarding independence.

¢ The Committee is satisfied with performance of the External Auditors. The engagement partner
on the audit was Mr. Salman Hussain. Being eligible for reappointment under the Code of
Corporate Governance, the Committee has recommended to the Board, reappointment of A.F.
Ferguson and Co., Chartered Accountants for the year 2024. A resolution to this effect has been
proposed at the 15th Annual General Meeting.

annual report 2023

¢ The Company has issued a very comprehensive Annual Report which besides presentation of
the financial statements and the Directors’ Reports of the Company, also discloses other
information to offer an in depth understanding about the management style, the policies set in
place by the Company, its performance during the year and future prospects to various
stakeholders of the Company.

¢ The information has been disclosed in the form of ratios, trends, graphs, analysis, explanatory
notes and statements etc., and the Audit Committee believes that the Annual Report 2023 gives
a detailed view of how the Company evolved, its state of affairs and future prospects.

Asad Said Jafar

Chairman, Audit Committee
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statement of compliance with listed companies
(code of corporate governance) regulations, 2019

Engro Fertilizers Limited
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Engro Fertilizers Limited (hereinafter referred to as (the “Company”) has complied with the
requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019,
(“Regulations”) in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are Seven* (7) in the following manner:

a. Male*: 6
b. Female: 1

*Including the CEOQ, who is a Deemed Director.
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Name

Mr. Asim Murtaza Khan
Mr. Asad Said Jafar

Independent Director - Woman Ms. Danish Zuberi

Independent Director

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Ghias Khan
Mr. Javed Akbar
Mr. Ismail Mahmud

Executive Director / CEO Mr. Ahsan Zafar Syed

Ms. Danish Zuberi was appointed on November 1, 2023 in place of Dr. Shamshad Akhtar who
resigned as a Director on August 23, 2023.
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3. The directors have confirmed that none of them are serving as a director of no more than seven
(7) listed companies, including this Company.

4. The Company has prepared a ‘Code of Conduct’ and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company, along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5. The Board has formulated a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy, and significant
policies of the Company. Additionally, the Board has ensured that the Company maintains a
comprehensive record of significant policies, including the date of their approval or updating.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017 (the “Act”) and the Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a Director
elected by the Board for this purpose, the Board has complied with the requirements of the Act
and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of the meeting
of the Board.

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and the Regulations.

9. All directors are duly certified or exempted from the Directors' Training Program. Furthermore, the
company had arranged a Directors' Training Program for Mr. Syed Shahzad Nabi, SVP
Manufacturing and Ms. Mehreen Khalid, Chief Internal Auditor.

10. The Board approved the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer and Head of Internal Audit
including with their remuneration, terms, and conditions of employment, and compiled with the
Regulations. The Board has also reviewed the remuneration of the existing Chief Executive
Officer and Company Secretary and terms and conditions of employment.

11. The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer duly endorsed the Company's standalone
and consolidated financial statements, which were subsequently presented to the Board Audit
Committee and the Board for approval.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Board Audit Committee Mr. Asad Said Jafar - Chairman
Mr. Asim Murtaza Khan

Mr. Javed Akbar

b) Board People Committee, Mr. Asim Murtaza Khan — Chairman
i.e. HR and Remuneration Committee Mr. Javed Akbar
Ms. Ghias Khan

233 I enriching Pakistan engro fertilizers limited

13. The terms of reference of the aforementioned committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committees for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committees were as follows:
a) Board Audit Committee — 5 meetings held during the year;
b) Board People Committee — 4 meetings held during the year;

15.The Board has established a system of sound internal audit controls, which is effectively
implemented at all levels within the Company comprising individuals who are suitably qualified
and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the
Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan. They are also registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their
partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on
code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they
and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent,
dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, the Regulations, or any other regulatory
requirement. The auditors have also confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of Regulation 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with.

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33
and 36 are below:

1. Nomination Committee and Risk Management Committee (Regulation 29 and 30)
The responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee and the Nomination Committee are
currently fulfilled by Board Audit Committee and the Board respectively. Therefore, establishing a
separate committee for Risk Management and Nomination is not required.

e S

Mr. Ghias Khan Mr. Ahsan Zafar Syed
Chairman CEO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S
REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Engro Fertilizers Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
Engro Fertilizers Limited for the year ended December 31, 2023 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status
of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily
to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2023.

W}»Ht—-

Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date: March 5, 2024
UDIN: CR202310113r1KIVPD5Y
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Engro Fertilizers Limited

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Engro Fertilizers Limited (the Holding Company) and
its subsidiary (together the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31,
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at December 31, 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

Income tax and Sales tax provisions and
contingencies

(Refer notes 26.2, 26.3, 26.7 t0 26.11 and 35 to
the consolidated financial statements)

The Group has recognised provisions and has
disclosed contingent liabilities in respect of
certain income tax and sales tax matters, which
are pending adjudication before various
appellate and legal forums.

Provisions and contingencies require
management of the Group to make judgements
and estimates in relation to the interpretation of
laws, statutory rules, regulations, and the
probability of outcome and financial impact, if
any, on the Group for recognition and
measurement of any provision and disclosure in
respect of such provisions and contingencies.

Due to the significance of the amounts involved,
inherent uncertainties with respect to the
outcome of the matters, legal forums at which
these are currently pending and use of
significant judgements and estimates to assess
the same including related financial impacts,
which may change over time as new facts
emerge and matters progress, we have
considered income tax and sales tax provisions
and contingencies as a key audit matter.

AFFERGUSON&CO.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the
following:

obtained and examined details of the
documentation relating to pending tax matters
and discussed the same with the Group’s
management;

circularised confirmations to the Group’s external
legal and tax advisors for their views on matters
being handled by them;

involved internal tax professionals to assess
management’s conclusions on contingent tax
matters and evaluated the consistency of such
conclusions with the views of management and
external legal and tax advisors engaged by the
Group;

checked correspondence of the Group with the
relevant authorities including judgments or orders
passed by the competent authorities in relation to
the issues involved or matters which have
similarities with the issues involved;

checked the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations underlying the provisions; and

assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures
made in the consolidated financial statements
with respect to the applicable accounting and
reporting standards.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Reports Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the unconsolidated and consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s reports
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

A. F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network

State Life Building No. 1-C, LI Chundrigar Road, P.0Q. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan

Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427938/32424740; <wnww.pec.com/pks
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

«  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Salman Hussain.

W*u_.

Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date: March 5, 2024

UDIN: AR202310113dnj96 TWKr

annual report 2023 enriching Pakistan | 240




consolidated statement of financial position

as at december 31, 2023
(Amounts in thousand) Note 2023 ...Rupees.... 2022 (Amounts in thousand) Note 2023 ...Rupees.... 2022
ASSETS EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equi
Non-current assets auity
Property, plant and equipment 4 78,440,081 77,879,522 Share capital 16 13,352,993 13,352,993
Intangible assets 5 5,184,192 5,287,980 Reserves
Share premium 17 3,384,904 3,384,904
Long-term investments 6 202,134 2,204,759 Remeasurement of post employment benefits 17 (74,030) (99,994)
U iated profit 17 31,238,888 28,415,525
Long-term loans, advances and deposits 7 209,806 206,531 nappropriated prof 34.549.762 31.700.435
84,036,213 85,578,792
B R TOTAL EQUITY 47,902,755 45,053,428
Current assets
Liabilities
Stores, spares and loose tools 8 8,729,523 6,495,230
Stock-in-trade 9 15,355,755 16,868,436 Non-current liabilities
Trade debts 10 2,912,495 3,772,128 Borrowings 18 3,267,427 5,841,898
Government grant 19 721,334 890,939
Other receivables 11 16,056,950 17,226,238 Deferred taxation 20 10,401,710 8,154,634
) Deferred liabilities 21 236,702 235,241
Loans, advances, deposits and prepayments 12 3,993,197 2,795,316 Provision for Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) 22 - 2,315,163
Accrued income 116,629 175,078 . eezree U2
Current liabilities
Short-term investments 13 24,062,828 9,668,016
Trade and other payables 23 74,095,829 45,156,293
Cash and bank balances 14 4,053,684 2,834,098 Accrued interest / mark-up 72,814 520,010
Taxation - net 994,344 4,511,651
75,281,061 50,834,540 Current portion of:
PP - borrowings 18 2,715,014 6,827,730
Assets classified as held f | 15 1,525,396 - 9 Y 19cl,
SSEIS classilied as held or sale T - government grant 19 235,755 255,874
- deferred liabilities 21 62,546 70,193
- - - provision for GIDC 22 19,558,031 16,704,957
TOTAL ASSETS 160,842,670 145,413,332 Short-term borrowings 24 530,110 7,826,110
Loan from Parent Company 25 - 1,000,000
Unclaimed dividend 48,299 49,211
98,312,742 82,922,029
TOTAL LIABILITIES 112,939,915 100,359,904
Contingencies and Commitments 26
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 160,842,670 145,413,332

The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Ali Rathore Ahsan Zafar Syed Ghias Khan
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman
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consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended december 31, 2023

consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

(Amounts in thousand except for earnings per share) Note 2023 ....Rupees.... 2022 for the year ended december 31 , 2023

(Amounts in thousand) 2023 ...Rupees.... 2022
Net sales 27 223,704,592 157,016,930
Cost of sales 28 (151,407,364) (114,169,791) Profit for the year 26,191,102 16,003,289
Gross profit 72,297,228 42,847,139

] o Other comprehensive income / (loss):
Selling and distribution expenses 29 (18,053,158) (9,885,983)
Administrative expenses 30 (4,006,506) (2,216,597) Items not potentially re-classifiable to profit or loss
55,237,564 30,744,559 - Remeasyrement of post employment benefits obligation . o 42,564 (14,265)

- Tax relating to remeasurement of post employment benefits obligation (16,600) 4,137
Other income 31 3,714,027 2,325,361 25,964 (10,128)
Other operating expenses 32 (4,369,431) (2,523,538) Total comprehensive income for the year 26,217,066 15,993,161
Finance cost 33 (1,910,830) (2,621,808)

The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Other losses:
- Remeasurement loss on provision for GIDC 22 (537,911) (839,935)
- Loss allowance on subsidy receivable from GoP 11.3 (2,440,151) (522,936)

(2,978,062) (1,362,871)

Profit before taxation 49,693,268 26,561,703
Taxation 35 (23,502,166) (10,558,414)
Profit for the year 26,191,102 16,003,289
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 36 19.61 11.98

The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

P S WX e R Oy WK

Ahsan Zafar Syed Ghias Khan
Chief Executive Officer Chairman

Ali Rathore Ahsan Zafar Syed Ghias Khan Ali Rathore
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended december 31, 2023

consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended december 31, 2023

(Amounts in thousand) Note 2023 ...Rupees.... 2022 (Amounts in thousand) Reserves
) Lo Capital Revenue
Cash flows from operating activities
Remeasurement
) Share Share of post Unappropriated Total
Cash generated from operations 40 81,979,011 41,291,071 capital premium e"g;'r“’gf’i"tg"t profit
Retirement and other service benefits paid (52,846) (76,037) Rup
Taxes paid (24,772,397) (11,196,311)
Long-term loans, advances and deposits (8,275) (67,030)
Income on deposits / other financial assets 3.404.188 1,682,663 Balance as at January 1, 2023 13,352,993 3,384,904 (99,994) 28,415,525 45,053,428
Net cash generated from operating activities 60,554,681 31,634,356 Transactions with owners
Cash flows from investing activities Dividends:
- Final 2022: Rs. 5.00 per share - - - (6,676,497) (6,676,497)
. . . - 1st interim 2023: Rs. 3.5 per share - - - (4,673,548) (4,673,548)
Purchases of prqperty, plant and ngpment and intangibles (6,174,436) (8,377,514) - 2nd interim 2023: Rs. 3 per share ) ) ) (4.005,898) (4,005.898)
Proceeds from disposal of operating assets 4.3 268,056 418,378 - 3rd interim 2023: Rs. 6 per share ; ; ; (8,011,796) (8,011,796)
Purchase of short-term and long-term investments (200,024,474) (307,566,500) - - - (23,367,739) (23,367,739)
Proceeds from sale of short-term and long investments 187,186,841 296,598,771 Total comprehensive income for the
Net cash utilised in investing activities (18,744,013) (18,926,865) year ended December 31, 2023
. . - Profit for th - - - 26,191,102 26,191,102
Cash flows from financing activities ortc,)]ér fgmpﬁgﬁj,isive income:
- remeasurements, net of tax - - 25,964 - 25,964
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 18.4 - 993,993 - - 25,964 26,191,102 26,217,066
Loan repaid to the Parent Company 25 (1,000,000) (4,200,000)
Repayments of long-term borrowings 18.4 (7,076,643) (5,771,083) Balance as at December 31, 2023 13,352,993 3,384,904 (74,030) 31,238,888 47,902,755
Finance cost paid (2,295,234) (2,177,382) Balance as at January 1, 2022 13,352,993 3,384,904 30,438,777 47,086,808
Dividends paid (23,368,651) (18,026,801)
Net cash utilised in financing activities (83,740,528) (29,181,273) _ _
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8,070,140 (16,473,782) Transactions with owners
. L Dividends:
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (4,096,566) 12,377,216 - Final 2021: Rs. 5.00 per share (6,676,497) (6,676,497)
- - - 1st interim 2022: Rs. 5.50 per share (7,344,146) (7,344,146)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 41 3,973,574 (4,096,566) - 2nd interim 2022: Rs. 3.00 per share (4,005,898 (4,005,898)

)
(18,026,541) (18,026,541)

Total comprehensive income for the
year ended ended December 31, 2022

The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Profit for the year 16,003,289 16,003,289

Other comprehensive loss:

- remeasurements, net of tax - - - (10,128)
- - 16,003,289 15,993,161

Balance as at December 31, 2022 13,352,993 3,384,904 28,415,525 45,053,428

The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ghias Khan
Chairman

Ali Rathore
Chief Financial Officer

Ali Rathore
Chief Financial Officer

Ahsan Zafar Syed
Chief Executive Officer

Ghias Khan
Chairman

Ahsan Zafar Syed
Chief Executive Officer
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notes to the consolidated financial

statements
for the year ended december 31, 2023

(Amounts in thousand)

1.

1.1

1.1.1
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legal status and operations

Engro Fertilizers Limited (the Holding Company) is a public company incorporated in
Pakistan on June 29, 2009 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Engro Corporation Limited (the
Parent Company), which is a subsidiary of Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited (the
Ultimate Parent Company). The Holding Company is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited (PSX). As at December 31, 2023, the Parent Company holds 56.27% share capital
of the Holding Company.

The Holding Company is engaged in the manufacturing, purchasing and marketing of
fertilizers, seeds and pestisides and providing logistics services. The business units of the
Holding Company include the following:

Business unit Geographical location

Head / Registered Office  7th & 8th floors, The Harbour Front Building, Plot Number HC-3,
Block 4, Scheme Number 5, Clifton, Karachi.

Engro Daharki Plant District Ghotki, Sindh.

Engro Zarkhez Plant EZ/1/P-1-Il Eastern Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi.
The 'Group' consists of:

Holding Company: Engro Fertilizers Limited

Subsidiary Company: EFERT Agritrade (Private) Limited (EAPL), which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Holding Company.

EFERT Agritrade (Private) Limited

EFERT Agritrade (Private) Limited (EAPL) was incorporated on July 6, 2017, as a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Holding Company to carry out business of trading and distribution
of imported fertilizer. As part of the business reorganisation in 2017, the Holding Company
transferred its business of trading and distribution of imported fertilizer to the new subsidiary
and holds 10,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each in EAPL.

engro fertilizers limited

(Amounts in thousand)
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2.1
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21.3
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material accounting policy information

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for re-measurement of certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value
and recognition of certain staff retirement benefits at present value.

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting
standards applicable on the Group comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);
and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the requirements of
IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Act have been followed for the
preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the above
requirements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 3.

Initial application of standards, amendment or an interpretation to existing standards

a) Amendments or improvements to approved accounting and reporting standards
that became effective during the year

There are certain amendments or improvements to approved accounting and reporting
standards that are effective for the first time for the financial year begining on January 1,
2023; however, these are considered not to have a significant impact on the Group’s
financial reporting and operations, therefore, have not been presented in these
consolidated financial statements, except for the following:
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(Amounts in thousand)

i) Amendment to IAS 1 "Presentation of financial statements" and IFRS Practice
Statement 2:

This recent amendment provides guidance and examples to help entities apply
materiality judgements in order to determine accounting policy information which
should be disclosed. This amendment aims to help entities in providing accounting
policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to
disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their
‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept
of materiality in making decisions about the accounting policy disclosures. This
amendment only had an impact on the Group’s disclosures of accounting policies, but
not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any item in these consolidated
financial statements.

b) Standard, amendments or improvements to approved accounting and reporting

standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group

There is a standard and certain other amendments or improvements to approved
accounting and reporting standards that are not yet effective for the period beginning on
January 1, 2023 and have not been early adopted by the Group. These are considered
not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Group's financial reporting and
operations and, therefore, have not been presented in these consolidated financial
statements.

2.1.5 Basis of consolidation

i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Further, the Group also considers whether:

it has power to direct the relevant activities of the subsidiaries;

it is exposed to variable returns from the subsidiaries; and

decision making power allows the Group to affect its variable returns from the
subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-recognised from the date the control ceases.

engro fertilizers limited

(Amounts in thousand)
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The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities (including contingent
liabilities) assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Profits and losses (unrealised) are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Transactions and non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of
control as transactions with equity owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequent accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed off the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Property, plant and equipment
Owned assets

These are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any, except for freehold land and capital work in progress which are stated at cost less
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items including borrowing costs. The cost of self constructed assets
includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software
that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment.

Where major components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Disposal of asset is recognised when significant risk and rewards incidental to ownership
have been transferred to buyers. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the sale proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other
operating expenses / income’ in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the financial
year of disposal.

Depreciation is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss using the straight line
method, except for catalyst whose depreciation is charged on the basis of number of
production days, whereby the cost of an operating asset less its estimated residual value, if
significant, is depreciated over its useful life. Depreciation on additions is charged from the
month following the month in which the asset is available for use and on disposals up to the
preceding month of disposal.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

engro fertilizers limited
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Intangible assets
a) Computer software and licenses

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense when incurred. However, costs that are directly attributable to identifiable
software and have probable economic benefits beyond one year, are recognised as an
intangible asset. Direct costs include the purchase cost of software (license fee) and
related overhead costs.

Following initial recognition, computer software and licenses are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond
its original specification and useful life is recognised as a capital improvement and added
to the original cost of the software.

Computer software and license cost treated as intangible assets are amortised from the
date the software is put to use on a straight-line basis over a period of 4 years, except for
the Group's investment in its ERP i.e. OneSAP which is amortised over a period of 8
years.

b) Rights for future gas utilization

Rights for future gas utilisation represent premium paid to the GoP for allocation of 100
MMSCFD natural gas for a period of 20 years for the Holding Company's Enven plant.
The rights are being amortised from the date of commercial production on a straight-line
basis over the remaining allocation period.

c) Goodwill
Gooduwill represents the difference between the consideration paid for acquiring interests
in a business and the fair value of the Holding Company's share of its net assets at the
date of acquisition and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.

d) Right to use the brand
These are stated at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.
The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any
such indication exists, assets or cash generating units are tested for impairment. Also,

goodwill is tested for impairment atleast once a year and other intangibles with indefinite
useful life are tested for impairment at each reporting date. Where the carrying value
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exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, these are written down to their recoverable
amount and the resulting impairment is charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Impairment is reversed only if there have been changes in estimates used to determine
recoverable amounts and only to the extent that the revised recoverable amount does
not exceed the carrying values that would have existed, had there been no recognition of
impairment, except impairment of goodwill which is not reversed.

The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life
assessment for the asset.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation / amortisation are reviewed at each reporting date to
identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or reversal of previous
impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted
to the original cost of the asset.

Joint arrangements

Joint arrangements are arrangements in which the Group has contractually agreed sharing
of control, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

Joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint ventures depending upon the
rights and obligations arising from the joint arrangement. The Group classifies a joint
arrangement as joint operation when the Group has the rights to the assets, and obligations
for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. The Group classifies a joint arrangement as a
joint venture when the Group has the rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

In respect of an interest in a joint operation, the Group recognises its assets, including its
share of any assets held jointly; its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly; its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation; its
share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation; its expenses, including
its share of any expenses incurred jointly.
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Financial assets
Classification, initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified into appropriate categories on initial recognition and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, at fair value through other comprehensive
income or at fair value through profit or loss. The management determines the classification
of financial assets into appropriate categories based on the Group’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if it is not measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income.

All financial assets are recognised at the time when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade date; the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the financial asset. Financial assets at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and impairment
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through other comprehensive income are initially and subsequently measured at
fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recorded at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values
of the financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risk and
rewards of ownership. On derecognition of a financial asset, in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income (as the case may
be).

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade and other receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

The Group measures ECL of a financial instrument in a way that reflects:

a) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range
of possible outcomes;

b) the time value of money; and

c) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information as described above. As for the exposure at default
for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting
date.

A default on a financial asset is considered when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 90 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there are no reasonable expectation of recovery. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement
activity to attempt to recover the balance due. Where recoveries are made, these are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities

The Group recognises a financial liability in its consolidated statement of financial position
when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. At
initial recognition, the Group measures a financial liability at its fair value minus, in the case
of a financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liability. Subsequently, financial
liabilities are stated at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle either on a net basis, or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at weighted average cost except for items in transit which are stated at
invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon till the reporting date. For items which are
slow moving and / or identified as surplus to the Group's requirements, adequate provision
is made for any excess book value over estimated realisable value. The Group reviews the
carrying amount of stores, spares and loose tools on a regular basis and provision is made
for obsolescence.

Spare parts of capital nature which can be used only in connection with an item of property,

plant and equipment are shown separately as major spare parts and stand-by equipment
under property, plant and equipment.
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Stock-in-trade

These are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
weighted average method except for raw materials in transit which are stated at cost (invoice
value) plus other charges incurred thereon till the reporting date. Cost in relation to finished
goods includes applicable purchase cost and manufacturing expenses. The cost of work in
process includes material and proportionate conversion costs.

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to be incurred in order to make the
sales.

Trade debts and other receivables

These are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, if any
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method less
provision for impairment, if any. The amount of provision is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Trade debts and other receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows include cash in hand,
balances with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts / short term borrowings. Bank overdrafts are
shown within short term borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of

transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.
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Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

These are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within 12 months or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business, if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the tax
expense is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current

The current income tax charge is based on the taxable income for the year calculated on the
basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for all temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based
on the tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised.
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2.17 Employee benefits

2.17.1 Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contribution into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognised as an employee benefit expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

The Group contributes to:

- defined contribution provident fund for its permanent employees. Monthly contributions
are made both by the Group and employees to the fund at the rate of 10% of basic
salary;

- defined contribution pension fund for the benefit of those management employees who
have not opted for defined contribution gratuity fund as explained in note 2.17.3. Monthly
contributions are made by the Group to the fund at rates ranging from 12.5% to 13.75%
of basic salary; and

- defined contribution gratuity fund for the benefit of those management employees who
have selected to opt out of defined benefit gratuity fund and defined contribution pension
plans as more fully explained in note 2.17.3. Monthly contributions are made by the
Group to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary.

All of the aforementioned funds are managed by the Parent Company.

2.17.2 Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined contribution
plan. The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service
in current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The
calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, related details of which are given in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Remeasurements (actuarial gains / losses) in respect of defined benefit plans are recognised
directly in equity through other comprehensive income.
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Contributions require assumptions to be made of future outcomes which mainly include
increase in remuneration, expected long-term return on plan assets and the discount rate
used to convert future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in
the underlying assumptions.

The Group also contributes to:
- defined benefit funded pension scheme for its management employees.

- defined benefit funded gratuity schemes for its management and non-management
employees.

The pension scheme provides life time pension to retired employees or their spouses.
Contributions are made annually to these funds on the basis of actuarial recommendations.
The pension scheme has been curtailed and effective from July 1, 2005, no new members
are inducted in this scheme.

2.17.3 In June 2011, the Group gave a one time irrevocable option to selected members of MPT

Employees' Defined Benefit Gratuity Fund and Defined Contribution Pension Fund to join a
new MPT Employees' Defined Contribution Gratuity Fund (the Fund), a defined contribution
plan. The present value, as at June 30, 2011, of the defined benefit obligation of those
employees, who accepted this offer, were transferred to this Fund. Furthermore, from July
2011 onwards, the monthly contributions to Defined Contribution Pension Fund of such
employees were discontinued.

2.17.4 Service incentive plan

The Group recognises provision under a service incentive plan for certain category of
experienced employees to continue in the Group’s employment.

2.17.5 Employees' compensated absences

2.18
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The Group accounts for compensated absences on the basis of unavailed leave balance of
each employee at the end of the year.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle

the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

enriching Pakistan | 260




(Amounts in thousand)

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

261 | enriching Pakistan

Foreign currency transactions and translation

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the
Group’s functional and presentation currency. Amounts presented in these consolidated
financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise
stated. Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year-end exchange rates
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

The Group manufactures and sells urea and other Fertilizers products in the market.
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the products is transferred i.e.
when the product is dispatched / delivered to the customer. The payment terms in contracts
with customers for sale of goods range from 30 to 180 days from invoice date.

The Group also provides transportation / logistics services to industrial customers.
Performance obligation for transportation / logistics services is satisfied upon the goods
reaching the designated destination. Revenue from providing such services is recognised in
the accounting period in which the services are rendered. The payment terms in contracts
with customers for services range from 30 to 120 days from invoice date.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable (which is
generally equal to invoice amount), excluding discounts, rebates and government levies.

Other income
Income on deposits and other financial assets is recognised on accrual basis.

Commission and sub-licensing income is recognised on accrual basis in accordance with
the substance of the relevant agreement.

Dividend income on equity investments is recognised when the Group's right to receive the
dividend is established.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Holding Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

engro fertilizers limited

(Amounts in thousand)

2.23

224

3.1

3.2

3.3

annual report 2023

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Board of Directors of the Holding Company that makes strategic
decisions.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements in the period in which these are approved.

critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual
results. Estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews appropriateness of the rates of depreciation, useful lives and residual
values used in the calculation of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of
recoverable amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis.

Income taxes

In making the estimates for income taxes, the management considers the applicable laws
and the decisions / judgments of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.
Accordingly, the recognition of current and deferred taxes is made taking into account these
judgments and the best estimates of future results of operations of the Group.

Provision for retirement and other service benefits obligations
The present value of these obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined
on actuarial basis using various assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact

the carrying amount of these obligations. The present value of these obligations and the
underlying assumptions are disclosed in note 39.
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(Amounts in thousand)

3.4 Impairment of goodwill and right to use the brand 41 Operating assets
Determining the recoverable value of goodwill and right to use the brand involves use of Freeho.:azaseho.d Fm::d'::;hom Plantand  Gas Gt Offce Arcra  Veicles  Total
significant estimates and assumptions. In making the aforementioned fair valuation land  land Toonnery pipeline eauipment
estimates, discounted cash flow approach is used. The underlying assumptions used for AuP
such valuation are disclosed in note 5.1. et danuary, 2022
Cost 194914 97,284 104,041,061 2664029 1982247 624,228 3247211 117,738,836
3.5 Contingencies and provisions Accumulated depreciation (60,527,156) (1,157,485 (1,707,181) (67,137,754)
Net book value
Significant estimates and judgements are being used by the management in accounting for Year endedDecember31, 2022
contingencies and provisions relating to legal and taxation matters being contested at et Bockvale -y, 2022
various forums based on applicable laws and the decisions / judgements. TS om G ote 452 A
Disposals / write offs (note 4.3)
3.6 Impairment of financial assets oot e fl2043 g 20109
Accumulated depreciation 1,401,415 44925 1456415
Significant estimates are involved in the assessment of the correlation between historical e (4580
observed default rates and the projection of cashflows, forecast economic conditions and eprecation chage 101042 (52079 GaRoN - E264T0
ECL. The amount of ECL is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic Net book value
conditions. As at January 1,2023
Cost 110,308,081 3,487,515
4, property, plant and equipment 2023 ...Rupees.... 2022 Accumlated deprediation (1614408  QO1174) (1351007 (1:36872%9)
Net book value 1,594,912 248167 58,957,074 2,150,222

Operating assets at net book value (note 4.1) 69,424,498 68,564,208 Year ended December 31,2023
Capita| work in progress (CW"D) (note 4_5) 7,734,005 7’793’1 35 Net book value - January 1, 2023 194,914 52558 1594912 248167 58957,074 1,444,108 455,202 403499 3063552 2150222 68,564,208
Major Spare par‘ts and Stand_by eqUipment M M Ac:gggszti.rﬁu:;zg4?gemmcwp 205338 0 363889 886638 287483 595314 760499 6374255
M m Disposals / write offs (note 4.3)
ot (121) ©2228) (30,960) - (50573 (873882
121 73483 30,148 - 1e4972 268724
Accumulated depreciation
(18,745) ©12) - (85601) (105158
Depreciation charge (note 4.2) (1674 @159 (10865 (2619875 (63423  (365542)  (176740) (201606 (352094 (3883411)
Assets classified as held for sale (note 15) - (1,52539%) (1,52539%)
Net book value 194914 50834 1,708658 237,392 50957347 1380685 976298 513430 3457260 947630 69424498
As at December 31,2023
Cost 194914 07284 3414532 449431 113854746 266499 3271405 1703170 3854412 3997441 133502331
Accumulated depreciation (46400) (1705874  (212089) (53897309 (1284311) (2205107) (1,189740) (397,152 (1,524415) (625552437)
Assets classified as held for sale (note 15) - (1,52539%) (1,52539%)
Net book value 194914 50834 1708658 237,392 50957347 15380685 976298 513430 3457260 947630 69424498
Annual rate of depreciation (%) 2to5 251010 25 31010 2t06  No.of 10t025 143 10025
T

411

Includes Rs. 302,556 (2022: Nil) transferred from major spare parts and standby equipment.
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(Amounts in thousand) (Amounts in thousand)

4.2 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows: Description and Sold to Cost  Accumulated Net book Sale Gain /
method of disposal depreciation value proceeds (loss)
2023 ...Rupees.... 2022 _ (note 31)
Items having net book value of nup
Cost of sales (note 28) 3,468,521 2,008,488 Rl 500 each ormore
Selling and distribution expenses (note 29) 139,614 142,659 Vehicles
Administrative expenses (note 30) 275,276 185,264 Bidding Shahrukh Zahid 1,897 1,109 788 1,856 1,068
T A 00Nn A44 T AR A44 Bidding Roshaan Ahmed Khan 1,892 1,107 785 2,324 1,539
ﬂ & Bidding Sana U Haq 1,889 1,105 784 1,391 607
5,678 3,321 2,357 5,571 3,214
Plant and machinery
4.3 The details of operating assets disposed / written off during the year are as follows:
Bidding AA Enterprise 57,603 45,284 12,319 8,745 3,574)
Description and Sold to Cost  Accumulated Net book Sale Gain/ Bidding Syed Mansoor Al 5,051 1,479 3,572 4,247 675
method of disposal depreciation value proceeds (loss) Bidding Non Ferrous Metal Work 10,165 7,991 2,174 1,827 (347)
(note 31) 72,819 54,754 18,065 14,819 (3,246)
Rupees
ltems having net book value of ltems having net book value less
Rs._500 each or more than Rs. 500 each
Vehicle to employees
As per company policy Muhammad Imran Idris 4,249 - 4,249 3,663 (586) Operating assets Various 181,706 166,654 15,052 168,232 153,180
As per company policy Nida Fatima Hashmi 5,472 1,628 3,844 4,081 237
As per company policy Arshad Naveed 4,194 773 3,421 3,749 328 Year ended December 31, 2023 373,882 268,724 105,158 268,056 162,898
As per company policy Shaban Zafar Ali 5,520 2,346 3,174 3,857 683
As per company policy Asad Aleem 4,187 1,068 3,119 3,126 7 Year ended December 31, 2022 1,561,006 1,456,415 104,591 418,378 313,787
As per company policy Anoosha Naushad 3,453 538 2,915 3,191 276
As per company policy Muhammad Wagas Quraishi 3,532 801 2,731 3,149 418
As per company policy Muhammad Ali 3,044 474 2,570 2,834 264 . . . . T . .
As per company policy Kassim Motiwalla 4,396 1,031 2465 4002 1537 44  Particulars of immovable properties i.e. land and building which are in the name of the
As per company policy Rohail Hussain Khilj 3,463 1,030 2433 2,879 446 Holding Company are as follows:
As per company policy Nadeem Ahmad 5,443 3,084 2,359 2,403 44
As per company policy Somia Manzoor Khan 3,462 1,324 2,138 2,146 8 Location Total Area (Acreage)
As per company policy Mojiz Mansoor 3,397 1,300 2,097 2,142 45
As per company policy Muhammad Tariq Sheikh 3,315 1,268 2,047 2,846 799 .
As per company policy Al Muhammad 3,403 1,398 2,005 2,390 385 Daharki plant & colony 734
As per company policy Usman Asif 3,184 1,398 1,786 2,388 602 Zarkhez plant land at Port Qasim 112.5
As per company policy Syed Shahab Shahid 3,184 1,419 1,765 2,277 512
As per company policy Hasnain Raza 2,665 976 1,689 2,164 475
As per company policy Muhammad Arif Saeed 3,251 1,566 1,685 1,799 114 4.5 Capital work in progress 2023 ...Rupees.... 2022
As per company policy Muhammad Humza Awais 2,654 1,015 1,639 2,052 413
As per company policy Wagas Saeed 2,649 1,014 1,635 1,672 37
As per company policy Asim Jamil 3,205 1,589 1,616 2,013 397 Plant and machinery 6,100,844 5,127,846
As per company policy Mahwish Siddique 2,773 1179 1,594 1,652 58 Building and civil works including gas pipeline 346,447 98,842
As per company policy Muhammad Asif Ali 3,184 1,597 1,587 1,965 378 . . )
As per company policy Nisar Ahmed Channa 2,503 1,102 1,491 1,621 130 Furniture, fixtures and equipment 616,010 163,911
As per company policy Waggas lgbal 2,648 1,179 1,469 1,600 131 Advances to suppliers 595,477 2,331,258
As per company policy Tariq Zafar 2,592 1,138 1,454 1,840 386
As per company policy Adnan Magsood Siddiqui 2,555 1,187 1,368 - (1,368) Others ﬂ M
As per company policy Saad Ahmed Qureshi 2,578 1242 1,336 2211 875 7,734,005 7,793,135
As per company policy Danish Moin 2,654 1,342 1,312 1,751 439
As per company policy Nadeem Ismat 2,992 1,780 1,212 1,733 521
As per company policy Abdur Rehman Choudhary 2,592 1,395 1,197 1,471 274
As per company policy Wagas Khan 2,659 1,506 1,153 1,416 263
As per company policy Mutahir Rasool 2,537 1,408 1,129 1,351 222
113,679 43,995 69,684 79,434 9,750
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4.5.1 Includes Rs. 1,299,378 (2022: Rs. 636,268) which represents the Holding Company’s share
in respect of a joint operation related to Pressure Enhancement Facility (PEF), as disclosed

in note 50 to the consolidated financial statements.

4.5.2 Balance as at January 1
Additions during the year

Transferred to:
- operating assets (note 4.1)
- intangible assets (note 5)

Balance as at December 31

5. intangible assets

As at January 1, 2022

Cost
Accumulated amortisation
Net book value

Year ended December 31, 2022

Net book value - January 1, 2022
Transfers from CWIP (note 4.5.2)
Amortisation (note 5.3)

Net book value

As at January 1, 2023
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net book value
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2023 ....Rupeses....

2022

7,793,135 11,031,660
6,112,481 8,254,083
(6,071,699) (11,324,128)
(99,912) (168,480)
7,734,005 7,793,135
Goodwill Right to Software Rights for Total
use the and future gas
brand licenses utilisation
(note 5.1) (note 5.2)
Rupees

183,806 4,170,995

183,806

183,806 4,170,995

183,806

183,806 4,170,995

183,806

4,170,995

4,170,995

4,170,995

1,492,304
(594,245)

102,312
(53,763)

898,059 48,549

898,059
168,480
(176,799)
889,740

1,660,784
(771,044)

102,312
(58,873)

889,740 43,439

engro fertilizers limited

5,949,417
(648,008)

5,301,409

5,301,409
168,480
(181,909)

5,287,980

6,117,897
(829,917)

5,287,980

(Amounts in thousand)

Year ended December 31, 2023
Net book value - January 1, 2023
Transfers from CWIP (note 4.5.2)
Write off

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Amortisation (note 5.3)
Net book value
As at December 31, 2023
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Annual rate of amortisation (%)

Goodwill Right to Software Rights for Total
use the and future gas
brand licenses utilisation
(note 5.1) (note 5.2)
Rupees
183,806 4,170,995 889,740 43,439 5,287,980
- - 99,912 - 99,912
- - (38,854) - (38,854)
- - 38,854 - 38,854
- - (198,590) (6,110) (2083,700)
183,806 4,170,995 791,062 38,329 5,184,192
183,806 4,170,995 1,721,842 102,312 6,178,955
- - (930,780) (63,983) (994,763)
183,806 4,170,995 791,062 38,329 5,184,192
- - 12.5-25 5

5.1 Goodwill and Right to use the brand

Goodwill and right to use the brand represent amounts recognised on amalgamation of
Engro Eximp (Private) Limited with the Holding Company, being the difference between the
fair values of net assets at the time of amalgamation and the amount of consideration given.

Goodwill and right to use the brand have been allocated to the single Cash Generating Unit
(CGU) having an indefinite life, till the time the related CGU is disposed / derecognised. The
recoverable amount of cash generating unit is the higher of value in use or fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is calculated as the net present value of the projected cash flows
of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs, discounted at risk-adjusted discount

rate.

annual report 2023
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5.3
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Details relating to the discounted cash flow model used to determine the value in use of
goodwill and right to use the brand are as follows:

Valuation basis Value in use

Sales growth rates
Discount rate

Key assumptions

Growth rates are internal forecasts based on both
internal and external market information and past
performance.

Determination of assumptions

Cost reflects past experience, adjusted for inflation
and expected changes.

Discount rate is primarily based on weighted
average cost of capital.

Terminal growth rate 2.5%
Period of specific projected cash flows 5 years
Discount rate 22%

The valuation indicates sufficient headroom such that a reasonably possible change to key

assumptions is unlikely to result in impairment of related goodwill and right to use the brand.

Right to use the brand is in respect of selling Phosphate fertilizers, acquired under an
agreement with the Parent Company, that has been valued at initial recognition using Relief
from Royalty Method and is considered to have an indefinite life.

Primarily relates to cost incurred on implementation of new ERP i.e. OneSAP, which is being
amortised over a period of 8 years.

o 2023 ...Rupees.... 2022
Amortisation for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales (note 28) 18,763 15,157
Selling and distribution expenses (note 29) 9,158 4,371
Administrative expenses (note 30) 175,779 162,381

203,700 181,909

engro fertilizers limited

(Amounts in thousand)
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6.1

71

7.2
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long-term investments 2023 ...Rupees.... 2022

At amortised cost

Pakistan Investment Bonds (note 6.1) 202,134 2,204,759

These bonds carry interest at the rate of 13.04% (2022: ranging between 13.04% to 17.57%)
per annum and have maturity in four years (2022: two to five years).

long-term loans, advances and deposits 2023 ...Rupees.... 2022
- considered good

Loans and advances to:

- Executives (notes 7.1, 7.2, 7.3, 7.5 and 7.6) 65,076 48,215
- Other employees (notes 7.4 and 7.6) 15,343 42,408
- Deposits to suppliers 201,246 190,062
281,665 280,685
Less: Current portion shown under
current assets (note 12) (71,859) (74,154)
209,806 206,531

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans
and advances to executives

Balance as at January 1 48,215 98,446
Disbursements 99,841 86,929
Repayments / amortisation (82,980) EYAL)
Balance as at December 31 65,076 48,215

Details of loans and advances to executives

Service incentive loans 1,141

Advances in respect of:

- Car earn out assistance 2,663
- House rent 1,961
- Salary 30,637
- Others 28,674

65,076
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9.1 Includes stock-in-trade costing Nil (2022: Rs. 4,079,147) carried at net realisable value,
amounting to Nil (2022: Rs. 3,651,147).

9.2 Provision for impairment against stock-in-trade 2023 ...Rupees.... 2022
Balance as at January 1 208,410 146,194
Charge for the year 327,389 173,758
Reversal during the year - (93,450)
Written off during the year (498,458) (18,092)
Balance as at December 31 37,341 208,410

7.3 The maximum amount outstanding from executives at the end of any month during the year
aggregated to Rs. 64,847 (2022: Rs. 52,700).

7.4 Includes interest free loans given to workers pursuant to Collective Labour Agreement.

7.5 Represents loans granted to employees according to the Group's policy. These loans are
interest free, are repayable within 1 to 4 years and are secured to the extent of the provident
fund balance and retirement benefits, if vested, of the respective employees.

7.6  The carrying values of the loans and advances are neither past due nor impaired.

8. stores, spares and loose tools 2023 ...Rupees.... 2022
Consumable stores, spares and loose tools (note 8.2) 9,701,353 7,403,162
Less: Provision for surplus and slow moving

items (note 8.1) (971,830) (907,932)
8,729,523 6,495,230

8.1 Provision for surplus and slow moving items

Balance as at January 1 907,932 857,923

140,055

9.3 During the year, the Group has directly written off stock-in-trade amounting to Rs. 52,038

(2022: Rs. 218,945).
9.4 Includes stock-in-transit amounting to Rs. 643,764 (2022: Nil).

9.5 Includes stock-in-transit amounting to Rs. 9,655,519 (2022: Nil).

10. trade debts 2023

Considered good

....Rupees.... 2022

Charge for the year 324,181
Reversal during the year (260,176) (61,587)
Written off during the year (107) (28,459)
Balance as at December 31 971,830 907,932

8.2  During the year, the Group has directly written off stores, spares and loose tools amounting
to Rs. 4,844 (2022: Rs. 11,751).

9. stock-in-trade 2023 ...Rupees.... 2022
Raw materials (note 9.4) 3,322,973 1,636,382
Packi